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CHAIRS’ REPORTS

ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT APPELLATE DIVISION
FIRST JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT

ERNEST J. COLLAZO, ESQ. 61 BROADWAY
CHAIR NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10006

To Members of the Bar and the Public:

October 1, 2016 will be known as a seminal day in the annals of the attorney discipline
process in New York. On that date, new Court rules governing the attorney disciplinary process
were implemented following a lengthy period of introspection and examination among the many
NY stakeholders. This seismic shift in the disciplinary process to an organizational structure
consisting of two separate and independent Attorney Grievance Committees, each composed of
21 members and meeting six times a year, has placed a tremendous responsibility on the newly
empowered Chief Attorney to “get the work done” well and on time.

I extend my sincere thanks to the Chief Attorney and his staff for their tremendous work
in successfully transitioning to the new system after a few initial bumps, and to the Committee
members for all of their hard work and dedication as they volunteer their time in a most
worthwhile cause. Their success, however, would not have been possible without the steadfast
support of Presiding Justice Rolando Acosta and the Justices of our Court, and, in particular, the
members of the Court’s Liaison Committee consisting of Justice David Friedman, Justice John
W. Sweeny, Jr., Justice Dianne T. Renwick, Justice Rosalyn H. Richter, Justice Peter Tom,
Justice Angela M. Mazzarelli, and Justice Troy K. Webber. I am grateful to have a terrific Court.

I also am indebted to the Clerk of the Court, Susanna Molina Rojas, for her yeoman
work as the new Court rules were implemented and for her dedicated support of the
Committee and its work.

Everyone in this endeavor strives to do their best to protect the public from the
unethical conduct from certain attorneys and I am thankful to be part of that effort.

((-.} Y el
Ernest J.Collazo *
Chair




ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT APPELLATE DIVISION
FIRST JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
CHARLOTTE MOSES FISCHMAN, ESQ. ' 61 BROADWAY
CHAIR NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10006

To Members of the Bar and the Public:

The late publication of this 2017 Annual Report permits an assessment of how the
Grievance Committee has performed through the end of 2018. We now have twenty-seven
months’ experience under the 2016 Rules for Attorney Disciplinary Matters. While we have
successfully transitioned our procedures, we have not adequately measured our performance.
How long does it take to process a complaint to dismissal or action? What is the actual timetable
for bringing a formal proceeding to completion? How does productivity under the 2016 Rules
compare with accomplishments in prior years?

A prime goal of the 2016 Rules was 1o expedite the grievance process. We need
better statistical reporting to know whether that goal is being met on a Departmental or statewide
basis. Complainants, respondents and the public are entitled to timely investigations and
resolutions. The Committee’s dedicated staff works hard to triage thousands of complaints that
run the gamut from frivolous to criminal, involving fee disputes, escrow violations, attorney
error or neglect, conflicts of interest, and so much more. These complaints are read, investigated
and sent to the Committee for disposition by dismissal, the issuance of letters of advisement, the
imposition of admonitions or the authorization of formal charges. The Committee of
experienced, diverse New York lawyers and laypeople evaluate staff recommendations and make
determinations to protect the public, educate attorneys and enforce the Rules of Professional
Conduct. Because of the size of the caseload, there is always the risk that too much effort is
spent in processing minor matters and that serious wrongdoing is not timely addressed.

During the coming year, we hope to explore opportunities for speeding up the
grievance process by implementing technology for more effective case management, expanding
mediation options with the help of the bar associations, considering opportunities for pro bono
programs that enlist the talents of volunteer lawyers and requesting Court appointments of
special counsel to supplement the staff"s efforts in cases that require particular expertise or
resources.

We thank P.J. Rolando T. Acosta, the Justices that serve on the Liaison
Commitiee and Susanna Molina Rojas, Clerk of the Court, for their steadfast support and extend
heartfelt gratitude to the members of my Commitlee and to the staff, all of whom accomplish
much with limited resources,

e Lt Mo eln

Charlotte Moses Fischman, Chair
Decem_ber 2018




CHIEF ATTORNEY'S REPORT

I am grateful to have completed seven years in my role as Chief Counsel, now
known as Chief Attorney as of October 1, 2016. I am pleased to thank the Chairs Ernest J.
Collazo and Charlotte M. Fischman for their unconditional leadership and support as we
faced many new challenges transitioning to a new system, pursuant to the adoption, as of
October 1, 2016, of new Court rules (Rules) governing the disciplinary process. Since
then, there have been two separate Committees of 21 members. Each Committee operates
independently and meets six times a year. My thanks also to the Committee members.
Their role in ensuring the sound handling of the 4005 cases processed in 2017
examplifies the best in public service.

I must thank Presiding Justice Rolando T. Acosta for his unwavering support of
my office and the Committee. Thank you as well to the Justices of our Court, in
particular the Liaison Committee members: Hon. David Friedman, Hon. John W. Sweeny,
Jr., Hon. Dianne T. Renwick, Hon. Rosalyn H. Richter, Hon. Peter Tom, Hon. Angela M.
Mazzarelli, and Hon. Troy K. Webber. Also, thanks to the Clerk of the Court, Susanna
Molina Rojas, as well as Deputy Clerks, Margaret Sowah and Eric Schumacher, for their
continuing support of the Committee.

Despite the major changes that the new Rules required, the Committee and staff
have adapted with great success and continue to work diligently to protect the public from
attorney misconduct. Many thanks in particular to my staff for their ability to adhere to
the highest standards of service. Their hard work in serving the Committee, the Court and

the public is undeniable.

As always, we shall continue to strive to earn the confidence of the Committee, the
Court and the public by striving for excellence.

e it

/ Jorge Dopico
Chief Attorney




COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Committee members are volunteers appointed by the Court who fulfill both adjudicative
and executive functions. Most significantly, they decide, after appropriate investigation
by Staff, whether a disciplinary proceeding should be brought against an attorney,
whether a private admonition or letter of advisement should be issued, or whether the
complaint should be dismissed. If a disciplinary proceeding is approved, the Court may
appoint a Referee to conduct a hearing and prepare a written report, stating the Referee’s
findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommended sanction. Thereafter, the Court
makes the final determination on both liability and sanction based on its review of the
record.

In 2017, two separate Committees, each with a Chair, Vice-Chair and 19 other members,
reviewed and approved staff’s recommendations to dismiss, advise, admonish or formally
charge respondents.

Below are brief biographies of all of the Committee members who served, with
_dedication and energy, highlighting their diverse accomplishments:

Ernest J. Collazo (Chair)

Mr. Collazo has practiced labor and employment law for nearly 40 years. He began his
career with the NLRB following his graduation from Columbia Law School. Two years
later, he became an associate at Simpson Thacher & Bartlett, and, within five years,
became a partner. Ten years later, Mr. Collazo left to establish the predecessor firm to
Collazo Florentino & Keil, LLP, a boutique firm practicing management-side labor and
employment law and litigation. Mr. Collazo is a Fellow of the College of Labor and
Employment Lawyers, and a former member of the Advisory Committee to the New York
State Ethics Commission of the Council on Foreign Relations and the Advisory
Committee to the Rules Committee of the Second Circuit. He has served on the boards of
the Federal Defenders of New York; the United Hospital Fund of New York; the Latin
American Program of the Woodrow Wilson International Center for Scholars; the
September 11th Fund; the New York Community Trust; and the Washington Office on
Latin America. As a City Bar member, he has served on the City Bar's Executive
Committee, the Committee on Professional and Judicial Ethics, the Committee on Labor
and Employment, and the 2011 Nominating Committee. He also served as the City Bar's
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representative to the NYSBA House of Delegates and its 2009 and 2010 Nominating
Committees.

Abigail T. Reardon (Vice-Chair)

Ms. Reardon is a partner in the firm of Nixon Peabody, LLP, where she litigates complex
commercial litigation. She is a graduate of Duke University School of Law. Ms.
Reardon is admitted to practice law in the State of New York, the U.S. Court of Appeals,
Second Circuit, the U.S. District Court, Southern District of New York, and the U.S.
District Court, Eastern District of New York. Ms. Reardon is a member of the Arbitration
Committee of The Association of the Bar of the City of New York and a member of the
Duke University Law School Board of Visitors. She has served on the Town of Bedford,
New York Master Plan Committee. She is a former trustee of Windward School, White
Plains, New York, and a governor of the Nantucket Yacht Club.

Charlotte Moses Fischman (Chair)

Ms. Fischman is the General Counsel at Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP. She is a
cum laude graduate of Brandeis University and a magna cum laude graduate of Columbia
Law School, where she was a member of the Columbia Law Review. She has served on
the boards of the Legal Aid Society, the New York Community Trust, the September 11th
Fund, the Mexican American Legal Defense Fund, and was a Commissioner of the Ethics
Commission for the Unified Court System. As a member of the Association of the Bar of
the City of New York, she served on the Executive Committee, Judiciary Committee and
Committee on Professional and Judicial Ethics. In addition, she served as an Adjunct
Professor of Law at Columbia Law School in the field of ethics. For many years she
served as President of the National Alliance for the Mentally IlI- NYC Metro (NAMI-

Metro).

Myron Kirschbaum (Vice-Chair)
Mr. Kirschbaum was a partner in the litigation department of Kaye Scholer LLP (which

has since merged with Arnold & Porter) for over 30 years, concentrating on securities and
commercial litigation, in which capacity he tried both jury and non-jury cases to verdict in
a variety of fields including bankruptcy and antitrust, in addition to the above. He later
served as Special Litigation Counsel to the firm. Both as a partner and Special Counsel he
chaired the firm's Professional Ethics Committee for approximately 25 years. Mr.
Kirschbaum is a summa cum laude graduate of Yeshiva University and magna cum laude
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graduate of Harvard Law School, where he served as an editor of the Harvard Law
Review. Later he clerked for the Honorable Paul R. Hays of the United States Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit. Before becoming Vice Chair of the Attorney Grievance
Committee as currently constituted in 2016, he served on the Policy Committee of the
previous Departmental Disciplinary Committee for approximately 13 years.

Robert M. Abrahams

Mr. Abrahams is a partner in Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP. Mr. Abrahams concentrates his
practice in complex commercial litigation, including securities, real estate, employment,
derivative actions, trusts and estates, partnership disputes, defending claims brought
against lawyers and law firms, and director and officer liability matters. For many years,
he headed his firm's litigation department and was a member of the firm's executive
committee. His many significant representations include a major interdealer broker in
numerous regulatory investigations, arbitrations and civil litigations, including a five-
month jury trial and related FINRA arbitration in which his clients recovered in excess of
$140 million; 173 former Dewey LeBoeuf partners in the successful defense of a $200-
million claim; one of the largest law firms in the world in a $100-million malpractice suit.
Mr. Abrahams has tried more than 100 civil cases and arbitrations and he has recently
served as an arbitrator appointed by the International Chamber of Commerce. He is listed
in Benchmark Litigation: The Definitive Guide to America’s Leading Litigation Firms &
Attorneys (“National Star” in securities litigation), Best Lawyers in America, The Legal
500 US, New York Super Lawyers, Who'’s Who in America and Who’s Who in the World.
Mr. Abrahams is the author of the “Commercial Real Estate” chapter of Business and
Commercial Litigation in the Federal Courts (Thomson West, 2010-2016) and the
“Document Discovery” chapter of Commercial Litigation in New York State
Courts (Thomson West and the New York County Lawyers’ Association, 2011-2015).
He received his B.A. from Hobart College and his J.D., with distinction, from Hofstra
University School of Law, where he was editor-in-chief of the Hofstra Law Review.

Daniel R. Alonso

Mr. Alonso is currently Managing Director and General Counsel of Exiger, which advises
corporations and government agencies on financial crime and regulatory risk and
compliance. He is a graduate of Cornell University (1987) and N.Y.U. School of Law
(1990), and served as law clerk to Judge Joseph W. Bellacosa of the New York Court of
Appeals. Mr. Alonso was previously a litigation partner at Kaye Scholer LLP and has also
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served in senior positions as a federal and state prosecutor, first as the Chief of the
Criminal Division in the United States Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of New
York, and later as the Chief Assistant District Attorney in the Manhattan District
Attorney's Office. He is member of the Board of Directors of the Fund for Modern
Courts; the New York State Bar Association's Committee on Standards of Attorney
Conduct; and the Board of Editors of the Journal of Financial Compliance. In 2012-13 he
was Co-Chair of the New York State White Collar Crime Task Force, and between 2007
and 2009, Mr. Alonso served by appointment of the Governor of New York as a member
of the New York State Commission on Public Integrity.

Robert J. Anello

Mr. Anello, a principal of Morvillo Abramowitz Grand Iason & Anello PC, has litigated
in the federal and state courts for more than 30 years. He focuses his practice on white
collar criminal defense, regulatory enforcement matters, complex civil litigation, internal
investigations and reviews, and appeals. Mr. Anello is widely recognized for his skills as
a criminal and civil trial attorney, and his ability to negotiate effectively on behalf of his
clients. He is President Emeritus of the Federal Bar Council, and a Fellow of the
American College of Trial Lawyers, the American Bar Foundation, and the New York
State Bar Foundation. Mr. Anello is a co-author of the two-volume treatise: White Collar
Crime: Business and Regulatory Offenses, Rev. Ed. (2018), and an author of the White
Collar Crime column for the New York Law Journal. He is a regular contributor to The
Insider Blog on Forbes.com. He is a frequent contributor to numerous other publications
and a speaker on topics in the areas of white collar criminal law, securities law,
professional ethics, and trial tactics. Mr. Anello also is widely known for his dedication to
organizations serving the legal community. He is a member of the Nominating Committee
for the Association of the Bar of the City of New York and the New York State Bar
Association's House of Delegates. Mr. Anello currently serves on the Board of Trustees
of The Supreme Court Historical Society. He is a Fellow of the Litigation Counsel of
America. He is also a member of numerous bar associations. Mr. Anello received his J.D.,
magna cum laude, from Syracuse University College of Law, and his B.A. from SUNY

Albany.

Marjorie E. Berman L
Ms. Berman, a partner at Krantz & Berman LLP, practices in the areas of employment
litigation, complex commercial litigation and white-collar criminal defense. In addition,
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“she provides mediation services and employment counseling. She represents a diverse
group of clients, ranging from individuals and partnerships to small, midsize and Fortune
500 Companies. She has been recognized by Super Lawyers as one of Metro New York's
top fifty women lawyers. Ms. Berman graduated magna cum laude and Phi Beta Kappa
from Brown University in 1983. She received her J.D. from Columbia University in 1989
where she was a Harlan Fiske Stone Scholar. Following law school, she clerked for the
Honorable Naomi Reice Buchwald of the Southern District of New York. Ms. Berman
presently serves as President of the Federal Bar Council Inn of Court and Secretary of the
Federal Bar Council. She previously served as Secretary of the Columbia Law School
Alumni Association and remains a Board Member. She has also been active in alumni
affairs for Brown University. Ms. Berman currently serves on the Board of Day One
(www.dayoneny.org), an advocacy group committed to ending dating abuse and domestic
violence among teens and young adults. Ms. Berman has an active mediation practice
and has been appointed to the mediation panels for the Southern District of New York,
the Eastern District of New York and the Commercial Division of New York Supreme
Court.

Thomas Birnbaum

Mr. Birnbaum is President of NYC Realty Advisors, LLC, the commercial real estate
brokerage firm he founded in 2006. The firm concentrates on office leasing transactions,
investment sales and consulting. He began in his career in real estate in 1972 with ten
years at The Edward S. Gordon Company, Inc., which today has evolved into CBRE. Mr.
Birnbaum attended Tabor Academy, followed by Hobart College and New York
University School of Commerce. Mr. Birnbaum served in the United States Naval Air
Reserves as an avionics technician. He has been a member of The Real Estate Board of
New York Inc. since 1972 and the Young Men's/Women's Real Estate Association since
1976.

Joyce M. Bove

Ms. Bove, until September 2013, was Senior Vice President for Grants and Special
Projects at The New York Community Trust, the community foundation for the New
York metropolitan area. With The Trust since 1978, she administered a wide range of
grant programs and special projects. Before joining The Trust, she held administrative
and planning positions in health, mental health, and substance abuse agencies. She was
active in several nonprofit, civic, and philanthropic organizations, including the boards of
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the National AIDS Fund, Philanthropy New York, the Primary Care Development
Corporation, Grantmakers in Health, and Funders Concerned About AIDS. Ms. Bove
served on the boards of the Institute for Contemporary Psychotherapy, the Nonprofit
Coordinating Committee of New York, United Neighborhood Houses, and the Women's
City Club as well as the New York Academy of Medicine School Health Programs
Advisory Committee. She was the former president of the Health Care Executive Forum,
and she served on the Program Committee. In 1989, Ms. Bove received the Council on
Foundations' Robert W. Scrivner Award for Creative Grantmaking for her leadership in
shaping the local and national philanthropic response to the AIDS epidemic. She is a
graduate of Wellesley College and holds a masters degree in Public Administration from
Indiana University; she was member of the Indiana University School of Public and
Environmental Affairs Distinguished Alumni Council. Ms. Bove was a fellow of the New
York Academy of Medicine, and a visiting lecturer at New York Medical College's
School of Public Health.

Hon. James M. Catterson

Judge Catterson is a partner at Arnold & Porter Kaye Scholer LLP, specializing in
complex commercial litigation and appellate practice. Prior to joining the firm, Judge
Catterson was an Associate Justice of the Appellate Division, First Department of the
New York State Supreme Court, where he participated in more than six thousand civil
and criminal appeals, and hundreds of disciplinary proceedings. Prior to his elevation to
the Appellate Division, Judge Catterson sat as a trial judge in a civil part in the Tenth
Judicial District of the New York State Supreme Court. Before his election to the
Supreme Court, Judge Catterson served as Suffolk County's Deputy County Attorney and
throughout his career has litigated on behalf of a broad spectrum of federal and local
entities at the administrative, trial and appellate levels in both federal and state courts. He
has prepared and argued appeals before the United States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit and the Supreme Court of the State of New York, Appellate Division,
Second Judicial Department. He also served as an Assistant United States Attorney in the
Eastern District of New York. Judge Catterson spent the majority of his tenure in the
EDNY as Chief of the Asset Forfeiture Unit. He was an adjunct professor at Cardozo
Law School and Touro Law School and received his JD from St. John's University School
of Law and his BA from Colgate University.




Vincent T. Chang

Mr. Chang is a Partner at Wollmuth Maher & Deutsch, specializing in complex litigation
in such areas as real estate, insurance, bankruptcy, subprime mortgage securitizations,
hedge funds, reinsurance, bondholder litigation, investment banking, antitrust, and
securities. Mr. Chang is a graduate of Harvard College, magna cum laude, and Harvard
Law School, cum laude. Mr. Chang clerked for the Hon. Robert B. Krupansky, United
States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, and was an associate and then counsel at
Davis Polk & Wardwell. Mr. Chang is a past President of the Asian American Bar
Association of New York and serves on the Executive Committee and Board of Directors
and as Treasurer of the New York County Lawyers Association and has served as
co-Chair of its Federal Courts Committee and as Chair of the NYCLA Foundation. He
also serves on the Nominating Committee and the House of Delegates of the New York
State Bar Association. He serves on the Task Force on Gun Violence of the New York
State Bar Association and on its Standing Committee on Court Structure and Operations.
Mr. Chang serves on the American Bar Association's Standing Committee on the
American Judicial System. Mr. Chang has served as Vice Chair of two committees of the
Antitrust Section of the American Bar Association. Mr. Chang is a recipient of the New
York City Bar Association's Diversity & Inclusion Champion Award. Mr. Chang has
been listed as a "Super Lawyer" in business litigation in New York, a designation limited
to 5% of the lawyers in a given state.

Sylvia Chin
Ms. Chin is partner/of counsel in the firm of White & Case LLP. She has considerable

experience in corporate and commercial financing with an emphasis on asset-based
financing transactions. She graduated from New York University and Fordham
University School of Law. After graduation she clerked for Hon. Lawrence W. Pierce in
the United States District Court of the Southern District of New York. She is an adjunct
professor at Fordham University School of Law. She also serves on the governing
Council of the ABA Business Law Section and as Chair of the First Judicial District of
the NY Bar Foundation, President of the Asian American Law Fund of New York, a
director of Stichting to Promote Women’s World Banking, and a trustee of the Fordham
Law Alumni Association. She is a member of the American Law Institute, the ABA
Legal Opinions Committee, the Tribar Opinions Committee, and the Association
Advisory Board of the Working Group on Legal Opinions. She also served as President
of the American College of Commercial Finance Lawyers, President of the American
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College of Investment Counsel, President of the Asian American Bar Association of New
York, President of the NAPABA Law Foundation, Board Secretary of Women's World
Banking, Chair of the ABA Business Law Section Diversity and Inclusion Committee,
Treasurer of the National Asian Pacific American Americas Bar Association, a Director
of the New York County Lawyers Association and was a representative to the NYSBA
House of Delegates. Her awards include the Jean Allard Glass Cutter Award of the ABA
Business Law Section, the CLEO Legacy Diversity Award, AABANY's Norman Lau Kee
Trailblazer Award, Leonard F. Manning Achievement Award from Fordham Law
Review, the NAPABA Northeast Region Trailblazers Award, the Fordham Law Women
Distinguished Alumna Award and the Pace Law School AALSA Achievement Award.
She has been listed in the Guide to the World's Leading Structured Finance and
Securitization Lawyers, Euromoney's Women in Business Law, and New York Metro

Super Lawyers.

Daniel D. Chu

Mr. Chu is the principal and founding member of The Law Offices of Daniel D. Chu. He
represents clients in state and federal matters with a focus on criminal defense. Mr. Chu
began his legal career as an Assistant District Attorney in the Queens County District
Attorney's Office and later became a senior associate at Stern & Montana, LLP. Mayor
Michael Bloomberg appointed him a Commissioner and subsequently Chair of the NYC
Civilian Complaint Review Board. A graduate of the St. John's University School of
Law, he is currently an adjunct professor at his alma mater and a 2014 recipient of the
Adjunct Teaching Award.

Richard J. Condon

Mr. Condon retired in December of 2017 after having served as the Special
Commissioner of Investigation for the New York City School District for twelve years
under Mayor Michael Bloomberg and for four years under Mayor Bill de Blasio. The
office of the Special Commissioner of Investigation for the New York City School
District investigates criminal activity, sexual misconduct, unethical conduct, conflicts of
interest and other wrongdoing occurring within the City's schools. Mr. Condon’s staff
includes 5 attorneys who oversee investigations and 49 investigators with backgrounds in
the New York City Police Department and other law enforcement agencies; he has a
budget of $5 million and reports to the New York City Commissioner of Investigation.
Mr. Condon's career in public service includes having served as Police Commissioner and
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First Deputy Commissioner with the New York City Police Department and Deputy
Coordinator of Criminal Justice for New York City, all under Mayor Koch. He has also
served as the Commissioner of the Division of Criminal Justice Services for New York
State under Governor Mario Cuomo. Prior to his appointment as Special Commissioner
of Investigation, Mr. Condon was Director of Administrative Services & Worldwide
Security for Paine Webber. During that time he also served as a Commissioner on the
New York City Civilian Complaint Review Board. A native of New York City, Mr.
Condon holds a Bachelors of Arts degree from Pace University and a Masters of Arts
degree in Criminal Justice from John Jay College of Criminal Justice, and is a graduate of
the Senior Command Course at the British National Police College in Bramshill, England.

Ralph C. Dawson
Mr. Dawson is a retired partner, of counsel at Norton Rose Fulbright, US LLP. He is

engaged in the practice of labor and employment law and civil litigation in the firm's New
York office. His practice involves the representation of employers in proceedings before
the courts and administrative agencies with respect to claims of employment
discrimination and claims under various federal and state labor laws. He has also
represented clients in a variety of commercial disputes involving non-competition, other
restrictive covenants, breach of contract and tort claims. He also provides counseling and
training to various companies in the securities industry and other industries. He is also
involved in the firm's Public Finance practice. Mr. Dawson is ‘a graduate of Yale
University and the Columbia University School of Law, where he served as Notes Editor
for the Columbia Human Rights Law Review. Mr. Dawson was licensed to practice law
in New York in 1977, and is also admitted to practice before the Washington D.C. Bar,
the United States Supreme Court, various federal district courts and the Courts of Appeal
for the Second and Fifth Circuits. He is also a member of American Bar Association,
New York City Bar Association, the Metropolitan Black Bar Association of New York,
and serves on the Court Appointed Merit Selection Panel for Magistrate Judges in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. He has been
recognized as a New York Metro Super Lawyer in the area of employment and labor from
2012-2018.

Peter G. Eikenberry
Mr. Eikenberry is a sole practitioner in New York City specializing in complex
commercial litigation in the State and Federal courts, including employment, art law,
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contract, fraud, international, securities, and bankruptcy adversary disputes. Previously,
inter alia, he had been an associate at White & Case and a partner at Seyfarth Shaw. He
was educated at The Ohio State University (B.A. and LL.B.), where he was Note Editor
of the Law Journal and where he is a member of its National Council. He is a member of
the NYCBA Committee on International Human Rights (2015- ) and has been a member
of its committees to Encourage Judicial Service (Founding Chair 1989-1992), Orison
Marden Lecture Committee (Chair 2005-2009), Federal Courts, Judiciary, State Courts of
Superior Jurisdiction, Litigation and the Council on Judicial Administration. In 1998, he
led an NYCBA Human Rights Mission to Northern Ireland. He has been a member of
NYSBA Committees on Courts of Appellate Jurisdiction and Federal Courts, a Vice
President of the Federal Bar Council, and has served on FBC Committees on Courts of
the Second Circuit (Chair 2000-2003) and Public Service (Founding Chair 1991-1994).
He was Editor in Chief of the FBC Quarterly (2007-2010) and was a co-author of the
FBC's Proposed Deposition Rules for the Second Circuit, 131 F.R.D. 613 (1990). Mr.
Eikenberry was the Convenor and is a member of the Steering Committee of the New
York Conference on Immigration Representation led by Chief Judge Robert Katzmann of
the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. He is also a member of the Second Circuit’s
Committee on Civic Education. He is a Fellow of the New York Bar Foundation. He is
author of Chapter 9, Specific Performance and Rescission in Haig, Commercial Litigation
in New York State Courts (West 2015). He was awarded the Second Circuit’s
Professionalism Award in 2016, and the Ohio State University Law School’s Public
Service Award in 2017. He is president of Friends of Marcy Houses Inc, is a past
president of the Brooklyn Children’s Museum and was a founding member of the
Children’s Storefront School in Harlem.

Donna Fishman
Ms. Fishman is currently the Deputy Director of the Fund for Public Health in NYC. Ms.

Fishman has made a career of serving others. For more than two decades, she has worked
in the nonprofit sector as a champion for the poor and underprivileged. She is also an
accomplished fundraiser, both professionally and as a volunteer. Before joining the
Fund, she served for five years as the Chief Executive Officer of Gilda's Club
Westchester, whose mission is to provide social and emotional support to all those
affected by cancer. Her previous positions include Deputy Director of the Jewish Fund for
Justice and Vice President for External Affairs, Community Service Society of New

York.
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Darrell S. Gay

Mr. Gay has practiced law for more than 30 years. After graduating from Columbia Law
School, Mr. Gay served as a trial attorney with the NLRB. He then headed an
employment and labor law boutique for several years in New York City, and after that
served as partner at two other significant international firms, DLA Piper, US LLP and
Coudert Brothers, serving as the head of the U.S. practice group for Coudert. Mr. Gay
also served as Commissioner with the New York State Civil Service Commission. Mr.
Gay joined Arent Fox in 2008, where he continues to practice labor and employment law.
Mr. Gay is a Fellow of the College of Labor and Employment Lawyers and a Fellow of
the American Bar Foundation. He is one of the original founding former board members
of the Minority Corporate Counsel Association, an organization that advocates the
expanded hiring, retention and promotion of minority attorneys in corporate law
departments and law firms. He is the former chair, and a founding board member of the
National Employment Law Council, the leading association of minority management-side
employment lawyers. Mr. Gay chaired the task force merging the historical Harlem
Lawyers Association and the Bedford Stuyvesant Lawyers Association, to form the
Metropolitan Black Bar Association, the largest minority bar in New York State. Mr. Gay
previously chaired the Labor Law and Commercial Law sections of the National Bar
Association and is a member of the American Bar Association and the Association of the
Bar of the City of New York.

Nicholas A. Gravante, Jr.

Mr. Gravante is a partner at Boies, Schiller & Flexner, LLP, with extensive trial
experience in the areas of complex commercial litigation, business crimes and antitrust
litigation. He also serves as the firm's general counsel and sits on its executive
committee. Mr. Gravante has consistently been honored as one of the country’s top
lawyers, having been named among Lawdragon's 500 Leading Lawyers in America and
New York’s Best Lawyers, and also by Super Lawyers. Most recently, he secured a victory
in the battle for control of the Arizona Iced Tea empire, successfully defending the
company’s founder against claims seeking hundreds of millions of dollars. He is also
known as counse] to former shareholders of American International Group in litigation
arising from the financial crisis, as well as to several hedge funds, the Andy Warhol
Foundation and to bondholders litigating over Argentine government debt. Previously,
Mr. Gravante was a managing partner at Barrett Gravante Carpinello & Stern LLP. Mr.
Gravante sits on the Second Department’s Judicial Screening Committee and is a member
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of the Citizens Crime Commission of New York City. He chairs the Brooklyn Public
Library’s board of trustees and is a member of the board of trustees for the Community
Service Society and ESS Sheltering Arms. He was a member of Mayor Bill de Blasio's
Inauguration Committee.

Keisha-Ann G. Gray

Ms. Gray is a distinguished trial lawyer who has secured significant victories in both
federal and state courts. As a partner in the Proskauer Rose, LLP’s Labor & Employment
Law Department, she focuses her practice on civil law with an emphasis on litigating
highly-sensitive employment discrimination claims and conducting sensitive high-profile
investigations. Because of the nature of Ms. Gray's practice, many of her successful
matters have resulted in non-public resolutions and remain confidential. Counseling is
another cornerstone of her practice. As a seasoned trial counsel and litigator, Ms. Gray
draws from her experiences in the courtroom before juries to help inform her clients,
including many Fortune 500 companies, on issues pertinent to employment law and
complaint prevention. Ms. Gray frequently speaks and writes on trial practice and
employment discrimination defense matters. Ms. Gray has been recognized by The
Network Journal, The New York Law Journal's Rising Stars and YWCA of New York's
Academy of Women Leaders. Prior to joining Proskauer in 2007, Ms. Gray was an
Assistant U.S. Attorney in the Eastern District of New York and a former federal law
clerk, having served two years in the Chambers of the Honorable Jaime Pieras Jr., Senior
Judge in the District Court for the District of Puerto Rico.

Robert L. Haig

Mr. Haig is a litigation partner at the law firm of Kelley Drye & Warren LLP. He is a
former President of the New York County Lawyers' Association. Mr. Haig has served as
the Chair of the Committee on the Judiciary of the Association of the Bar of the City of
New York and also chaired that Association's Council on Judicial Administration. He has
served as a member of the New York State Bar Association's Executive Committee and
was the founder and first Chair of that Association's Commercial and Federal Litigation
Section. He is a former President of the New York Bar Foundation and a member of the
American Law Institute. Mr. Haig was the Co-Chair of the Commercial Courts Task
Force established by Chief Judge Judith S. Kaye in 1995 to create and refine the
Commercial Division of the New York State Supreme Court. He is now the Chair of the
Commercial Division Advisory Council established by Chief Judge Jonathan Lippman in
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2013 to advise him on an ongoing basis about all matters involving and surrounding the
Commercial Division as well as to keep him apprised of developments in the business
world that may affect the court system. On November 16, 2008, he was inducted as an
Honorary Charter Member of the American College of Business Court Judges in
recognition of his efforts to develop business courts in New York and many other states
and countries. Mr. Haig is the Editor-in-Chief of a six-volume treatise, entitled,
Commercial Litigation in New York State Courts, and of two other multi-volume treatises.

John J. Jerome

Mr. Jerome is a former counsel to the firm of Sullivan and Cromwell, LLP and a former
partner of Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy, having served as Chair of that Firm's
Restructuring and Bankruptcy Group and on its Executive Committee. He has practiced
law for over 45 years and has wide experience in various legal matters. He is a graduate
of St. John's University Law School. Mr. Jerome is admitted to State and Federal courts
in New York, and is admitted to practice in Pennsylvania and Colorado, as well as to the
United States Supreme Court. He serves as an official mediator for the United States
Bankruptcy Court, Southern District of New York. He is a member of the American
Bankruptcy Institute, the American Bar Association, the International Insolvency Institute
and the New York City Bar Association, where he chaired the Bankruptcy and
Reorganization Committee. Mr. Jerome has served as president of the Judd Foundation
and as a trustee of the New York State Archives Partnership Trust.

Danielle C. Lesser

Ms. Lesser serves as the Chair of the Business Litigation Department of Morrison Cohen,
LLP. Ms. Lesser is an experienced trial attorney whose diverse practice involves all
phases of litigation, from pleading through verdict and appeal. Ms. Lesser’s practice
includes both litigating and advising transactional clients with respect to litigation risk
and litigation avoidance strategies. Ms. Lesser has successfully handled a broad range of
litigations in state and federal court as well as in arbitrations and is often retained on the
eve of trial. Her representations include public companies, multi-million dollar private
companies, hedge funds, private equity funds, investment bankers, start-ups, developers,
real estate companies, information and technology companies, high net worth individuals,
and partnerships in all types of business disputes, ranging from restructuring, hotel and
hospitality, real estate, and contract disputes to enforcement of restrictive covenants. She
received her law degree from Fordham University School of Law.
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Alan I evine

Mr. Levine is a litigation partner in Cooley LLP, formerly Kronish Lieb Weiner &
Hellman LLP, and a member of its Management Committee. He was graduated from the
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania and the New York University School
of Law where he was an Editor of the Law Review. Following graduation he clerked for
the Hon Lee P. Gagliardi in the United States District Court, Southern District of New
York and then served for five years as an Assistant United States Attorney in the Southern
District of New York. He joined Kronish Lieb in 1980 and was its Managing Partner
from 1996 until its merger with Cooley Godward in 2006. Mr. Levine has served in the
House of Delegates of the NYSBA and the ABA and as chair of committees of each. He
was Chair of the Board of the Legal Aid Society from 2006-2010. He is a Fellow of the
American College of Trial Lawyers and has served as Chair of its New York Downstate
Committee.

Eve Rachel Markewich

Ms. Markewich is a member of Markewich and Rosenstock LLP, a Manhattan law firm.
Ms. Markewich's practice is devoted solely to litigation, including business litigation and
trusts and estates litigation. Markewich and Rosenstock has been recognized in Best Law
Firms, and Ms. Markewich has been designated by Super Lawyers and Best Lawyers; she
is AV rated by Martindale-Hubbell. Ms. Markewich was educated at the Dalton School,
Harvard College and Columbia Law School.

Charles G. Moerdler

Mr. Moerdler is the Co-Chair of Stroock's Litigation Practice Group. His practice is
broad-based, including concentrations in real estate and land use, health care,
international law, labor and administrative law, as well as state and federal appellate
practice. Mr. Moerdler's public service career includes current service as a Board
Member of the Metropolitan Transportation Authority, the New York City Housing
Development Corp., and as a Member of the New York City Board of Collective
Bargaining, as well as Commissioner of Housing and Buildings under Mayor John V.
Lindsay. Mr. Moerdler has represented many of New York's leading real estate
developers and owners, as well as real estate trade organizations, in a variety of contexts
ranging from antitrust, to land use and zoning, to brokerage and contract disputes. Among
the many organizations that have retained Mr. Moerdler as outside general counsel are
one of the largest hospitals in the country, one of the nation's largest health maintenance
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organizations and a major New York City daily newspaper, for which he also has served
as a director. He regularly counsels Austria's largest bank in international litigation and
served as board chairman of its U.S. subsidiary. He also acts for Austria's largest
electricity and power enterprise, one of its largest realtors and has represented other major
European companies. Mr. Moerdler represents the American Federation of Teachers and
has served as lead negotiator for numerous municipal labor unions, including the United
Federation of Teachers and the Patrolmen's Benevolent Association. Mr. Moerdler was
admitted to the New York Bar 1956. He holds an LLB from Fordham Law School and a
BA from Long Island University.

Elliot Moskowitz

Mr. Moskowitz is a Partner in Davis Polk's Litigation Department, representing major
financial institutions and creditors in connection with complex bankruptcies and
reorganizations. He has played a key role in some of the most contentious proceedings in
recent years with significant victories at both the trial and appellate level in courts around
the country. He also has extensive experience representing corporate clients and
professional firms in connection with a wide range of state and federal regulatory
inquiries and civil litigation, including securities litigation and professional malpractice
claims. Mr. Moskowitz has been recognized as a leading lawyer by numerous industry
" publications, including Law360 (Rising Star), Benchmark Litigation (Future Star / New
York) and Turnarounds & Workouts (Outstanding Young Restructuring Lawyer).

Fredric S. Newman

Mr. Newman is a founding partner of Hoguet Newman Regal & Kenney, LLP, a
commercial litigation firm in Manhattan. He is a legal generalist with decades of
experience in commercial litigation, business advice, corporate transactions, employment
counseling and alternative dispute resolution. Mr. Newman is an Adjunct Professor of
Law at Fordham University School of Law where he co-teaches a seminar on Professional
Responsibility, Legal Ethics in Civil Litigation. Mr. Newman is a member of the
National Advisory Board of the Berman Institute of Bioethics of Johns Hopkins
University. His numerous other civic, public service and non-profit positions have
included: Court-appointed Mediator in the U.S. District Court, Southern District of New
York; Director, Columbia Law School Association; Trustee, The Calhoun School, New
York City; Founding Director and Vice President, American Corporate Counsel
Association, New York Chapter; Director and Secretary, New York Fire Safety
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Foundation; and Sustaining Life Fellow, American Bar Foundation. Mr. Newman
graduated from Harvard College (A.B. cum laude 1967) and Columbia Law School (J.D.
1970). He also received an Executive M.B.A. from the University of Virginia Darden
School of Business (TEP 1984).

Ricardo E. Oquendo

Mr. Oquendo is the founder and co-managing partner at Oquendo Deraco, PLLC and
Affiliates, and was previously associated with Davidoff Malito & Hutcher, LLP,
Oquendo Ramirez Zayas Torres & Martinez, LLP, LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae,
LLP (Dewey LeBoeuf) and with Kalkines, Arky, Zall & Bernstein, LLP (Manett Phelps
& Phillips). Mr. Oquendo has over 27 years experience as a business transactional and
commercial litigation attorney with a special focus on business, commercial and real
estate litigation, commercial and real estate transactions, commercial landlord/tenant
matters (leases and litigation), special needs/affordable housing development/tax credit
financing, business finance and lending, business contracts, employment law,
entertainment, fashion and media transactions, intellectual property licensing and
litigation, hospitality and restaurants, nonprofit/tax exempt organizations, professional
licensing and discipline and government relations/public affairs. Mr. Oquendo is a
graduate of Rutgers University School of Law. Mr. Oquendo is admitted to practice law
in the State of New York, the U.S. Supreme Court, the U.S. District Court, Southern,
Eastern and Northern Districts of New York. Mr. Oquendo is a member of the Board of
Directors of Latino Justice/Puerto Rican Legal Defense and Education Fund and is a
Regent Emeritus having served as a member of the New York State Board of Regents
from 1998-2003.

Lee S. Richards, IIT

Mr. Richards a partner at Richards Kibbe & Orbe, is experienced in trial work and
securities, regulatory, banking, white-color criminal and commercial litigation, and
internal investigations. He received his B.A., summa cum laude, from Amherst College
in 1972, where he was a member of Phi Beta Kappa, and his J.D. from Columbia
University School of Law in 1975, where he was a Harlan Fiske Stone Scholar and a
Parkhurst Fellow. Mr. Richards was a law clerk to the Honorable Milton Pollack, United
States District Judge for the Southern District of New York, from 1975 to 1976. From
1977 to 1983 Mr. Richards was an Assistant United States Attorney for the Southern

District of New York.
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Barbara K. Rothschild

Ms. Rothschild earned 4 B.A. in English Literature from Boston University. She recently
retired from a second career in medical office management. Prior to that experience,
Ms. Rothschild was Assistant Director of Public Relations for the Johns Hopkins Medical
Institutions, Director of Public Relations for The Maryland Institute College of Art and
president of her own public relations firm in Baltimore, Maryland. She has been a
volunteer in a variety of schools and community organizations throughout her
professional life.

1

David M. Rubin

Mr. Rubin is a partner at Golenbock Eiseman Assor Bell & Peskoe, LLP, a general
practice law firm in Manhattan, and practices primarily in real estate and real estate
litigation. Mr. Rubin is a long standing, active neutral arbitrator with the American
Arbitration Association and was a member of the Committee on Standards of Attorney
Conduct of the New York State Bar Association that drafted the New York Rules of
Professional Conduct enacted in 2009. Mr. Rubin is also a recipient of the City Bar
Justice Center’s 2010 Jeremy G. Epstein Award for pro bono service. Mr. Rubin is a
member of the Board of Safe Space NYC, LLC and Episcopal Social Services NYC and a
graduate of the University of Michigan Law School, cum laude.

Lawrence S. Spiegel

Mr. Spiegel is a partner at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP. He has more
than two decades of experience advising individuals and corporations in complex
criminal and civil matters. He has represented corporations, their directors, officers and
employees in cases involving allegations of mail and wire fraud, securities fraud, tax
fraud, government program and procurement fraud, bank fraud, consumer fraud and
money laundering. He represents clients in connection with federal and state grand jury
investigations, in inquiries by regulatory agencies, including the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and at trial. He has successfully defended many clients in high-profile
criminal investigations and indictments and on appeal. Mr. Spiegel has particular
experience advising clients in the context of concurrent criminal proceedings and civil
litigation. In addition, he has led many corporate internal investigations, and has advised
boards of directors and management of public and private companies on compliance
issues and programs, including those related to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Mr.
Spiegel serves as the Skadden's  general counsel and co-chairs the firm's Ethics
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Committee. He is also a member of the firm's Client Engagement and Risk Committees
and participates on the firm's Policy Committee (ex officio). Mr. Spiegel repeatedly has
been listed in the Best Lawyers in America. He frequently lectures and writes about
developments in criminal law and legal ethics. Mr. Spiegel is an adjunct professor and
guest lecturer in law schools. In 2009, he received the Burton Award for Legal
Achievement, which recognizes excellence in legal scholarship.

Edward M. Spiro

Mr. Spiro is a principal of Morvillo Abramowitz Grand Iason & Anello P.C. His practice
focuses primarily on complex commercial litigation. He is co-author of Civil Practice in
the Southern District of New York, 2d Ed. (Thomson Reuters 2018), a two-volume treatise
updated annually, and co-author of a regular New York Law Journal column on civil
practice in the Southern District of New York. Mr. Spiro has served as a member of the
House of Delegates of the New York State Bar Association and the Board of Directors of
the New York County Lawyers' Association. He is a former Chair of NYCLA's
Committee on Professional Discipline and the New York City Bar Association's
Committee on Professional Discipline. Mr. Spiro is a Fellow of the American Bar
Foundation and a member of the American Bar Association (Litigation and Criminal
Justice Sections), the New York State Bar Association (Commercial and Federal
Litigation Section), and the Federal Bar Council. Mr. Spiro also serves as a trustee of the
State University of New York and the Shaker Museum | Mount Lebanon. Mr. Spiro
received his J.D., cum laude, from Boston University School of Law and his B.A., cum
laude, from Colgate University.

William St. Louis

Mr. St. Louis is the District Director of the New York and Long Island offices of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) and manages the sales practice
examination and surveillance staff in both locations. Prior to assuming this role in June
2014, he was the Regional Enforcement Chief Counsel for FINRA's North Region where
he managed Enforcement staff in FINRA's New Jersey, Boston, and Philadelphia offices.
He spent several years in a variety of FINRA Enforcement roles in New York including
service as a Deputy Regional Chief Counsel. Mr. St. Louis earned a B.A. from Baruch
College and a law degree from the New York University School of Law. Previously, he
was a law clerk to a Justice of the New York State Supreme Court, New York County,
Commercial Division and worked in the Compliance Department of a regional
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broker-dealer. He has served on the New York State CLE Board, on committees at the
New York City Bar Association, and on the board of a New York University Law School
alumni association.

Hon. Joseph P. Sullivan

Judge Sullivan, formerly of counsel at the firm of Holland & Knight, LLP, graduated
from St. John’s University, LL.B, and the University of Virginia, School of Law, LL.M.
Prior to joining Holland & Knight, LLP, Judge Sullivan served as Associate Justice of the
Appellate Division, First Judicial Department — January 1, 1978 to February 15, 2000;
January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2007, and served as Presiding Justice of the Appellate
Division, First Judicial Department — February 16, 2000 to December 31, 2001. He also
served as Justice of the Supreme Court of the State of New York, First Judicial
Department, and Judge of the Civil Court of the City of New York. He was nominated
ten times by the Commission on Judicial Nomination for appointment to the Court of
Appeals, including twice for the office of Chief Judge.

Anne C. Vladeck :
Ms. Vladeck is a partner at Vladeck Waldman Elias & Engelhard, P.C., a firm whic
concentrates on representation of individuals in employment matters, including

discrimination, harassment, defamation, and litigation. = She graduated from the
University of Pennsylvania (B.A., magra cum laude, 1975) and Columbia Law School
(I.D., 1978). She is an Adjunct Faculty member at Columbia Law School and previously
taught at Fordham and Cardozo Law Schools. She is a trustee of the Federal Bar Council,
and is on the Executive Committee of the Federal Bar Council Inn of Court
(President-Emeritus). Anne is a Fellow of the American College of Trial Lawyers, and is
on the Board of the Arthur Ashe Institute for Urban Health.

John L. Warden

Mr. Warden is of counsel to the firm of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP where he was a
Partner until 2009 and for many years a member of the firm’s Executive Committee and
head of its Litigation Group. He also serves as an arbitrator and mediator. He is a
graduate of Harvard College and University of Virginia Law School. He is a Life
Member of the American Law Institute and a Fellow of the American College of Trial
Lawyers.

22



Stephen L. Weiner

Mr. Weiner is in private practice in his own firm specializing in complex commercial
litigation and white collar investigations. He is a graduate of Columbia College and also
received his cum laude law degree from Columbia University School of Law. He was
Chair of the New York State Commission of Investigation for over eight years. He is a
member of the Association of the Bar of the City of New York and has been Chair of its
Criminal Justice Council and its Committee on Criminal Justice operations and Budget;
the American Bar Association; and a former member of the Board of Directors of the
Legal Aid Society.

Toby R. Winer

Ms. Winer is currently a Financial Consultant and has served as Interim Chief Financial
Officer for multiple organizations. She has expertise in turning around underperforming
organizations and driving financial and operational improvement. Prior to consulting,
Ms. Winer was the Executive Vice President and CFO of Pace University. Ms. Winer
received her M.B.A from Columbia University and her B.A. in Mathematics at Carnegie
Mellon University. She is a Certified Public Accountant.

Gonzalo S. Zeballos

Mr. Zeballos is a partner at the law firm of Baker & Hostetler, LLP, where he is a
member of the litigation department. His practice focuses on complex commercial
litigation with a specialization in international dispute resolution and arbitration. He is a
graduate of Columbia Law School, where he was a senior editor of the Columbia Law
Review. Mr. Zeballos also holds advanced degrees in History and Latin American Studies
from the University of Chicago.
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THE DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

Complaints. Investigations and Dismissals

Complaints against attorneys, registered at an address in Manhattan or the Bronx, are
investigated and resolved by the Attorney Grievance Committee for the Supreme Court,
Appellate Division, First Judicial Department (AGC). The Chief Attorney of the AGC
manages a staff of over 40 salaried lawyers and non-lawyers (staff). Together with a
volunteer group of lawyers and non-lawyers (collectively referred to as AGC members),
the Chief Attorney’s Office processed 4,005 complaints in 2017.

The disciplinary process usually commences with the filing of a complaint against an
attorney, who is referred to as a “respondent.” Complaints typically come from clients,
but may also come from other attorneys and members of the public at large. The AGC
can also open sua sponte investigations based on information obtained from judicial
opinions, professional journals, referrals from the judiciary, newspaper accounts and
other sources. All disciplinary investigations and proceedings are confidential pursuant to
Judiciary Law 90(10) until the Court publically disciplines a respondent or issues an
unsealing order, upon “good cause being shown.”

Complaints are date-stamped, numbered and entered into the AGC’s database system,
which generates a printout of the respondent’s disciplinary history. They are then
screened by a staff attorney (screening attorney), who makes a preliminary
recommendation as to whether the AGC has jurisdiction, or whether a complaint should
be referred to another public agency or grievance committee. If it appears that there is no
substantial misconduct, but there has been a breakdown of communication between the
lawyer and the client, staff may refer the matter for mediation to a mediation panel of the
New York County Lawyers’ Association, the Association of the Bar of the City of New
York, or the Bronx County Bar Association.

The screening attorney may also recommend rejection of a complaint for any one of
several reasons, e.g., the complaint lacks merit, seeks legal advice, is an attempt to collect
a debt, or involves a fee dispute. In 2002, a mandatory mediation/arbitration program
was instituted to deal with fee disputes in civil and matrimonial matters, where the
amount in dispute is more than $1,000 and less than $50,000.
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If the complaint involves the same substantial and material allegations that will be
decided in pending litigation, the AGC may defer the matter pending resolution of the
litigation, which may result in a judgment binding on the respondent. If the complaint
alleges serious misconduct by an attorney, such as conversion of client funds, the AGC
will not defer investigation.

If it appears from the complaint that a respondent may have engaged in serious
professional misconduct, the screening attorney brings the matter to the attention of the
Chief Attorney for direct assignment to a staff attorney. If the misconduct appears to be
very serious, e.g., conversion of escrow funds, investigation of the matter is expedited.
During the initial screening, a matter may also be directly assigned to a staff attorney
investigating other complaints involving the same respondent.

The Chief Attorney approves all “first screening” closing recommendations made by the
screening attorney. If a matter is not closed following the initial screening, a paralegal
monitors the case and forwards the complaint to the respondent, who is required to file an
answer to the complaint. Thereafter, the paralegal may forward the answer to the
complainant for a reply. The paralegal then prepares a summary of the allegations and
defenses and refers the file to the initial screening attorney who performs a “second
screening” or further evaluation of the complaint, answer and reply. On second
screening, the screening attorney may recommend dismissal of the complaint for a variety
of reasons, or may recommend referral of the matter to a fee dispute arbitrator or to
mediation.

A matter that warrants additional investigation is forwarded by the screening attorney to
the Chief Attorney for review and assignment to a staff attorney. The assigned staff
attorney may obtain further documentation, using subpoenas when necessary, may
interview witnesses, including the complainant, and may question the respondent on the
record and under oath (examination under oath, deposition).

When the investigation is complete, the staff attorney makes a recommendation to one of
two Committees of the AGC members for dismissal, or the imposition of a Letter of
Advisement, an Admonition (which is private discipline), or formal disciplinary
proceedings against the respondent which could result in public discipline. The staff
attorney’s supervisor (a Deputy Chief Attorney) and the Chief Attorney review all
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recommendations before they are submitted to a Committee. The two Committees meet
six times a year on alternate months to vote on the staff’s recommendations. One of the
Committees must approve all post-investigation recommendations by a majority vote of
those present at the monthly meeting (a quorum of two-thirds of the members is required
to conduct business). When matters are dismissed on the merits, the closing letter to the
complainant indicates the complainant’s right to request reconsideration of the dismissal
within 30 days.

Letters of Advisement [22 NYCRR 1240.2(i)]

The AGC issues a Letter of Advisement (Advisement) when an investigation reveals that
a respondent has engaged in conduct requiring comment that, under the facts of the case,
does not warrant the imposition of discipline.  An Advisement is confidential and does
not in itself constitute discipline, but may be considered by the AGC or the Court in
determining the action to be taken or the disciplihe to be imposed upon a subsequent
finding of misconduct.

Letters of Admonition [22 NYCRR 1240.2(b)]

The AGC issues a Letter of Admonition (Admonition) when an investigation reveals that
a respondent has violated the New York Rules of Professional Conduct (Rules'), but not
seriously enough to warrant a public sanction, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.7(d)(2)(v).
For example, an Admonition might be issued if a respondent neglected only one legal
matter and there were mitigating factors.

Although it is private and remains confidential, an Admonition is a finding of
professional misconduct and becomes a part of the respondent's permanent disciplinary
record. The Admonition may be considered in determining the action to be taken or the
discipline to be imposed upon a subsequent finding of misconduct against a respondent.
When the AGC determines to issue an Admonition, the respondent is afforded an
opportunity to make a brief personal appearance before the AGC to seek reconsideration.
After an Admonition is issued, the respondent may file a motion with the Court to vacate
it.

I The Rules, which became effective April 1, 2009, were promulgated by a Joint Order of the
Appellate Divisions of the State of New York, dated December 30, 2008, and signed by the Presiding
Justice of each of the four departments. These Rules replaced the Lawyer’s Code of Professional
Responsibility, previously referred to as the “Disciplinary Rules.”
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Applications to the Appellate Division

Public discipline requires an order of the Court. The AGC applies to the Court by motion
or petition which includes the record of the disciplinary proceedings and the Court action
requested. When the Court decides to impose a public sanction, it issues an order and a
written opinion which is almost always published in the New York Law Journal and is
otherwise public.®> The order imposes a public sanction ranging from a public censure (no
suspension) or short suspension to disbarment (seven year bar from practicing). The '
Court may also impose a private sanction, dismiss a matter or remand it back to the AGC
for further proceedings.

Formal Disciplinary Proceedings [22 NYCRR 1240.7(d)(2)(vi)]
The AGC authorizes a formal disciplinary proceeding when there is probable cause that a

respondent engaged in professional misconduct warranting the imposition of public
discipline, and that such discipline is appropriate to protect the public, maintain the
integrity and honor of the profession, or deter others from committing similar misconduct.

A staff attorney’s recommendation that a formal petition be filed against a respondent
must be based on a demonstration of professional misconduct reviewed by the staff
attorney's supervisor, and approved by the Chief Attorney and the AGC members. Upon
approval, the AGC serves the respondent with a petition in which it requests that the
Court sustain the charges or, if there are factual or legal issues in dispute, to appoint a
Referee to hear the charges.> Within 20 days after service of the respondent’s answer or,
if applicable, a reply, the Committee must file with the Court a statement of disputed and
undisputed facts. Respondent has 20 days to respond. In the alternative, within 30 days
after service of the answer or, if applicable, a reply, the parties may file a joint statement
of disputed and undisputed facts or a statement that the pleadings raise no issue of fact
requiring a hearing, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.8(a)(2). At any time after the filing of
the petition, the parties may file a joint motion with the Court requesting the imposition of

2 If the Court imposes public discipline, the entire record is available for public inspection at the
First Department Committee on Character and Fitness located at 41 Madison Avenue, 26" Floor, New
York, New York 10010.

3 Hearings before Referees are normally closed to the public, except in rare cases when a
respondent waives confidentiality. The Referees conduct hearings like trials, taking testimony and
receiving exhibits in accordance with the rules of evidence. The Referees have broad discretion as to
what is considered relevant and admissible evidence. A transcript is made of the entire proceeding.
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“Discipline by Consent,” in order to avoid a hearing, pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.8(a)(5). The motion must outline the agreed upon discipline to be imposed, which
may include monetary restitution authorized by Judiciary Law §90(6-a), and the
respondent’s affidavit conditionally admitting the acts of professional misconduct.

Under the Court's rules, respondents have the right to appear, to be represented by
counsel, to cross-examine staff witnesses, and to present their own witnesses and exhibits.
The proceedings before the Referee are transcribed, and are conducted in two separate
parts, liability hearing and sanction (mitigation and aggravation evidence) hearing. A
Referee cannot proceed with a sanction hearing until he or she indicates that at least one
charge will be sustained. A Referee makes a finding on the charges shortly after the end
of the liability hearing. The Referee almost always asks the parties to submit memoranda
regarding liability and sanction. When the hearing, liability and sanction, is concluded,
the Referee must file with the Court a written Report and Recommendation containing
findings of facts, conclusions of law and, charges sustained or dismissed, and
recommendation as to sanction (Referee’s Report). The Chief Attorney or the respondent
- may file a motion with the Court to confirm or disaffirm the Referee’s Report. See
NYCRR 1240.8(b).

Collateral Estoppel

Rather than pursue formal charges, the AGC may file a motion with the Court in an
appropriate case applying the doctrine of collateral estoppel, seeking an order finding a
lawyer guilty of violating the Rules solely on the basis of prior civil or criminal court
decisions without a further hearing. The Court may grant such a motion where the
findings and issues in the prior action are identical to the disciplinary issues against a
respondent and where a respondent has had a full and fair opportunity to litigate in the
prior proceeding. In such cases, a hearing is held before a Referee on the issue of
sanction only, and the AGC or the respondent files a motion with the Court to confirm or
disaffirm the Referee’s Report.

Interim Suspensions [22 NYCRR 1240.9]

Under certain circumstances, the Court may suspend a respondent from practice on an
interim basis upon the AGC’s motion. Such a finding may be based upon the
respondent’s default in responding to a petition or subpoena to appear for a formal
interview, the respondent’s admissions under oath of professional misconduct, the
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respondent’s failure to comply with a lawful demand of the Court or the Committee, the
respondent’s willful failure to pay money owed to a client (which debt is demonstrated by
an admission, judgment, or other clear and convincing evidence), or other uncontroverted
evidence of professional misconduct.

Resignations [22 NYCRR 1240.10]

A respondent may apply to resign from the practice of law, while an investigation or
proceeding is pending, by submitting to the Court an application admitting the nature of
the charges or the allegations under investigation. When the matter includes allegations
that the respondent has willfully misappropriated or misapplied money or property in the
practice of law, the respondent must consent to the entry of an order to make monetary
restitution pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(6-a). If the Court accepts the resignation, the
respondent is disbarred from practicing law for seven years pursuant to Judiciary Law

90(2).

Diversion [22 NYCRR 1240.11]

When in defense or as a mitigating factor in an investigation or formal disciplinary
charges, the respondent raises a claim of impairment based on alcohol or substance abuse,
or other mental or physical health issues, the Court, upon application of any person or on
its own motion, may stay the investigation or proceeding and direct the respondent to
complete an appropriate treatment and monitoring program approved by the Court. When
the Court considers diversion to a monitoring program, it takes into account the nature of
the alleged misconduct; whether the alleged misconduct occurred during a time period
when the respondent suffered from the claimed impairment; and, whether diverting the
respondent to a program is in the public interest.

Convictions [22 NYCRR 1240.12]

If an attorney is found guilty of any crime, the attorney must notify the Committee having
jurisdiction pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.7(a)(2), within 30 days. The AGC must file a
motion directly with the Court when an attorney has been convicted of a felony or
“serious crime.” An attorney who is convicted of a felony in New York, or an analogous
felony in another state or federal jurisdiction, ceases to be an attorney by operation of law
pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(4-a) and the AGC must apply to the Court to have the
attorney’s name stricken from the roll of attorneys in New York. In cases where the
Court, on the AGC’s motion, has determined that a lawyer has been convicted of a crime
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which is not analogous to a New York felony, but is a serious crime under New York’s
Judiciary Law 90(4)(d), the Court assigns the case to a Referee to hear the matter.
Thereafter, the AGC or the respondent files a motion with the Court to confirm or
disaffirm the Referee’s Report. Serious crime cases may result in the same range of
sanctions imposed in other formal disciplinary proceedings.

Reciprocal Discipline [22 NYCRR 1240.13]

The AGC is required to file an application with the Court if an attorney has been found
guilty of an ethical violation in another jurisdiction and "reciprocal discipline" is
warranted. An attorney that is subject to the jurisdiction of the First Department pursuant
to 22 NYCRR 1240.7(a)(2), is required to notify the Court and the AGC if discipline is
imposed on the attorney by a foreign jurisdiction. The Court may discipline the attorney
for the misconduct committed in the other jurisdiction unless it finds that the procedure in
the foreign jurisdiction deprived the respondent of due process of law, that there was
insufficient proof that the respondent committed the misconduct, or that the imposition of
discipline would be unjust.

Incapacity [22 NYCRR 1240.14]

If an attorney suffers from a mental disability or condition, alcohol or substance abuse, or
any other condition that renders him/her incapacitated from practicing law, the AGC or
the attorney may apply to the Court for a determination that the attorney is incapacitated
from practicing law. Applications by the attorney must include medical proof
demonstrating incapacity. In such cases, the Court may appoint a medical expert to
examine the attorney and render a report. When the Court finds that an attorney is
incapacitated, it enters an order immediately suspending the attorney from practicing and
may stay the pending disciplinary proceeding or investigation.

Upon application by the AGC that includes a judicial determination that an attorney is in
need of involuntary care or treatment in a facility for the mentally disabled, or is the
subject of an order of incapacity, retention, commitment or treatment pursuant to the
Mental Hygiene Law, the Court may enter an order immediately suspending the attorney
from the practice of law.
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Reinstatements [22 NYCRR 1240.16, 1240.17]

Upon motion of a respondent who has been disbarred or suspended, the Court may issue
an order reinstating such respondent upon a showing, by clear and convincing evidence,
that: the respondent has complied with the order of disbarment, suspension or the order
removing the respondent from the roll of attorneys; the respondent has complied with the
rules of the Court; the respondent has the requisite character and fitness to practice law;
and it would be in the public interest to reinstate the respondent to the practice of law. A
suspended respondent may apply for reinstatement after the expiration of the period of
suspension or as otherwise directed by the Court; except that respondents suspended for a
fixed term of six months or less, may apply for reinstatement 30 days prior to the
expiration of the term of suspension. A disbarred respondent may apply for reinstatement
to practice after the expiration of seven years from the entry of the order of disbarment.
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REPRESENTATIVE CASES

Although the Committee engages in multiple functions in a confidential manner that do
not result in public discipline, a significant portion of what the Committee does becomes
public when the Court acts on motions made by the Committee. In 2017, the Appellate
Division, First Judicial Department, publicly disciplined 69 lawyers as follows: 26
disbarments®, 4 resignations by attorneys facing charges (equivalent to disbarment), 33
suspensions and 6 public censures.

Interim Suspensions
The Court’s rules provide that an attorney may be suspended from the practice of law

pending consideration of charges against the attorney for: (1) a default in responding to
pending charges of professional misconduct or failure to comply with lawful demands
made in connection with an investigation; (2) a substantial admission under oath that the
attorney has committed an act of professional misconduct; (3) other uncontested evidence
of professional misconduct; or (4 ) willful failure to pay money owed to a client
evidenced by a judgment or other clear and convincing evidence.

The most serious misconduct that the Committee deals with involves the theft or
misappropriation of money belonging to clients or held as a fiduciary. The Court has
repeatedly stated that the intentional conversion of money that an attorney holds as a
fiduciary or for a client requires disbarment, except when there are exceptional mitigating
circumstances which are rarely found. Because such misconduct immediately threatens
the public interest, the Committee’s staff attorneys will seek an immediate suspension of
an attorney if there is sufficient evidence to justify the motion. In addition, the
Committee’s staff will seek the suspension of an attorney who fails to cooperate in
answering a complaint or does not comply with lawful demands for information or
records. In 2017, the Court suspended 20 attorneys on an interim basis pending
resolution of the charges against them in the following cases: Matter of Sueann S. Co, 148
AD3d 142; Matter of Scott A. Spencer, 148 AD3d 223; Matter of Paul R. Karan, 149
AD3d 14; Matter of Alexander Perchekly, 149 AD3d 17; Matter of Mark A. Hidalgo, 149

* The 2017 Attorney Discipline Activities Report provided to OCA and the Court lists 24
disbarments. Two attorneys (Matter of Scollar and Matter of Rosenblatr) were stricken from the roll of
attorneys in 2017, but the records were sealed by the Court until 2018.
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AD3d 58; Matter of Carlos Moreno, 149 AD3d 65; Matter of Stephan L. Rosenbaum,
149 AD3d 270; Matter of Aaron Davidson, 150 AD3d 182; Matter of William E. Baroni,
152 AD3d 35; Matter of Evgeny A. Freidman, 152 AD3d 89; Matter of Edward N. Kiss,
152 AD3d 129; Matter of Steven S. Herzberg, 153 AD3d 33; Matter of Edward M. Char,
153 AD3d 39; Matter of W. Marilynn Pierre, 153 AD3d 306; Matter of Nytaino Romulus,
155 AD3d 14; Matter of Richard B. Kelly, 155 AD3d 25; Matter of Joshua A. Messian,
155 AD3d 57; Matter of Brian D. Thomas, 155 AD3d 61; Matter of Claude Castro, 155
AD3d 102, and, Matter of Pincus David Carlebach, 156 AD3d 44. '

Disbarments

In 2017, the First Department disbarred five attorneys (three after formal charges, one
following a petition for reciprocal discipline, and one following a petition to disbar after
the attorney engaged in the practice of law while under suspension): Matter of
Christopher W. Hyde, 148 AD3d 9; Matter of Trevor A. Reid, 149 AD3d 114; Matter of
Mark A. Bloomberg, 154 AD3d 75; Matter of Alex H. Pierre, 154 AD3d 194; and, Matter
of Mitchel Tarter, 156 AD3D 157.

Further, the First Department, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), disbarred 11 interimly
suspended attorneys who failed to apply in writing to the Committee or Court to request a
hearing, or reinstatement, within six months of the interim suspension: Matter of Yoorok
Jung, 148 AD3d 1; Matter of Paul H. Jones, 148 AD3d 113; Matter of Brian W. Raum,
152 AD3d 43; Matter of Mikhail A. Shedrinsky, 152 AD3d 132; Matter of Marjorie
Modestil, 154 AD3d 37; Matter of Robert A. Evans, 154 AD3d 187; Matter of Brian
King, 154 AD3d 191; Matter of Paul R. Karan, 155 AD3d 61; Matter of Richard B.
Kelly, 155 AD3d 306; Matter of William Amtwi, 157 AD3d 55; and, Matter of Mark A.
Hidalgo, 158 AD3d 1.

Finally, the First Department granted 10 motions to strike the names of attorneys
convicted of felonies: Matter of David J. Boden, 146 AD3d 69; Matter of Jeffrey L.
Lessoff, 150 AD3d 159; Matter of Loreto S. Kudera, 150 AD3d 173; Matter of Douglas
Kuber, 151 AD3d 124; Matter of Fengling Liu, 153 AD3d 45; Matter of Anthony A.
Pastor, 154 AD3d 184; Matter of Diana S. Downing, 155 AD3d 106; Matter of William
C. Doonan, 157 AD3d 44; Matter of Allison Scollar, 159 AD3d 59; and, Matter of
Michael J. Rosenblatt, 159 AD3d 82.
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Disciplinary Resignations

The Court permitted an attorney to resign from the bar during an investigation by the
Committee, or after the filing of charges, if the attorney submitted an affidavit pursuant to
22 NYCRR 1240.10, acknowledging that the attorney knows the nature of potential
charges and cannot defend against them. A resignation pending investigation or
disciplinary proceeding is the equivalent of disbarment. In 2017, the First Department
accepted resignations under 22 NYCRR 1240.10 from four attorneys and ordered their
names stricken from the roll of attorneys: Matter of Wesley G. Wallen, 149 AD3d 235,
Matter of Siddharth G. Dubal, 151 AD3d 34; Matter of Michael J. Moshan, 153 AD3d
312; and, Matter of Alexander Perchekly, 157 AD3d 67.

Suspensions as Discipline
A suspension can be ordered by the Court as discipline and also to protect the public. The

Court imposes suspension for conviction of “serious crimes,” as defined in the Judiciary
Law 90(4)(d), for reciprocal discipline and for misconduct. In 2017, the Court suspended
12 attorneys for periods ranging from three months to four years: Matter of Scott B. Gilly,
149 AD3d 230; Matter of Steven C. Bartley, 151 AD3d 1; Matter of Theophilus F.
Maranga, 151 AD3d 31; Matter of Darrell Andrew Marshall, 153 AD3d 1; Matter of
Steven C. Brodsky, 153 AD3d 52; Matter of Steven J. Kwestel, 154 AD3d 29; Matter of
Jay B. Zucker, 154 AD3d 29; Matter of Natalia A. Sishodia, 154 AD3d 123; Matter of
John L. Weichsel, 154 AD3d 207; Matter of Carlos Moreno, 156 AD3d 51; Matter of
Stuart I. Rich, 157 AD3d 73; and, Matter of Nicholas A. Penkovsky, 159 AD3d 1.

Suspensions for Medical Disability

The Court’s rules provide that an attorney may be suspended if judicially declared
incompetent or if the Court concludes that the attorney is incapacitated from continuing to
practice law. Pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.14(b), any pending disciplinary proceedings
against the attorney shall be held in abeyance after the Court makes a determination of the
attorney’s incapacity to continue the practice of law. In 2017, the Court suspended one
attorney on these grounds: Matter of Simone R. Coley, 150 AD3d 1.

Public Censures

The least severe form of public discipline that the Court may impose is a censure (see 22
NYCRR 1240.2[c]). In 2017, the First Department issued public censures in six cases:
Matter of Mark D. Bogard, 149 AD3d 224; Matter of Michael J. Aviles, 152 AD3d 27,
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Matter of Joel M. Gluck, 153 AD3d 301; Matter of Nicholas Fitzgerald, 153 AD3d 315;
Matter of George P. Stasiuk, 154 AD3d 20; and, Matter of Robert S. Meloni, 154 AD3d

67.

Reinstatements

Section 90 of the Judiciary Law and Court Rule 22 NYCRR 603.14 (rescinded October 1,
2016), and 22 NYCRR 1240.16 (effective October 1, 2016), permit attorneys to apply for
reinstatement to the practice of law after a period of suspension, or seven years after
disbarment. Attorneys who are suspended for six months or less, may file an application
for reinstatement pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.16(d). An attorney who has been
suspended for a period of more than six months may apply to the Court for reinstatement
upon the expiration of the period of suspension. An attorney who has been disbarred, or
stricken from the roll of attorneys, may not apply for reinstatement until the expiration of
seven years from the effective date of disbarment. In 2017, the Court granted 10 petitions
for reinstatement and denied six.

Dishonored Check Investigations

Staff Attorney Kevin P. Culley handles the screening of all complaints which the
Committee receives pursuant to the dishonored check reporting rules under 22 NYCRR
1300. Mr. Culley coordinates all necessary contacts with banking institutions and the
Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection in processing the dishonored check matters. Mr.
Culley also supervises staff investigators in obtaining required bookkeeping records and
recommends disposition of matters or further investigation and action by staff attorneys.
He has spoken at Continuing Legal Education courses on the subject of proper escrow

account management.

Immigration Complaints

Staff Attorney Jun Hwa Lee handles the initial screening of all immigration matters. Ms.
Lee also coordinates our efforts with many other agencies and prosecutors who target
immigration fraud. Further, Ms. Lee supervises the Committee’s use of immigration
Special Counsel approved by the Court to assist the Committee. Ms. Lee participates in a
task force aimed at Protecting Immigrants of New York (PINK), and speaks before
various groups, including community organizations and federal judges interested, or
involved, in immigration matters.

35



PUBLIC DISCIPLINE CASES

Several of the cases prosecuted by staff attorneys that became a matter of public record in
2017 are reviewed below:

Matter of Nytaino Romulus, 155 AD3d 14 (1* Dept 2017)
The Court interimly suspended Romulus for his failure to appear or cooperate with the
AGC's investigation following allegations into Romulus's neglect of multiple personal
injury and related matters. (Staff Attorney Sinan Aydiner)

Matter of Douglas Kuber, 151 AD3d 124 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court disbarred Kuber on the basis of his conviction for the federal crimes of
Conspiracy to Commit Wire Fraud and Scheme to Defraud, both felonies, in the United
States District Court for the District of Maryland. The Court agreed with the AGC's
contention that these felonies "were essentially similar to the New York State felony of
scheme to defraud in the first degree under Penal Law §190.65(1) (b)" and warranted
disbarment. (Staff Attorney Sinan Aydiner)

Matter of Loreto S. Kudera, 150 AD3d 173 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court disbarred Kudera on the basis of his conviction of the federal crime of
Conspiracy to Commit Immigration Fraud, a felony, in the United States District Court
for the District of Vermont. The Court agreed with the AGC's contention that "disbarment
under Judiciary Law §90(4)(b) is appropriate because respondent's federal conviction for
conspiracy to commit immigration fraud through the making of material false statements
is essentially similar to the New York felony of offering a false statement for filing in the
first degree, in violation of Penal Law §175.35." (Staff Attorney Sinan Aydiner)

Matter of Mark D. Bogard, 149 AD3d 224 (1* Dept 2017)

Bogard was reciprocally censured based on an order of public reprimand in New Jersey
for his gross neglect and related misconduct in handling a foreclosure matter which
resulted in his clients' house being sold at a sheriff's sale. On August 31, 2012, Bogard's
clients told him that a judgment in foreclosure had been entered against them and a
sheriff's sale was scheduled to take place in twelve days. On September 4, 2012, the
clients paid Bogard $2,135 to defend the foreclosure. Bogard, however, took no action
until the day before the sale, when he purportedly called the sheriff's office and was
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informed that only the homeowners could apply for an adjournment of the sale, and not
even his personal appearance as their attorney would suffice. Bogard did not ask to speak
to a supervisor or to the Sheriff, submitted nothing in writing to the Sheriff's Office and
failed to memorialize this purported telephone conversation. Neither Bogard nor anyone
from the firm attended the sale because the Sheriff's Office allegedly told him that it
would not help. A representative from the Sheriff's Office testified, however, that a
homeowner's attorney could request an adjournment of a sale and that two-week
adjournments were routinely granted. The day prior to the sale, Bogard tried to reach the
client by telephone to no avail but sent an email informing her that she had to go in
person to the Sheriff's sale the next day in order to stop it. Unbeknownst to Bogard, the
clients were on vacation in Mexico, but received the email and tried to call him on his
direct line. He did answer or return the call. The clients did try to call the law firm's office
before traveling to Mexico to inquire about the status of the Sheriff's sale and whether it
was all right to leave for vacation, but received no reply to their messages. The New
Jersey Supreme Court agreed with the Disciplinary Review Board and the District Ethics
Committee, which found after a hearing, that Bogard engaged in gross neglect for his
failure to make a sufficient effort to stop the Sheriff's sale and recommended that he be
reprimanded. Noting that Bogard raised no defenses to reciprocal discipline, the Court
found that none apply, and that public censure was appropriate considering precedent
involving similar misconduct. (Staff Attorney Kevin P. Culley)

Matter of Nicholas Penkovsky, 159 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2017)

Penkovsky was charged with 10 counts of professional misconduct arising from his
neglect of a client's copyright infringement matter, failure to communicate with his client
and misleading the client about the status of the case. He also disregarded his obligations
to pay monetary judgments owed for court reporting and appellate printing services, law
student loans and his landlord for unpaid office rent. During the litigation for nonpayment
of rent, Penkovsky engaged in conduct that adversely reflected on his fitness as a lawyer
for having served his landlord's attorneys with a dismissal motion that he never filed with
the Court, deliberately causing his adversary to waste time and resources in opposing the
motion. Penkovsky also failed to file tax returns or pay taxes from 2009 through 2015
and made statements which misled the AGC to believe that filing extensions granted by
the Internal Revenue Service remained in effect. In mitigation, Penkovsky suffered from
prolonged financial hardship stemming from an unsuccessful legal career, a difficult
marriage which ended in a bitter divorce and custody dispute, depression and the loss of
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his marital residence due to his poor financial circumstances. He has also confronted his
financial and emotional problems and taken steps to improve himself. In aggravation,
Penkovsky was previously admonished for his protracted delay in paying a court-imposed
sanction. Finding that his actions "were serious enough that future clients should be on
notice of them," the Court rejected Penkovsky’s request for an admonition, disaffirmed
the Referee's recommendation of public censure and determined that a three-month
suspension was appropriate given the nature of the misconduct, and the aggravating and
mitigating circumstances presented. (Staff Attorney Kevin P. Culley)

Matter of Mitchel Tarter, 156 AD3d 157 (1* Dept 2017)

Tarter was charged with 11 counts of professional misconduct arising from his use of
non-attorney "brokers" to induce 50 distressed homeowners to pay him advance legal fees
totaling more than $190,000 to engage in federal mass joinder litigation seeking to
modify their mortgage obligations and assert other claims against their lenders, but
performed no meaningful work for those fees, which he failed to refund, and used sham
business entities to improperly split the fees with the non-attorney mortgage brokers who
referred the clients to him. Tarter solicited his clients through telemarketing, mass
mailings and the internet, with false representations that mass-joinder litigation would
likely result in reduced mortgage interest rates, principal loan balances or both, even
though he had no prior experience litigating such matters, but offered to commence
litigation in an attempt to circumvent federal regulations that prohibited charging
homeowners advanced fees for mortgage assistance relief services. Tarter admitted that
his motivation throughout the period of misconduct was for material gain so that he could
maintain his lifestyle and drug and alcohol addictions. The Court rejected the Referee's
recommended three-year suspension and disbarred Tarter. The Court found Tarter’s
mitigation, e.g., his full cooperation with the AGC, his acceptance of responsibility and
sincere remorse, although impressive, was outweighed by the "affirmative, ongoing,
egregious, and detrimental" nature of his misconduct, and his decision to continue to
engage in the fraudulent scheme even after he was aware that the first mass-joinder
litigation had been dismissed, and that further actions would be unavailing to his clients.
(Staff Attorney Kevin P. Culley)

Matter of Alexander Perchekly, 157 AD3d 67 (1* Dept 2017)
Perchekly was interimly suspended based on uncontroverted evidence of his misconduct
including conversion. (149 AD3d 17) Perchekly resigned from the practice of law after
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engaging in the unauthorized practice of law after his suspension, and failing to adhere to
the rules for suspended attorneys. (Staff Attorney Sherine F. Cummings)

Matter of George Stasiuk, 154 AD3d 20 (1* Dept 2017)

Stasiuk, a suspended attorney (suspended for failure to pay biennial dues), was also
publicly censured by this Court as a reciprocal discipline for neglect, failing to
communicate with clients and failing to cooperate with the disciplinary authorities in New
Jersey. The Court noted that, as a consequence of failing to comply with a portion of the
New Jersey Supreme Court's order he was subsequently suspended in New Jersey, but our
Court did not impose a reciprocal suspension here since Stasiuk was already under
suspension in New York. (Staff Attorney Sherine F. Cummings)

Matter of Diana S. Downing, 155 AD3d 106 (1* Dept 2017)

Downing was convicted, upon her 2010 guilty plea, of grand larceny in the third degree, a
class D felony, welfare fraud in the third degree, a class D felony, and offering a false
instrument for filing in the first degree, a class E felony, in full satisfaction of the charges
pending against her. Downing claimed that she managed a building in Manhattan in
exchange for free rent when in fact she owned the building, as well as the adjacent
building; she received rental income from both buildings. Downing was charged with
illicitly receiving $38,161.84 in public health insurance benefits between 2005 and 2008.
Downing was sentenced to five years probation on each count to run concurrently and a
$5,000 fine, which she paid on the day of sentencing. Downing advised the sentencing
court that she had already made restitution in the amount of $18,104, which included
interest. Nine months after sentencing, upon Downing’s application, her earlier plea and
sentence were vacated. Downing then re-entered the same guilty pleas and was
resentenced to a conditional discharge so she could spend time with her child outside the
country. Notwithstanding the requirement of self-reporting within 30 days of conviction
under Judiciary Law §90(4)(c), Downing never troubled to advise the Court of her
conviction. Rather, the AGC learned about the conviction in 2016 and only by
happenstance. On the AGC’s motion, the Court disbarred Downing and ordered her name
struck from the roll of attorneys and counselors-at-law, effective nunc pro tunc to the day
Downing first pled guilty in 2010. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Robert Anthony Evans, 154 AD3d 187 (1% Dept 2017)
Evans proved selective and sporadic in his cooperation with one AGC investigation into
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apparent shortfalls in his IOLA account after his receiving a $225,000 down payment in
connection with the sale of his clients' apartment and a subsequent AGC investigation
into alleged conversion of $139,000 in escrowed funds belonging to another client.
Though initially Evans was cooperative in the former investigation, Evans persistently
refused to follow-up by filling out a Excel spreadsheet necessary for analysis of his IOLA
account usage. As to the second investigation, Evans refused to even provide the AGC an
answer to the initiating complaint. In the summer of 2016, the Court suspended Evans for
his failure to cooperate. Within the following six months, Evans took no steps to respond
to or appear before the AGC. The AGC thus moved for his disbarment. Evans opposed
through an untimely affidavit in opposition in which he advanced conclusory, and
incredible defenses. Evans claimed his run for Congress had deprived him of the time and
resources necessary to cooperate with the AGC and seek reinstatement, despite contrary
Federal Election Commission documents. More, Evans still failed to provide an answer to
the unanswered complaint. The Court disbarred Evans and struck his name from the roll
of attorneys and counselors-at-law. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Brian W. Raum, 152 AD3d 43 (1* Dept 2017) '

In June 2016, the Court suspended Raum for his failure to cooperate in an AGC
investigation. Raum, who lived in Arizona but was admitted in the First Department, had
faced ten complaints, four of which he never answered. More, when subpoenaed for
examination under oath, Raum had failed to appear or explain his failure to appear.
Raum, served with notice of entry by certified and ordinary post at his home address in
Arizona, then let six months pass after his suspension without seeking reinstatement or
otherwise contacting the AGC. The AGC thus moved for Raum’s disbarment, serving
Raum as before but also serving him by email. Raum ignored the motion to disbar as he
had ignored the motion to suspend. The Court disbarred Raum; his name was struck from
the roll of attorneys and counselors-at-law. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)

Matter of Scott A. Spencer, 148 AD3d 223 (1* Dept 2017)

Spencer came under AGC investigation after his former wife complained of his willful
defiance of a Florida court order that he pay child support. Spencer appeared for an
examination under oath. But thereafter he failed to appear for follow-up examination,
though so directed by subpoena, or otherwise respond to extensive AGC efforts to contact
him. In early 2017, the Court suspended Spencer. (Staff Attorney Kevin M. Doyle)
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Matter of Yoo Rok Jung, 148 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court had suspended Jung for an indefinite period on October 6, 2015 for failing to
cooperate with the AGC's investigation into two complaints. [132 AD3d 236 (1** Dept
2015)] When Jung failed to appear or apply in writing for reinstatement within six months
of her suspension, the AGC moved to disbar her, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b),
which motion was granted by order dated January 24, 2017. (Special Trial Attorney
Jeremy S. Garber)

Matter of D. Andrew Marshall, 153 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2017)

Marshall had informed a client and the AGC that her case against the City of New York
had settled, requested her to sign a release, and ultimately gave her a check for her share
of the settlement. He also prepared and filed with OCA a closing statement, setting forth
the terms of the settlement with the City. In fact, Marshall had missed an early deadline
for filing a Notice of Claim, and when the City eventually realized this, they withdrew
their settlement offer. There was no settlement. All of the documents Marshall provided
to his client and the AGC referring to the purported settlement had been fabricated by him
to conceal his initial neglect. The Court suspended Marshall for three months, finding not
only that he had neglected his client’s legal matter, but that he had also engaged in
dishonest conduct that was prejudicial to the administration of justice and that adversely
reflected on his fitness as a lawyer. (Special Trial Attorney Jeremy S. Garber)

Matter of Sueanne S. Co, 148 AD3d 142 (1* Dept 2017)

In March 2016, out of concern, a justice of the Supreme Court reported to the AGC that
he was constrained to declare a mistrial because of the conduct of Sueanne Co who was
representing a criminal defendant during a five week criminal trial. The conduct was
indicative of mental health issues. Shortly after receiving the justice's letter, the AGC
wrote to Co and requested that she submit a written answer explaining what happened
during the trial. Between April 18 and June 17, by phone, Co requested five extensions,
which the AGC granted. But when the AGC did not receive a written submission by June
22, 2016, the AGC subpoenaed Co to appear for an examination under oath. At her
deposition, Co agreed to submit a written answer by August 1, 2016 and to authorize the
AGC to speak with her psychiatrist. She did not. On August 2, Co requested an
adjournment to comply with the AGC's directives. The AGC gave her the adjournment
and two more after that, but as of September 2016, Co had not submitted a proper written
response, nor had she authorized the AGC to speak with her doctor. The AGC moved for
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an order interimly suspending Co for her failure to cooperate with the AGC's
investigation, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(3), or in the alternative for an order
imposing an indefinite medical suspension, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.14(b). By order
dated February 21, 2017, the Court interimly suspended Co without prejudice to convert
the suspension to a medical suspension, if she were so advised. (Deputy Chief Attorney
Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Joel M. Gluck, 153 AD3d 301 (1" Dept 2017)

By decision and order dated July 15, 2015, the Committee on Grievance of the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York (COG), publicly reprimanded
Joel Gluck. Gluck did not timely report the federal sanction to the AGC or to the Court.
Eventually, however, in November 2016, Gluck reported the discipline to the Grievance
Committee in the Second Department where he practiced until 2014. In December 2016,
the Second Department forwarded the decision and order to the AGC. The COG publicly
reprimanded respondent for an extensive pattern of disregarding court orders, failing to
appropriately communicate with clients and the Court and delaying litigation to the
detriment of the parties, in violation of Rule 1.1 (competence); Rule 1.3(diligence);
Rule 1.4 (communication); Rule 3.2 (delay of litigation); Rule 3.3 (conduct before a
tribunal); Rule 3.4 (fairness to opposing counsel); and Rule 8.4 (fitness) of the New York
Rules of Professional Conduct. Although the COG determined that the sheer number of
times Gluck engaged in misconduct warranted a suspension, it limited sanction to a public
reprimand in light of his financial struggles, his lack of disciplinary history and his
willingness to represent clients for little or no remuneration. Pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.13, the AGC moved for an order finding that Gluck had been disciplined by a
foreign jurisdiction, and directing him to demonstrate to this Court why discipline should
not be imposed in New York for the underlying misconduct. In accordance with the
Court's general rule in disciplinary matters to give significant weight to the jurisdiction in
which the misconduct occurred, and because a censure (equivalent to the federal public
reprimand) comports with First Department precedent under similar circumstances, by
order August 8, 2017, the Court publicly censured Glick. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi
F. Goldstein)

Matter of Christopher W. Hyde, 148 AD3d 9 (1* Dept 2017)
By order dated February 5, 2008, the Court suspended Christopher W. Hyde for failure to
file biennial attorney registration statements and pay attendant fees. In 2011, an attorney
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who was unaware of Hyde's suspension retained him to effectuate an infant compromise
order in connection with the settlement of a personal injury matter. Over the course of the
next four years, Hyde drafted and filed pleadings and appeared in Court for the
unsuspecting attorney. In October 2015, the attorney learned for the first time, Hyde's
status and immediately advised the AGC. The AGC initially had difficulty locating Hyde,
but in December 2015, the AGC sent Hyde a copy of the referring attorney's submission
and directed Hyde to respond. Between February and June 2016, Hyde repeatedly asked
for extensions of time to respond, but he never respond to the AGC. In September 2016, -
the AGC moved to have Hyde disbarred for engaging in the unauthorized practice of law.
By order dated, January 5, 2017, the Court disbarred Hyde. (Deputy Chief Attorney
Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Edward N. Kiss, 152 AD3d 129 (1* Dept 2017)

In June 2016, a former client of Edward Kiss filed a complaint with the AGC alleging
that, while he was incarcerated, Kiss converted approximately $50,000 from a trust of
which he was a beneficiary after he gave Kiss Power of Attorney (POA) over the account.
The AGC was not able to prove that Kiss took $50,000, but bank records which the AGC
subpoenaed showed that on August 10, 2012, Kiss withdrew $7,500 from the POA
account and deposited it directly into his personal account, and on July10, 2015, he took
$20,000 and deposited it directly into his personal account. When asked at his
examination under oath in January 2017 to explain the two transactions, Kiss invoked his
Fifth Amendment right and refused to answer. The Court found that the documentary
evidence, along with the negative inference allowed to be drawn from Kiss's invocation
of his Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination, was uncontroverted proof
that Kiss had converted $27,500, and by order dated July 6, 2017, immediately suspended
him. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Joshua A. Messian, 155 AD3d 57 (1* Dept 2017)

Between February and April 2016, the Lawyers’ Fund for Client Protection forwarded to
the AGC four reports concerning dishonored checks from Joshua Messian's JOLA
account. At the time, Messian was practicing real estate law. The AGC wrote to Messian
each time it received notification from the Lawyer's Fund to explain the cause of the
dishonored checks. Messian did not respond. The AGC then learned that Messian had
relocated to California, where his family lives, and had entered into a rehabilitation
facility in May 2016 to address his substance abuse problem. In December 2016, Messian
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completed his in-patient treatment. In April 2017, the AGC deposed Messian and
confronted him with bank records for his IOLA account which it had subpoenaed.
Messian testified to converting real estate deposits in excess of $200,000, some of it
incrementally, and falsifying closing statements on property to conceal his conversion.
With the financial help of his father, to whom he disclosed his drug addiction, Messian
was able to replace the money he misappropriated before the closings. As of the date of
the deposition, unbeknownst to the estate of one client, Messian still owed it $50,000.
That money was replaced shortly after the deposition. By order dated October 31, 2017,
pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(2), the Court immediately suspended Messian on the
basis of his admissions that he committed acts of professional misconduct, namely
conversion, which immediately threatened the public interest. (Deputy Chief Attorney
Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Moshan, 153 AD3d 312 (1* Dept 2017)

Michael J. Moshan engaged in a pattern of transferring client and third-party trust funds
to a savings account and improperly retaining the interest on those funds that should have
gone to the Lawyer's Fund for Client Protection. The AGC opened an investigation into
Moshan's misconduct as did the Manhattan D.A. Moshan was scheduled to plead guilty
on May 2, 2017, to one count of scheme to defraud in the second degree, a class A
misdemeanor, based on the misconduct. One of the conditions of his plea was that he
agreed to voluntarily resign from the practice of law. So on May 1, 2017, Moshan filed an
affidavit of resignation in the First Department, compliant with 22 NYCRR 1240.10, in
which he acknowledged that he was the subject of an investigation by the AGC regarding
his misconduct, and that he could not successfully defend against the allegations. The
AGC did not oppose the resignation, and the Court accepted it and struck Moshan's name
from the roll of attorneys by order dated August 8, 2017. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi
F. Goldstein)

Matter of Stephan L. Rosenbaum, 149 AD3d 270 (1* Dept 2017)

By order dated November 20, 2013, the Court suspended Stephan L. Rosenbaum from the
practice of law for failure to file biennial attorney registration statements and pay
attendant fees. In October 2015, the AGC received a complaint from a 93 year old woman
who was Rosenbaum’s long time client, and who had lent Rosenbaum $120,000. The fact
that Rosenbaum procured the loan without the safeguards imposed by Rule 1.8, was bad
enough, but then he returned only $20,000 of the $120,000 loan and did not satisfy the
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judgment the client obtained for the remaining $100,000. At his examination under oath
before the AGC, Rosenbaum acknowledged representing the client after November 2013
but claimed he did not learn of his suspension until the Spring of 2016. He admitted
practicing law "a little" after learning of his suspension. The AGC moved to disbar
Rosenbaum for engaging in the unauthorized practice of law, or in the alternative, to
suspend him interimly, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a), on the basis of his willful
failure to repay the money he owed his client as evidenced by the judgment. The Court
declined to disbar Rosenbaum for the unauthorized practice of law because the
suspension was for failure to register, and determined that since Rosenbaum disputed that
his failure to repay was willful, it was not the basis for an interim suspension. However,
by order dated March 28, 2017, the Court continued Rosenbaum's suspension until
proceedings were completed. (Deputy Chief Attorney Naomi F. Goldstein)

Matter of Mark A. Bloomberg, 154 AD3d 75 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court disbarred Bloomberg for his intentional conversion of more than $200,000 in
connection with three separate client matters over several years. Bloomberg violated
Rules 1.15(a) and 8.4(c) by misappropriating and intentionally converting funds and he
failed to keep proper IOLA account records in violation of Rule 1.15(d)(i) and (ii) and
8.4(h). (Staff Attorney Jun Hwa Lee)

Matter of Paul H. Jones, 148 AD3d 113 (1st Dept 2017)

The Court disbarred Jones pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(h), for failing to respond to or
appear for further investigatory or disciplinary proceedings within six months from the
date of the suspension order of April 12, 2016. On April 12, 2016, Jones was suspended
for failure to maintain his attorney registration and failure to cooperate with an AGC
investigation of a client complaint alleging that he failed to provide competent legal
services and mistreated his client. Jones was notified that "an attorney who is suspended
and who has not appeared or applied to the AGC or the Court for a hearing or
reinstatement for six months from the date of the order of suspension may be disbarred
without further notice." (Staff Attorney Jun Hwa Lee)

Matter of Fengling Liu, 153 AD3d 45 (1% Dept 2017)

The Court disbarred Liu pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(4)(a) and (b) and 22 NYCRR
1240.12(c)(1) nunc pro tunc to April 14, 2014. On April 4, 2014, after a jury trial, the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York found Liu guilty of
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conspiracy to commit immigration fraud in violation of 18 USC §371, a felony. (Staff
Attorney Jun Hwa Lee)

Matter of Theophilus Maranga, 151 AD3d 31 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court suspended Maranga for two years for neglect that involved immigration clients
who were "in serious jeopardy of being deported.” The Court considered Maranga’s
failure to accept any responsibility for his wrongdoing and his prior disciplinary history
that involved similar misconduct. (Staff Attorney Jun Hwa Lee)

Matter of Paul R. Karan, 155 AD3d 61 (1* Dept 2017)

Karan was suspended on an interim basis, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(5), based on
uncontroverted evidence of his misappropriation of at least $1.3 million from nine estate
and trust accounts. (149 AD3d 14) Karan was disbarred pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.9(b) because, for more than six months after his February 23, 2017 interim
suspension, he neither responded to, nor appeared for, further investigatory or disciplinary
proceedings. (Deputy Chief Attorney Vitaly Lipkansky)

Matter of Trevor A. Reid, 149 AD3d 114 (1st Dept 2017)

Reid was disbarred upon findings that he misused his attorney escrow account to conceal
and shield his personal funds from levy by tax authorities, failed to cooperate with the
AGC, and testified falsely before the AGC. Reid failed to appear at the hearing before the
Referee and for the Hearing Panel proceeding despite receiving sufficient notice thereof
from the AGC. (Deputy Chief Attorney Vitaly Lipkansky)

Matter of Brian D. Thomas, 155 AD3d 61 (1* Dept 2017)

Thomas was suspended on an interim basis pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(1), and (3)
because he failed to respond to the AGC's investigative requests and to appear for an
examination under oath pursuant to judicial subpoena. Thomas defaulted in his response
to the AGC's suspension motion. (Deputy Chief Attorney Vitaly Lipkansky)

Matter of Wesley G. Wallen, 149 AD3d 235 (1* Dept 2017)

On March 28, 2017, the Court granted the AGC's motion pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.10
accepting Wallen’s affidavit of resignation and striking his name from the roll of
attorneys. In sum, Wallen acknowledged he could not defend himself against the
complaint being investigated by the AGC of professional misconduct against him. He
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acknowledged that he misappropriated and converted client funds held in his escrow
account in connection with a real estate transaction in the amount of $4,627 for his own
personal use, without permission or authorization from the client. Restitution was not
applicable here because Wallen fully returned the client funds. (Staff Attorney Norma I.

Lopez)

Matter of William Antwi, 157 AD3d 55 (1* Dept 2017)

In 2015, the Court issued an order immediately suspending Antwi from the practice of
law based upon his lack of cooperation with the AGC's investigation. In 2017, pursuant
to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), the Court granted the AGC's motion for disbarment on the
grounds that more than six months had elapsed since the date of the Court's order of
suspension, and Antwi had failed to respond or appear for further investigatory or
disciplinary proceedings. (Staff Attorney Norma I. Melendez)

Matter of Steven C. Bartley, 151 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2017)

In 2016, the AGC brought charges against Bartley based upon complaints from three
clients, and his failure to pay State and Federal income taxes for five years. The Court
affirmed the Referee's findings of fact and conclusions of law finding that Bartley
violated, inter alia, rules 1.1(a) (failure to provide competent representation); 1.3(a) (a
lawyer shall act with reasonable diligence and promptness in representing a client); 1.3(b)
(a lawyer shall not neglect a legal matter); 1.4(a)(3) (a lawyer shall keep a client
reasonably informed about the status of the matter). The Court agreed with the Referee's
recommendation of a three month suspension, finding that it appropriately balances
Bartley’s acceptance of responsibility for his misconduct and cooperation with the AGC,
along with his assertion that much of his practice was devoted to pro bono work, against
his violation of multiple Rules of Professional Conduct after previously receiving two
admonitions, and his admitted tax delinquency. (Staff Attorney Norma I. Melendez)

Matter of Jeffrey L. Lessoff, 150 AD3d 159 (1* Dept 2017)

Lessoff was interimly suspended in 2016 for failure to cooperate with the AGC's
investigation of four complaints alleging conversion and/or misappropriation of client
settlement funds, commingling of client and personal funds, improper cash withdrawals
from his IOLA account, and uncontroverted evidence of misappropriation of client funds.
[142 AD3d 107 (1* Dept 2016)] On July 28, 2016, Lessoff pleaded guilty to grand
larceny in the second degree, in violation of Penal Law 155.40 (1), a class C felony and
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other charges. On May 9, 2017, the Court granted the AGC's motion for an order,
pursuant to Judiciary Law 90(4) (b), striking Lessoff’s name from the roll of attorneys
because of the automatic disbarment that inured upon his conviction of a felony. (Staff
Attorney Norma I. Melendez)

Matter of Edward M. Char, 153 AD3d 39 (1* Dept 2017)

Char was interimly suspended for failing to cooperate with the AGC's investigation of
neglect of an appellate matter, neglect and conversion in an estate matter, and dishonored
checks drawn against his law firm's IOLA account. Despite repeatedly swearing under
oath that he submitted multiple answers and provided escrow records to the AGC, none
were received. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Simone R. Coley, 150 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court medically suspended Coley based on her medical suspension in Connecticut.
Although Coley failed to cooperate with the AGC and failed to provide medical records
for a medical suspension, the Court nevertheless determined that it should fully credit the
Connecticut court's determination that Coley was incapacitated from continuing to
practice law after reviewing her medical records. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Steven S. Herzberg, 153 AD3d 33 (1* Dept 2017)

Herzberg was the law partner of Edward M. Char in the law firm of Char & Herzberg.
After multiple dishonored checks were drawn on the firm's IOLA account, and after
Char's refusal to provide escrow records to the AGC, the AGC sought answers from
Herzberg and requested escrow records from him. Herzberg failed to produce any bank
records, citing that Char was in possession of the escrow records. Herzberg was
subpoenaed to appear for an Examination Under Oath and to produce escrow records.
Herzberg sought an adjournment, but was told that the request had to be in writing, and
that his production of escrow records was still required under the original date. Herzberg
failed to submit an adjournment request in writing, and only produced escrow records
outside of the audited period. The Court found that his failure to produce the requested
records, submit an answer, or appear for an Examination Under Oath constituted
professional misconduct immediately threatening the public interest, which warranted
suspension. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)
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Matter of Richard B. Kelly, 155 AD3d 25 (1* Dept 2017)

Kelly was suspended for his failure to cooperate with the AGC's investigation concerning
an open bench warrant issued in 2013 against him for failing to fulfill a Pre-trial
Intervention program ordered after an indictment in New Jersey for possession of a
controlled substance. (148 AD3d 129) The pretrial intervention program required Kelly
to perform community service, and upon its completion, the indictment would be
dismissed. Initially, the AGC admonished him for his conduct leading to his arrest, and
for violating the program terms, leading to the bench warrant. The AGC further ordered
Kelly to clear the open bench warrant. When Kelly failed to do so, a sua sponte
investigation was commenced. Kelly did not cooperate with the AGC in the sua sponte
investigation, resulting in his interim suspension, and then his disbarment pursuant to 22
NYCRR 1240.9(b). (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Alex H. Pierre, 154 AD3d 194 (1* Dept 2017)

In 2005, Pierre was suspended by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania for three years.
Pierre did not report this to the AGC until 2017, at which point he was disbarred in New
" York in a reciprocal proceeding. The Pennsylvania disciplinary matter consisted of two
charged cases. The first set of charges involved neglect and misrepresentation involving
a client in a personal injury matter, unlawful collection of a contingency fee,
commingling of fiduciary funds, conversion of third party funds, misrepresentation to the
third party insurance company regarding the existence of the settlement funds, and fraud
to cover up the conversion. Pierre was also placed on inactive status from December
2002 to June 2004, during which he engaged in the unauthorized practice of law in at
least nine legal matters. The second set of charges involved Pierre’s repeated failure to
answer expert interrogatories in a legal malpractice case, despite court orders. Pierre’s
failure to answer precluded the presentation of expert testimony during trial. The
Pennsylvania Office of Disciplinary Counsel also found that he engaged in the practice of
law in 12 more client matters during his inactive status. For the second charged case,
Pierre was also suspended for three years to run concurrent with the first charged case.
The AGC moved this Court to disbar him instead of following Pennsylvania's sanction of
three years, and the Court granted the AGC's motion. (Staff Attorney Kathy W. Parrino)

Matter of Mikhail A. Shedrinsky, 152 AD3d 132 (1% Dept 2017)
Shedrinsky was disbarred pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), after he failed to respond to
or appear for further investigatory or disciplinary proceedings within six months from the
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date of his suspension. Shedrinsky was initially suspended for his failure to cooperate
with the AGC's investigation of a dishonored check drawn against his JIOLA account, his
failures to file attorney registration statements, pay registration fees, and update his
business address with OCA. [145 AD3d 71 (1* Dept 2016)] (Staff Attorney Kathy W.
Parrino)

Matter of Nicholas Fitzgerald, 153 AD3d 315 (1¥ Dept 2017)

The Court granted the AGC’s motion for reciprocal discipline, and publicly censured
Fitzgerald, based on the New Jersey Supreme Court's order of a public reprimand,
pursuant to a stipulation of discipline by consent between Fitzgerald and the New Jersey
Office of Attorney Ethics. Fitzgerald purchased a law practice from an acquaintance and
his son, without realizing the full extent of the bad shape in which they had left the
practice. Upon realizing that many inherited clients, who had paid legal fees in full to the
old firm, needed significantly more work to be performed on their matters, Fitzgerald felt
that he had to charge additional fees to nearly four dozen of them, but he did not have
them execute new written agreements consenting to same. This ran afoul of Rule 1.17(e).
In addition, he did not timely notify the inherited clients in advance of his purchase of the
law practice, as required by Rule 1.17(c)(2); he also violated the rules through the acts of
another, in violation of Rule 8.4(a), by going through with the purchase despite the failure
of sellers to comply with their own obligation to notify the clients of the practice's
impending sale. (Staff Attorney Lance E. Philadelphia)

Matter of Steven C. Brodsky, 153 AD3d 52 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court suspended Brodsky for two years for concealing income in an attorney escrow
account to defraud creditors, granting a joint motion for discipline by consent by the
parties. (Staff Attorney Orlando Reyes)

Matter of Steven J. Kwestel, 154 AD3d 29 (1% Dept 2017)

The Court suspended Kwestel for six months for failing to adequately supervise an
employee/bookkeeper who converted client funds from an attorney escrow account,
granting a joint motion for discipline by consent by the parties. (Staff Attorney Orlando
Reyes)

Matter of Natalia A. Sishodia, 154 AD3d 123 (1* Dept 2017)
The Court suspended Sishodia for two years for aiding a suspended lawyer in violating
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the suspension order by continuing to practice law, granting a joint motion for discipline
by consent by the parties. (Staff Attorney Orlando Reyes)

Matter of Jay B. Zucker, 154 AD3d 29 (1* Dept 2017)

The Court suspended Zucker for six months for failing to adequately supervise an
employee/bookkeeper who converted client funds from an attorney escrow account,
granting a joint motion for discipline by consent by the parties. (Staff Attorney Orlando
Reyes)

Matter of Michael J. Aviles, 152 AD3d 27 (1st Dept 2017)

Aviles was publicly censured for violating Rules 3.3(a)(1), 8.4(c), and 8.4 (d) as a result
of failing to promptly disclose the loss of his client’s iPhone being sought in discovery by
opposing counsel, and his unauthorized practice of law before a Texas bankruptcy court.
His misconduct was mitigated by his previously unblemished disciplinary history, his
prompt payment of significant monetary sanctions, and his admission of wrongdoing and
remorse. (Staff Attorney Yvette A. Rosario)

Matter of Claude Castro, 155 AD3d 102 (1st Dept 2017)

Castro was interimly suspended as the record sufficiently established that he converted
and/or misappropriated client’s funds as evidenced by bank records which show that over
a four year period, he repeatedly invaded the $58,150 he should have held intact for the
client, which he failed to address in his opposition papers. (Staff Attorney Yvette A.
Rosario)

Matter of Marjorie Modestil, 154 AD3d 37 (1st Dept 2017)

Modestil, had been interimly suspended from the practice of law based upon her willful
failure to cooperate with the AGC's disciplinary investigation, for admitting under oath
that she had committed an act or acts of professional misconduct, for other uncontested
evidence of professional misconduct, for her failure to pay money owed to a client which
was demonstrated by a judgment, and for her failure to comply with the Office of Court
Administration registration requirements, all of which immediately threatened the public
interest. [142 AD3D 9 (1* Dept 2016)] Thereafter, Modestil was disbarred based on her
failure to respond to or appear for further investigatory or disciplinary proceedings within
six months from the date of the order of suspension. (Staff Attorney Yvette A. Rosario)
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Matter of W. Marilynn Pierre, 153 AD3d 306 (1st Dept 2017)

Pierre was interimly suspended for treating her escrow account as an operating account,
commingling client funds with her own, and using her escrow account to avoid a seizure
by tax authorities in violation of Rules 1.15(b), 8.4(c) and 8.4(h). The interim suspension
was also warranted based on Pierre’s mishandling of guardianship funds and willful
failure to satisfy a judgment owned to her former client in violation of Rule 8.4(d).
Pierre’s struggles with bulimia, depression, attention deficit disorder and homelessness
did not avert the interim suspension as the commingling of funds, conversion and/or
misappropriation of client funds, use of her escrow account to avoid seizure by tax
authorities and failure to satisfy a judgment were not attributed to her conditions. (Staff
Attorney Yvette A. Rosario)

Matter of John L. Weichsel, 154 AD3d 207 (1* Dept 2017)

Pursuant to the reciprocal disciplinary provision of 22 NYCRR 1240.13, Weichsel was
suspended from the practice of law for a period of three months nunc pro tunc to the
effective date of, and based upon, an order of suspension imposed upon him in New
Jersey for failing to safeguard clients funds; failing to properly maintain IOLA account
records; failing to properly supervise his secretary, which enabled her to steal client
funds; and making intentionally false statements to disciplinary authorities. In light of
Weichsel’s expressed contrition and extensive efforts to mitigate, including reporting his
secretary to law enforcement, contributing $25,000 of personal funds to ensure no client
suffered a monetary loss, and retaining an accountant to ensure his IOLA account records
would be properly maintained in the future, a 90-day suspension, retroactive to the
effective date of respondent's New Jersey suspension, was imposed. (Staff Attorney
Yvette A. Rosario)

Matter of Siddarth Dubal, 151 AD3d 34 (1* Dept 2017)

On May 11, 2017, the Court granted Dubal’s application for resignation. Dubal, who was
also admitted in New Jersey, admitted that on January 26, 2016, the Supreme Court of
New Jersey disbarred him on consent and further acknowledged that he was the subject of
an investigation by the AGC involving allegations of professional misconduct, regarding
conversion or misappropriation of client trust funds in a total amount of $174,807.15.
Although he made full restitution to each of the clients, he could not successfully defend
himself against the allegations under investigation. (Staff Attorney Remi E. Shea)
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Matter of Mark Hidalgo, 158 AD3d 1 (1* Dept 2017)

On March 15, 2017, the Court granted the AGC's motion for interim suspension based on
Hidalgo’s failure to cooperate and clear and uncontested evidence that he engaged in
conduct that immediately threatened the public interest. Hidalgo’s IOLA bank records
showed that he converted and/or misappropriated the $22,500 down payment involving
his client's real estate transaction. (149 AD3d 58) After Hidalgo failed to appear or apply
in writing for reinstatement within six months of his suspension, the AGC moved to
disbar him, pursuant to 22 NYCRR 1240.9(b), which motion the Court granted on
December 29, 2017. (Staff Attorney Remi E. Shea)

Matter of Carlos Moreno, 156 AD3d 51 (1* Dept 2017)

On March 9, 2017, the Court suspended Moreno on an interim basis for failing to produce
his personal and business income tax returns for the 2010 through 2013 tax years. (149
AD3d 65) Thereafter, on November 30, 2017, the Court suspended Moreno for four
years, nunc pro tunc to the date of his interim suspension. The Court sustained 20
charges pending against him, finding, in summary, that Moreno had failed to pay
$48,284.42 in child support and failed to turn over his tax returns as requested, in
violation of 22 NYCRR 1200.0, Rule 8.4(d) and (h); misused his IOLA account in
violation of Rules 1.15(a), (b)(1), (d)(2), and (e); and showed incompetence and a lack of
candor in three client matters in violation of Rules 1.1(a), 1.3(a) and (b), 1.8(e), and
8.4(c). At his sanction hearing, Moreno offered no mitigation, showed no remorse, and
offered no assurance that he intended to make any effort to improve his legal practice.
(Staff Attorney Remi E. Shea)

Matter of Robert Meloni, 154 AD3d 34 (1% Dept 2017)

On September 5, 2017, the Court granted a joint motion for discipline by consent in
which Meloni admitted violating Rules 1.15(a), 1.15(b)(1) and (2), 1.15(e), and 8.4(h).
Specifically, Meloni admitted misuse of his escrow account by making improper cash
withdrawals, commingling client funds with business funds, failing to properly identify
the special account, and falsely certifying his compliance with Rule 1.15 in his attorney
biennial registration. In mitigation, the parties stipulated that Meloni has never before
been the subject of attorney discipline in the 36 years he has practiced law; for nearly 10
years he has been recognized as an "AV" rated attorney by Martindale Hubbell; he has
engaged in pro bono activities; with the exception of the three-day period, he did not hold
client or third-party funds in his escrow account with his business funds; no checks were
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dishonored and no conversion or misappropriation of client funds occurred during the
audit period; he has fully cooperated with the AGC and has taken full responsibility for
his misconduct; and he has expressed remorse and embarrassment for his misconduct. In
addition, Meloni asserted that in the years prior to the audit period, he suffered both
personal and financial hardships which contributed to his misuse of his escrow account.
Meloni was publicly censured. (Staff Attorney Remi E. Shea)

Matter of William E. Baroni, 152 AD3d 35 (1st Dept 2017).

Baroni was convicted, after a jury trial, in the United States District Court, for the District
of New Jersey, of conspiring to obtain by fraud and intentionally misapply property of an
organization receiving federal benefits, conspiracy to commit wire fraud, wire fraud,
conspiracy against civil rights, and deprivation of civil rights, for which he was sentenced
to 24 months' incarceration and ordered to pay $14,314 in restitution. Baroni's conviction
arose from his misuse of his position as Deputy Executive Director of the Port Authority
of New York and New Jersey by conspiring with others to punish the Mayor of Ft. Lee,
New Jersey, for not endorsing New Jersey Governor Chris Christie's re-election bid, by
improperly closing lanes on the GW Bridge, thereby causing the streets of Ft. Lee to
become clogged with traffic. Baroni and his cohorts fabricated and advanced a false story
that the lane reductions were for a traffic study so that they could use Port Authority
resources and personnel to carry out their scheme. The Court found that respondent's
federal conviction constituted a "serious crime" and suspended him on an interim basis
pending further proceedings. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of David J. Boden, 146 AD3d 69 (1* Dept 2017)

Boden pleaded guilty, in the United States District Court, for the Southern District of
Florida, to the felony of conspiracy to commit wire fraud. His conviction arose out of his
involvement in a Ponzi scheme orchestrated by a disbarred Florida attorney. Boden's
cohort had devised a fraudulent scheme involving fictitious confidential settlements.
Boden conspired to broker the sale of these purported confidential settlements to
investors. The Court found that Boden's felony conviction was "essentially similar" to the
New York felony of scheme to defraud in the first degree and ordered him disbarred.
(Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Aaron Davidson, 150 AD3d 182 (1% Dept 2017)
Davidson pleaded guilty, in the United States District Court, for the Eastern District of
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New York, to the felony of racketeering conspiracy and wire fraud conspiracy. His
conviction stemmed from his employment with Traffic Sports USA, a firm headquartered
in Florida. Davidson admittedly negotiated and facilitated the payment of millions of
dollars in bribes to soccer officials in order to secure lucrative media and marketing
contracts for his employer. Davidson's conviction was part of the many prosecutions
connected to FIFA, the international organization governing organized soccer. The Court
found that the crimes of which Davidson was convicted were "serious crimes" and
ordered him immediately suspended pending further disciplinary proceedings. (Deputy
Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of William Doonan, 157 AD3d 44 (1* Dept 2017)

Doonan pleaded guilty, in the United States District Court, for the Southern District of
New York, to aiding and assisting in the preparation of a false and fraudulent U.S.
individual tax return and corruptly endeavoring to obstruct and impede the due
administration of the internal revenue laws, both felonies. Doonan, who operated a tax
preparation business, admitted that between tax years 2009 through 2012 he knowingly
prepared and caused the filing of federal income tax returns for certain clients which
contained fictitious and inflated itemized deductions and business expenses. He was
sentenced to 24 months in prison, fined $10,000 and ordered to make restitution in the
amount of $65,572. The Court found that respondent's conviction was "essentially
similar" to the New York felony of offering a false instrument for filing in the first degree
and ordered him disbarred. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Anthony A. Pastor, 154 AD3d 184 (1% Dept 2017)

Pastor was found guilty, after a jury trial in New York County Supreme Court, of the
felony of aggravated cruelty to an animal and the misdemeanor of torturing an animal. He
was sentenced to a term of two years' imprisonment and banned for ten years from
owning any animals. Specifically, Pastor was found guilty of killing his girlfriend's dog
by inflicting repeated blows to the dog until she lost consciousness. The Court ordered
Pastor automatically disbarred based upon his felony conviction. (Deputy Chief Attorney

Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Stuart I Rich, 157 AD3d 73 (1¥ Dept 2017)
Rich pleaded guilty, in Supreme Court, New York County, to criminal tax fraud in the
fifth degree, a misdemeanor, for his willful failure to timely file his personal income tax
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returns for New York State for the years 2008 through 2014. He was sentenced to a
one-year conditional discharge, without supervision, and was ordered to pay $1,194,706
pursuant to an agreement with the NYS Tax Department. The Court found that Rich was
convicted of a "serious crime" and suspended him pending further proceedings. A joint
motion for discipline by consent was subsequently granted by the Court which ordered
Rich suspended for one year. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Allison Scollar, 159 AD3d 59 (1% Dept 2017)

Scollar pleaded guilty, in Supreme Court, New York County, to grand larceny in the
second degree, residential mortgage fraud in the second degree, and scheme to defraud in
the first degree, all felonies. Scollar had entered into a plea and cooperation agreement
with the New York County District Attorney's Office that was filed under seal. The Court
found that Scollar’s conviction of these New York felonies warranted her automatic
disbarment. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)

Matter of Michael J. Rosenblatt, 159 AD3d 82 (1* Dept 2017)

Rosenblatt pleaded guilty, in Supreme Court, New York County, to grand larceny in the-
second degree, a class "C" felony. Rosenblatt had entered into a plea and cooperation
agreement with the New York County District Attorney's Office that was filed under seal.
The Court found that Rosenblatt’s conviction of a New York felony warranted his
automatic disbarment. (Deputy Chief Attorney Raymond Vallejo)
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Appendix A: AGC Assignments

Committee 1

Ermest J. Collazo, Chair
Abigail T. Reardon, Vice-Chair

Daniel R. Alonso
Marjorie E. Berman
Daniel D. Chu

Ralph C. Dawson

Peter G. Eikenberry
Donna Fishman*
Keisha-Ann G. Gray
John J. Jerome#

Eve Rachel Markewich
Charles G. Moerdler
Frederic S. Newman
Lee S. Richards III
Barbara K. Rothschild*#
David M. Rubin
Lawrence S. Spiegel
William St. Louis

Hon. Joseph P. Sullivan
Stephen L. Weiner
Toby R. Winer*

*Public Member
#Appointment ended in 2017

Committee 2

Charlotte Moses Fischman, Chair
Myron Kirschbaum, Vice-Chair

Robert M. Abrahams
Robert J. Anello

Thomas Birnbaum*
Joyce Bove*

Hon. James M. Catterson
Vincent T. Chang

Sylvia F. Chin

Richard J. Condon*
Darrell S. Gay

Nicholas A. Gravante, Jr.
Robert L. Haig

Danielle C. Lesser

Alan Levine#

Elliot Moskowitz
Ricardo E. Oquendo
Edward M. Spiro

Anne C. Vladeck

John L. Warden

Gonzalo S. Zeballos#
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Appendix B: Office of the Chief Attorney: Attorneys

Deputy Chief Attorneys

Angela Christmas
Naomi F. Goldstein
Vitaly Lipkansky
Raymond Vallejo

Jorge Dopico
Chief Attorney
Special Trial Attorney
Jeremy S. Garber
Staff Attorneys
Sinan Aydiner

Sean A. Brandveen
Kevin P. Culley
Sherine F. Cummings
Kevin M. Doyle

Paul L. Friman

Jun Hwa Lee

Norma I. Lopez
Norma I. Melendez
Elisabeth A. Palladino
Lance E. Philadelphia
Orlando Reyes
Yvette A. Rosario
Kathy Wu Parrino
Remi E. Shea

Denice M. Szekely
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Appendix C: Office of the Chief Attorney: Administrative Staff

Investigators Paralegals

George Cebisch, Chief Joel Peterson

Anthony Rodriguez Robert F. Murphy, Investigator/Paralegal
Office Manager Accountant

Marcy Sterling Martin Schwinger

Nancy De Leon, Assistant Office Manager

Computer Personnel
Michelle Y. Wang, LAN Administrator
Mark Hernandez, Data Entry

Administrative Assistants
Monique R. Hudson-Nlemchi
Donna M. Killian
Tennille Millhouse
Tina M. Nardelli
Celina M. Nelson
Michael J. Ramirez
Gloria Rodriguez
Natasha S. Solomon
Leonard Zarillo
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Appendix D: Annual Report to OCA

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINE ACTIVITIES
PERIOD COVERED: 2017

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT - FIRST DEPARTMENT

MATTERS PROCESSEDO

A. Matters Pending at Start of Period

B. New Matters During Period

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

D. Total Matters To Be Processed During Period (A+B+C)
E. Total Matters Disposed Of During Period

F. Matters Pending at End of Period

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE

A. Rejected As Failing to State a Complaint

B. Referred To Other Disciplinary Committees

C. Referred To Other Agencies

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn

E. Dismissed Through Mediation

F. Letter of Caution

G. Letter of Admonition

H. Reprimand (after hearing)

I. Referred to Appellate Division (Disciplinary Proceeding)
Total Disposed of During Period ("Matters" same as I, E. above)

CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS
A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings

2. Other
B. Cases Received at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings

2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period
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1147
5701
69

6917

(5672)

1245

Cases® Matters

413 465
307 327
160 167
1457 1516
1 1
0 0
69 81
0 0
3056 3115
5463 5672
36
21
15
3375
3041
334
3411




ATTORNEY DISCIPLINE ACTIVITIES (2017)

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 26

2. Disciplinary Resignations 4

3. Suspended® 2945

4, Censured 6

5. Privately Censured® 2

6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 7

7. Discontinued 5

8. Dismissed 0

9. Reinstatements Granted® 250

10. Reinstatements Denied 6

11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 40

12. All Other Dispositions 65

13. Total Closed 3356 (3356)

E. Total Cases Pending at End of 2017 Period 55
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 37
2. Other 18

Matters include: complaints, inquiries (excluding telephone inquiries) and sua sponte

investigations.

Cases refers to the number of respondent attorneys. Since some attorneys are the subject of
multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.
Includes: (12) definite, (20) interim, (1) indefinite suspensions and (2912) for failure to

register (468-a).

Reported as "Private Reprimand" until September 2016, now "Admonition by Court Order.’

Includes (117) reinstatements following suspensions for failing to register (468-a default),

(6) disciplinary reinstatements, and (1) non-disciplinary reinstatement.
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Appendix E: Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Attorney Grievance Committee Budget
Fiscal Year April, 2017 - March, 2018

Allocation
Personal Service Total: $ 4,183,083.00
Non-Personal Service:
Office Supplies 23,949.00
EDP Supplies 3,596.00
Postage Only 23,000.00
Legal Reference & Subscriptions 22,064.00
Miscellaneous Supplies and Materials 3,188.00
Travel General -
Rentals of Equipment 22,448.00
Repairs of Equipment 4,981.00
Shipping 19.00
Printing General 5,258.00
Telephones 4,041.00
Building and Property Services 4,331.00
Records Management Services 18,843.00
Professional Services - Expert Witnesses 1,700.00
Other Court Appointed Services 45,542.00
Other General Services 8,881.00
Professional Services Per Diem Court Reporters -
Transcript Costs General 58,556.00
Computer Assisted Legal Research -
Equipment - New/Replacement -
Non-Personal Service Total: $ 250,397.00
TOTAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 § 4,433,480.00
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SUPREME COURT, APPELLATE DIVISION
FIRST JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
61 BROADWAY, 2™° FLOOR
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10006
(212) 401-0800

Jorge Dopico

Chief Attorney
DATE:
- ATTORNEY COMPLAINED OF:
Mr.() Ms.() Mrs.()
Last First Initdal
Address: Apt. No.
City State Zip Code
Telephone: Home: ( ) Office: ( )
Cell :( ) Email Address:
YOUR NAME/INFORMATION (Complainant):
Mr.() Ms.() Mrs.()
Last First Initial
Address: Apt. No.
City State Zip Code
Telephone: Home: ( ) Office: ( )
Cell :( ) Email Address:

HH KKK KRR HEERERELEREERRK IR KR RERERXREEEERREREEEFERXRIERRFEIXEEEEEEREEEEEFEEREREEFRXLEEREEXEEFXERREEEEXERXRRREEERLERERFFEEEFRRRR¥

Complaints to other agencies:

Have you filed a complaint concerning this matter with another Bar Association, District Attorney's Office or any
other agency:

If so, name of agency:

Action taken by agency:

FeK KK KK R HH R TR T HF R R KKK KW IR KR HHRH K KRR R KW H TR KR KRR ERHEREHEFXEEREREREERREEREEREEREEERLERXEEEXREXREEEEREE XXX X R ERRRRETF XX R HNHR

Court action against attorney complained of:
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If so, name of court: Index No.

F3 K e 3T 26 3 3T I I I I T I3 T KT T I3 3 B I B T K FHEIE K IR KKK I I KR KK KR NI I K H KKK KK XRH R RK K HRER

1. PLEASE SEND THE ORIGINAL PLUS ONE COPY OF YOUR COMPLAINT. PLEASE INCLUDE TWO
COPIES OF YOUR SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. DO NOT send your original supporting documents
because we will not return them.

2. You may copy the enclosed form as many times as you wish, or you may find it online. Our website link
is: http://www.nycourts.gov/courts/AD1/Committees&Programs/DDC/index.shtml
3. You may also state your allegations in a letter. We request separate complaint forms/letters for each

attorney in question. :
PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY OR TYPE IN ENGLISH

Start from the beginning and be sure to tell us why you went to the attorney, when you had contact with the
attorney, what happened each time you contacted the attorney, and what it was that the attorney did wrong.
Please attach copies of all papers that you received from the attorney, if any, including a copy of ANY RETAINER
AGREEMENT that you may have signed. DO NOT FORGET TO SEND AN ORIGINAL AND ONE COPY OF THIS
COMPLAINT AND ENCLOSURES.

UNSIGNED COMPLAINTS WILL NOT BE PROCESSED.

Signature
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Stsof Nan Yok e
&'owvwe W ﬁ# the MARK F. DEWAN
Deputy Chief Counsel
&9‘”’”{ M and SUSAN KORENBERG
Thirtoonih, o, fuddicial Distriols > SUSAN B, MASTER

KATHRYN DONNELLY GUR-ARIE

Renaissance Plaza THOMAS GRAHAM AMON
335 Adams Street — Suite 2400 SASHA N. HOLGUIN
JOHN P. CONNORS, JR., ESQ. Brooklyn, New York 11201-3745 DAVID W. CHANDLER
Chairman (718) 923-6300 SUSAN M. JACKSON
Staff Counsel

September 11, 2018
Via digital sender: Moclair@nysba.org

Kathleen R. Mulligan Baxter, Counsel
New York State Bar Association
One Elk Street
Albany, New York 12207
Re:  Annual Report on Attorney Discipline
in New York State for the Year 2017

Dear Ms. Mulligan Baxter:

Attached please find the following information for inclusion in the Annual Report for the
Year 2017:

1. Copy of this Grievance Committee’s Annual Statistics for 2017.

2 List of staff names and titles.

3. List of Committee Members

4. Case Summaries of cases decided by the Appellate Division, Second Department.

The Brooklyn Bar Association has advised they dismissed 36 complaints in the year
2017; Richmond County Bar Association received eight complaints - two complaints were
dismissed or withdrawn, and six complaints are still pending. We are awaiting receipt of the
Queens County Bar Association’s statistics. Upon receipt, we will advise.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,
e e A—
—teua> \\(\(-hi%-ze' A el
DMEK/kf Diana Maxfield Kearse
Enclosures Chief Counsel
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ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
PERIOD COVERED (1117 TO 12/31/17~ ANNUAL)
SECOND, ELEVENTH AND THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICTS SECOND DEPARTMENT
I. MATTERS PROCESSED:
Al Matters Pending at Start of Period 1,219
B. New Matters During Period 1,723
C. Closed Matiers:Reactiviated During Period o 14
D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 2,956
E. Total Matters Disposed of Duiring Period 1,699
F. Matters Pending at End of Period 1,257
I MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: CASES* _ MATTERS**
A, Rejected as Failing to State .a Complaint 902" 802
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 330 330
C. Referred to Other Agencies 29 29
D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 162 174
E. Dismissed through Mediation Q Q.
F. Letter of Caution 1 1
F-1 Letter of Advisement 103. 115
G. Letter of Admonition- 13 17
iH Reprimand N 0 0
1, Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) ' 36. 86
J, Other . 25 45
Total Dispased of During Petiod (Same as i E above) 1,601 1,609
I CASES PROCESSED IN ALL. COURTS:
A Cases Pénding af Start of Period 58
1. Disciplinary Proceedings**** 29
2. Other*=*** _ 27
B. Cases Received During Period _ 89
1, Disciplinary Proceedings 37

2. Other 52

C. Total to be Processed During Périod 145




e

Ll L

Fekdedk

eRekk

D. Cases Closed

Disbarred 18
Disciplinary Resignations 6
Suspended™ -+ 17
Censured

Privately Censusred

Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontiriued

Dismissed

Reinstatement Granted
Reinstatement. Denied
Non-Disciplinary Resignations.

All other Dispositions 2
Total Closed . 86
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Total Cases Pending at End of Period
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 26
2. Other ' 23

Dated: Brooklyn, New York _
21-Jan-18 Respectfully Submitted,

R\ Vay
Diana Maxfield Kears
Chief Counsel

Cases refers to the nuniber of respondent/attorneys: As-some attorneys are the.subject of multiple.
complaints, the number of matiers may exceed the.number of cases.

Matters represents individual complaints, inquiries and sua spante investigations. This does nat
Include telephone inquiries.

Other for the purposes of Part Il includes: files closed for any reason not atherwise covered under

Sections A -l (e.g., files pending buit not included within the disciplinary proceeding at the time of
respondent’s disbarment; files closed pending outcome of ongoing lifigation; files closed dueto
respondent's death).

Disciplinary Proceeding includes only those. proceedings before the Court which may result in firial
discipline:.inctiu'di_'n__g': any Court ordered disciplinary proceeding, motion to strike for felony conviction,
reciprocal discipline, resignation under investigation,

Other for the-purpeses of Part 1 inchides all other proceedings before the. Court whiich ‘may not
result in final discipline (e.g., motion for interim suspensian, pefition for. authorization, application for
medical exam, application for conservator, motion to reargue, appeals, appl_:ication for reinstatement,
notification o Court of criminal conviction, voluntary resignation and request for disclosure ordef).

e Suspended includes definite, interim, and indefinite suspensions..




GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
| FORTHE
SECOND, ELEVENTH AND THIRTEENTH
JUDICIAL DISTRICTS
STAFF -2017
DIANA MAXFIELD KEARSE, CHIEF COUNSEL
MARK F, DEWAN, DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL
SUSAN KORENBERG, STAFF COUNSEL
COLETTE M. LANDERS, STAFF COUNSEL
SHARON GURSEN ADES; STAFF COUNSEL
SUSAN B. MASTER, STAFF COUNSEL
KATHRYN DONNELLY GUR-ARIE, STAFF COUNSEL
THOMAS GRAHAM AMON, STAFF COUNSEL
SASHA N. HOLGUIN, STAFF COUNSEL
DAVID W. CHANDLER, STAFF COUNSEL
ERIKA EDINGER, ACCOUNTANT
TIMOTHY McCORMICK, PARALEGAL,
MICHAEL F. ROMANO, INVESTIGATOR..
KAREN FAZIO, ASSISTANT COURT ANALYST
CLAUDETTE COLEMAN, SECRETARY
HELEN DERMAKE, CLERK

VANESSA MENDEZ, ASSISTANT COURT ANALYST



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
FOR THE
SECOND, ELLEVENTH AND THIRTEENTH
JUDICIAL DISTRICTS

COMMITTEE MEMBERS - 2017

John P. Connors, Jr;, Esq. (Chairman)
Karina E. Alomar, Esq.
Hon. Ariel E. Belen
Marianne E. Bertuna, Esq.
Andrea Bonina, Esq.
Helmut Borchert, Esq.
Ronald Martin Cerrachio®
David Louis Cohen, Esg.
Michael C. Farkas, Esq.
Lillian Garelick*

Stephen D. Hans, Esq.
Richard A. Klass, Esq.
Betty Lugo, Esq.
Domenick Napoletano, Esq.
Everett N. Nimetz, Esqg..
Andrew S. Rendeiro, Esg.
Thomas J. Rossi, Esq.
Deena Sattaur®
Thomas.A. Sipp, Esq.
Bernard Vishnick, Esq.
Ellen Young*

*Lay Members



SECOND DEPARTMENT

~ Second, Eleventh and
Thirteenthk Judicial Districts

201 7
David Jay Bernstein Public Censure. Reciprocal discipline — Florida
148 A.D.3d 4
Diana Bronstein, a suspended.  Reinstated.
attorney”
146 AD.3d 775
Harry A. Cardillo, admitted as  Interim suspension Misappropriated client funds
Harry Anthony Cardillo entrusted to him as-a fiduciary.
Alexander Herman, a Reinstated Suspension based upon merital
suspended attorney infirmity vacated.
Alex Constantopes, a Disbarred (on default) Mi'sappropriated client funds:
suspended attorney and misled a client about the
148 A.D.3d 116 status ot a settlement.
Samuel L. Wolf, admitted as. Disbarred Felony. conviction — .
Samuel Leonard Wolf grand larceny in the third
148 A.D.3d 220 degree (Penal Law § 155.35)
Michael David Garber, a ‘Disbarred Reciprocal discipline — New
suspended attorney Jersey
148 A D.3d 228
Yana Shtindler, a suspended ‘Suspended 1 year: (mgnc Enpaged in the practice of law
attorney pro turc to May 18,2014y while under an order of’ _
149 A.D.3d 81 suspension and made false and
mi'sle_adjin'g ‘statements to the
Grievance Committee.
Karla A. Olivier, admitted as Disbarred (resigned) wMisappropriated client funds
Karla Alison Olivier ' and failed to mairitain required
149 A.D.3d 121 eserow-account bookkeeping
records.
Joseph R. Sanchez, admitted as -Suspended 1 year Reciprocal discipline — Oregon

Joseph Raymond Sarichez
149 A.D.3d 141




Martin C. Licht

Jon A. Lefkowitz, admitied as
Jon Ari Lefkowitz

Jeffrey M. Benjamin, admitted
as Jeffrey Marc Benjamin, a
suspetided attorney

149 A.D.3d731

Charles A. Petitto, admitted as
Charles Angelo Petitto, a
suspended attorney

149 A.D.3d 287

Michael L.. Gangadeen, a
suspended attorney:
150 AD.3d 5

Jonathan P. Flom, admitted as
Jonathan Paltie] Flom

Anthony V. Guardino,
-admitted as Anthony Vineent
‘Guardino

150 A.D.3d 85

Owen Chambers, a suspended
attorney
150 A.D.3d 163

Eyal Katzman
150 A.D.3d 128

Indefinite suspension

Interim suspension

Reinstated

Disbarred (resigned)

Suspended | vear

Interim suspension

Suspended 2 years

Disbarred

Disbarred

Menta] infirmity [22 NYCRR
1240.14(b)],

Serious crime conviction ~
criminal facilitation in the
fourth degree (Penal Law-§
115.00(1))

Misappropriated client funds;
failed to coopetate; neglected
several clients’ legal matters;
and failed to fully account for
monies entrusted to him.

Serious-crime conviction —
obstructing goverhmental
administration in the second
degree (Penal Law § 195.05)

Serious critne conviction -
laundering of monetary
instruments (18 USC §
1956(a)(3))

Misappropriated client funds;
engaged in an impermissible
conflict 6f interest:
commingled; and failed to
maintain required escrow
account bookkeeping records..

Reciproeal discipline — New
Tersey

Felony conviction —

Criminal sexual act in the third
degree (Penal Law §
130.40(2)).




Kathy Dianne Bailey Suspended 2 years: Reciprocal discipline—
150 AD3d 116 | District of Columbia

Farrel R. Donald Interim suspension Failure to comply with the
lawful demands of the
Grievance Commitiee,

Stephen A. Zorn, admitted as  Disbarted (resigned) Misapptopriated client funds;
Stephen Alan Zorn, a and failed to cooperate with
suspended attorney the Grievance Committee.

151 AD.3d 27

Jennie M, Dellaria, a disbarred  Reinstatement denied

attorney

Richard C. Mooney Disbarred Reciproeal dis¢ipline — New

151 A.D.3d 17 Hampshire

Andrew Y. Lin, admitted as Suspended 18§ months Failed to cooperate; neglected

Andrew Youngson Lin a legal inatter; misappropriated

151 A.D.3d 21 escrow funds; failed to.
maintain required escrow
account bookkeeping records;
and failed to re-registeras an
attorney with the Office of
Court Administration.

William E. Gahwyler, Jr., a Disbarred Reciprocal discipline — New

suspended attorney Jersey

151 A.D.3d 11

Michael Gerard Grimin, a ‘Suspended 4 years Serious crime conviction —

‘suspended attorney aiding and assisting in the

151 A.D.3d 37 preparation of false and
fraudulent tax returns (26 USC
§ 7206(2)).

Bruno Bianchi, admitted as Disbarred (on default) Misappropriated escrow funds;

Bruno Patrick Bianchi and failed to maintain required

151 A.D.3d 55 escrow account bookkeeping

records.

Axel Heydasch, a suspended  Reinstated
attorney _
150 A.D.3d 1234




Gary R. DeFilippo, a disbarred
attorney
150 A.D.3d 1231

Volf 7. Birman, admitted as
Volf Zev Birman, a disbarred
attotney

Jason Matthew Butler
152 A.D.3d &1

Yehuda David Taller
152 A.D.3d 84

Michael J. Kohn
152 A.D.3d 142

Israel A. Bumns; admitted as
Israel Adam Burns
152 A.D.3d 109

Randi E. Alarcon, admitted as
Randi Elaine Alarcon, a
disbarred attorney

152 AD.3d 674

Randy M. Levine
153 A.D.3d 124

AlanPodhaizer
153 A.D.3d 36

Reinstated

Reinstatement denied

Disbarred (on default)

Suspended 1 year

Suspended 5 years

Disbarred (resigned)

Reinstated

Disbarred

Disbarred (on default).

Failed to ¢ooperaté with the
Grievance Committee,

Misappropriated client funds;
and failed to 'maintain required
escrow account bookkeeping
records,

Misappropriated elient funds;
commingled’- personal and/or
business funds with funds
entrusted to him as a fiduciary;
and failed to maintain required
escrow account bookkeeping:
records,

Neglect; and failure to fully
account for monies entrusted
to him.

Felony conviction — _
vehicular assault in the second
degree (Penal Law.§
120.03(1))

Neglected a client’s legal
miatter; and mislead a client
tegarding the true status of
legal matters.




Jonathan P. Flom, admitted as
Jonathan Paltiel Flom, a
suspended attorney

154 A.D.3d 25

Frank A, Racano, admitted as
Frank: Anthony Racano, a
suspended attorney

154 A.D.3d 80

Steven A. Moreélli, admitted as
Steven Anthony Morelli
154 A.D.3d 103

Robert H. Parker, admitted as
Robert Hayes Parker

Daryll Boyd Jones, a
suspended attorney

Robert L. Rimberg

Archana Dittakavi
155 AD3d 10

Allen-C. Rolle, a disbarred
attorney

“Yohan Choi

Disbarred (resigned)

Disbarred

Disbarred

Interim Suspension

Reiristatement denied.

Interiny suspension

Public Censure {by
consent)

Reinstaternent denied:

Interim suspension

Serious crime conviction —
money laundering (18 USC §
1 95._6’(a)(_3’)).

Felony conviction—

grand larceny in the second.
degree (in two separate
criminal actions) (Penal Law §
155.40(1)).

Felony conviction —

grand larceny in the second
degree (Penal Law § 155.40);
and grand larceny in the third
degree (Penal Law §
155.35(1)).

Failed to comply with the
lawful demands of the
Grievance Committee;
misappropriated.client funds;
and neglected clients’ legal
matters.

Serious crime conviction —
operatitig an unlicensed money
tranismitting business (18 USC
§1960(a)).

Signed her client’s name to the

verification page of'a petition,
notarized the false signature of
her client, and then filed the
petition with the Family Court.

Felony conviction —
conspiracy to commit money
laundering (18 USC § 1956).




Gnoleba Seri, admitted as
Gnoleba Remy Seri
156 A.D.3d 47

Steven Hosseyn Salami
157 AD.3d 37

Constantine C. Giannakos
157 AD.3d 49

Lewis G. P. Ashton, admitted

as Lewis George: Ashton, a
disbarred attorney

Carol 1. Schlitt, admitted as:
Carol Lynn Schlitt
157 A.D.3d 103

Robert H, Parker, admitted as
Robeft Hayes Parker, a
suspended attorney
157.A.D.3d 70

Katerina Arvanitakis
157 A.D.3d 64

Tara F; Lenich, admitted as
Tara Frances Lenich
157 A.D.3d 201

Disbarred

Suspended 6 months

Disbarred

Reinstatément denied’

Disbarred (resigned)

Disbarred (on default)

Disbarred

Disbarred

Felony conviction
fraud.and misuse of visas,
permits, and-other documents
(18 USC § 1546(a)).

Reciprocal discipline — New
Jersey (public censure).

Felony convietion ~
bank fraud (18 USC §§ 2 and
1344),

Willful misappropriation of
money of property.

Mi__sappropr-i‘at’ed client funds;
and failed to. cooperate with
the Grievance Committee.

Felony conviction —

wire fraud (18 USC § 1343).

Felony convietion —
illegal interception-of
communications {18 USC §§

2511(1)(a), (4)(a),and 3551).






UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2017 to 12-31-2017)

5TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A Matters Pending at Start of Period 142

B. New Matters During Period 481

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 5

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 628

E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 513

F. Matters Pending at End of Period 115
1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases**  Matters

A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 231 256

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 34 36

C. Referred to Other Agencies 1 1

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 98 122

E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0

F. Letter of Advisement 44 59

G. Letter of Admonition 7 14

H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

l. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 17 25

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above) 432 513

1.  CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 21
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 5
2. Other 16

B. Cases Received During Period 17
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period 38



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 1
2. Disciplinary Resignations 1
3. Suspended*** 11
4. Censured 1
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 1
7. Discontinued 2
8. Dismissed 2
9. Reinstatements Granted 1
10. Reinstatements Denied 1
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 1
12.  All Other Dispositions 2
13.  Total closed 24
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 14
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 10
2. Other 4

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple
complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2017 to 12-31-2017)

7TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A Matters Pending at Start of Period 95

B. New Matters During Period 632

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 3

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 730

E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 627

F. Matters Pending at End of Period 103
1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases**  Matters

A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 274 383

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 47 47

C. Referred to Other Agencies 1 1

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 114 138

E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0

F. Letter of Advisement 25 28

G. Letter of Admonition 8 10

H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

l. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 17 20

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above) 486 627

1.  CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 30
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 7
2. Other 23

B. Cases Received During Period 17
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 3
2. Other 14

C. Total to be Processed During Period 47



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 0
2. Disciplinary Resignations 1
3. Suspended*** 13
4. Censured 0
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 2
7. Discontinued 7
8. Dismissed 1
9. Reinstatements Granted 2
10. Reinstatements Denied 0
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 5
12.  All Other Dispositions 2
13.  Total closed 33
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 14
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 8
2. Other 6

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple
complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2017 to 12-31-2017)

8TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A Matters Pending at Start of Period 138

B. New Matters During Period 612

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 10

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 760

E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 575

F. Matters Pending at End of Period 185
1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases**  Matters

A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 270 300

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 25 25

C. Referred to Other Agencies 0 0

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 137 151

E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0

F. Letter of Advisement 40 50

G. Letter of Admonition 6 10

H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

l. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 16 39

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above) 494 575

1.  CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 61
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 4
2. Other 57

B. Cases Received During Period 16
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 4
2. Other 12

C. Total to be Processed During Period 77



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 0
2. Disciplinary Resignations 0
3. Suspended*** 53
4. Censured 1
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0
7. Discontinued 9
8. Dismissed 1
9. Reinstatements Granted 0
10. Reinstatements Denied 0
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 4
12.  All Other Dispositions 0
13.  Total closed 68
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 9
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other 5

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple
complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

FOURTH JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
PERIOD COVERED: 1/01/17 - 12/31/17

FIFTH, SEVENTH, AND EIGHTH DISTRICTS

l. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)

Cow>»

Total Matters Disposed of During Period
Matters Pending at End of Period

nm

I1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
Matters

A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
C. Referred to Other Agencies

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn
E. Dismissed through Mediation
F. Letter of Advisement

G. Letter of Admonition
H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

I Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.)

Total Disposed of During Period (same as |.E above)

1. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

375
1725
18
2118
1715
403
Cases**
775
939
106 108
2
349 411
0 0
109
137
21 34
50 84
1412
1715
112
16

96




B. Cases Received During Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

FOURTH JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
PERIOD COVERED: 1/01/17 - 12/31/17

D. Cases Closed

Disbarred
Disciplinary Resignations

Censured

Privately Censured

Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontinued

Dismissed

9. Reinstatements Granted

10. Reinstatements Denied

11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations

12.  All Other Dispositions

13. Total closed

N~ wWNE

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 37
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

Suspended*** 77

50

16

34

162

1

_ 10

2P| |w|n(®lw|lon

125

22

15

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of



multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



FOURTH DEPARTMENT
(Fifth Judicial District)

Attorney Disposition
Stefan D. Berg Disbarred
150 AD3d 9
representing
3/31/17

neglecting a legal

Summary of Charges

Rule 1.3(a) - failing to act with reasonable
diligence and promptness in

a client; Rule 1.3(b) -

matter entrusted to him; Rule 1.4(a)(4) -
failing to comply in a prompt manner with a
client’s reasonable requests for information;
Rule 8.4(c)- engaging in conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation; Rule 8.4(d) - engaging in
conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) -
engaging in conduct that adversely reflects
on his fitness as a lawyer.

Aaron C. Bertram Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR

152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Diana G. Cunningham Suspended SixRule 1.3(b) - neglecting a legal matter

149 AD3d 199 Months Effective entrusted to her; Rule 1.4(a)(3) - failing to

3/24/17 9/7/16 keep a client reasonably informed about the
status of a matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to
comply in a prompt manner with a client’s
reasonable request for information; Rule
8.4(d) - engaging in conduct that is
prejudicial to the administration of justice;
and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in conduct that
adversely reflects on her fitness as a lawyer.

Diana G. Cunningham Reinstated

149 AD3d 1624

4/11/17

John J. Daly Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR

152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17



Frederick C. Gallagher
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Jacqueline B. Jones
155 AD3d 1609
10/25/17

Jose Mari Causing Lozada
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Ashley B. Purdy
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

William B. Rosbrook
153 AD3d 1135
8/16/17

Bertel HX Schmidt
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Frank B. Scibilia
153 AD3d 265
the status of a
7/31/17

Brian F. Shaw
152 AD3d 32
6/09/17

Suspended

Interim

Suspension

Suspended

Suspended

Disbarred

(Resigned)

Suspended

Censured

Suspended
Two Years

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 890(4)(f)

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

§1240.10(c)

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Rule 1.4(a)(3) - failing to keep a client
reasonably informed about

matter; Rule 1.16(d) - withdrawing from
employment without obtaining from a
tribunal the permission required under the
rules of the tribunal; and Rule 8.4(d) -
engaging in conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice.

Rule 1.3(a) - failing to act with reasonable
diligence and promptness in representing a
client; Rule 1.3(b) - neglecting a legal matter
entrusted to him; Rule 1.4(a) (3) - failing to
keep a client reasonably informed about the
status of a matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to
comply in a prompt manner with a client’s
reasonable requests for information; Rule
8.4(d) - engaging in conduct that is



Kevin E. Smith
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Scott M. Smith
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Aaron M. Streit
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

prejudicial to the administration of justice;
and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in conduct that
adversely reflects on his fitness as a lawyer.

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1



(Seventh Judicial District)

Attorney Disposition Summary of Charges
Jeanne Lucille Asseng Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Terrence Brown-Steiner Disbarred 22 NYCRR §1240.10
155 AD3d 1608 (Resigned)
10/24/17
Hynn T. Choi Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Chyrel N. Hall Interim 22 NYCRR §1240.9
156 AD3d 1492 Suspension
12/05/17
Thomas A. Healy Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Mark Robert McGrath Reinstated
153 AD3d 1673
9/12/17
Clara Michiko Ooyama Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22
NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Antoun James Sakr Suspended Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
153 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17



Martin J. Schank
152 AD3d 39
6/09/17

Suspended
Three Years

Stefanie Bishop Traub Suspended

152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

John C. Wallen
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

David Paul Weinstein Suspended

152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Leslie Anne Weise
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Richard T. Welch
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Keith D. Williams
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Dereck Allyn Wischmeyer
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

22 NYCRR 1200.1: Rule 5.5(a) - practicing
law 1n a jurisdiction in violation of the

regulation of the legal profession in that

jurisdiction; Rule 8.4(c) - engaging in conduct
mvolving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
misrepresentation; Rule 8.4(d) - engaging in
conduct that 1s prejudicial to the administration
of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in
conduct that adversely reflects on his fitness as
a lawyer.

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



Shaqurah G. Zachery
149 AD3d 1624
4/11/17

Reinstated



(Eighth Judicial District)

Attorney Disposition
Richard Alan Ascher

152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Mary Casey Battis
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Cheryl Sybil Rene Boykin
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

James David Brenner
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Gwennor L. Carr
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Edward L. Chassin
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suzanne E. Cieslica
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Antoinette Sarah Clay Suspended
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Daniel Jay Cohen
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Randi E. Cohen Brown
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Summary of Charges

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



Donald F. Cole Suspended
152 AD3d 23

6/09/17

LaTasha D. Crutcher Supended
153 AD3d 268 Three Years
7/31/17

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

22 NYCRR 1200.0: Rule 1.3(a) - failing to

act with reasonable diligence and prompt-

ness in representing a client; Rule 1.3(b) -
neglecting a legal matter entrusted to her;
Rule 1.4(a) (3) - failing to keep a client
reasonably informed about the status of a
matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to comply
promptly with a client’s reasonable requests
for information; Rule 1.5(d)(2) - entering
into an arrangement for, charging or
collecting a fee prohibited by law or rule of
court; Rule 1.5(d)(5(ii) - entering into an
arrangement for, charging or collecting a fee
in a domestic relations matter without a
written retainer agreement signed by the
respondent and the client setting forth in
plain language the nature of the relationship
and the details of the fee arrangement; Rule
1.5(e) - failing to provide a prospective
client in a domestic relations matter with a
statement of client’s rights and
responsibilities; Rule 1.15(a) - commingling
client funds with personal funds; Rule
1.15(b)(2) - failing to identify her trust
account as an “attorney special account,”
“attorney trust account,” or “attorney escrow
account”; Rule 1.15(d)(1) - failing to
maintain for seven years required
bookkeeping records, including records of
all deposits and withdrawals from any bank
account concerning or affecting her practice
of law and records showing the source and
amounts of all funds deposited into, or
disbursed from, any such account; Rule
1.15(e) - making withdrawals from a special
account by a method other than either a
check payable to a named payee or a bank
transfer to a named payee upon the prior
written approval of the party entitled to the



Deborah Dubois Davis
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Kimberly Duffin Ehlers
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Thomas J. Fendick
155 AD3d 1609
10/25/17

Brian P. Fitzgerald
149 AD3d 267
3/27/17

Suspended

Suspended

Interim

Suspension

Censured

proceeds; Rule 1.15(1) - failing to make
available to the Grievance Committee
financial records required to be maintained;
Rule 1.16(e) - failing to refund promptly any
part of a fee paid in advance that has not
been earned; Rule 8.4(b) - engaging in
illegal conduct that adversely reflects on her
fitness as a lawyer; Rule 8.4(c) - engaging in
conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit,
or misrepresentation; rule 8.4(d) - engaging
in conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) -
engaging in conduct that adversely reflects
on her fitness as a lawyer; 22 NYCRR
1215.1 - failing to provide to a client, within
a reasonable period of time, a letter of
engagement setting forth an explanation of
the scope of the legal services to be
provided, as well as an explanation of the
attorney’s fees to be charged, expenses, and
billing practices; 22 NYCRR 1400.2 -
failing to provide to a client in a domestic
relations matter itemized billing statements
at 60-day intervals.

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 890(4)(f)

DR1-102(a)(7) and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging

In conduct that adversely reflects on his

fitness as a lawyer; and DR5-103(B) and
Rule 1.8(e) - advancing or guaranteeing
financial assistance to a client while
representing the client in connection with



contemplated or pending litigation when the
client is not indigent and the financial
assistance does not constitute the expenses
or litigation for which the client remains
ultimately liable.

John Theodore Flattery Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Avram A. Glazer Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Robert M. Goldstein Interim 22 NYCRR 8§1240.13

156 AD3d 1492 Suspension

12/05/17

Michael A. Gould Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Frederick William Gray Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

William G. Hamilton Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Brendan Crull Hand Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

J. Scott Hargis Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Scott F. Harley Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

~10—



James Grant Hayden
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Kathleen A. Homer
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Eric Nord Hoover
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Adam Phillip Jason
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Christopher A. Johnson

149 AD3d 124
3/24/17

Kevin Ralph Kelly
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Sarah Elizabeth Knieser
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Mary Anne Kolb
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Jeanie Konstantinou
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Three Years

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

11—

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

22 NYCRR 1200.: Rule 8.4(d) -
engaging in

conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) -
engaging in conduct that adversely reflects
on his fitness as a lawyer; Judiciary Law
8468-a and 22 NYCRR 118.1 - failing to
comply with attorney registration
requirements.

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



Ryan Maclean
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Marcie Jan Mason
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Allan Michael McCombs
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Mark Robert McGrathSuspended
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Rachelle Suzanne Mercier
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Deborah A. Moon
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Joan Ann Oko
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Elizabeth Iverson Pacher
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Michelle Anne Petrotta
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Scott D. Rodman
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Nicholas Rowntree
152 AD3d 23

Suspended

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

—12—

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



6/09/17

Stanley Robert Rudin Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Anthony S. Santaro, Jr. Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Sarah Falk Schofield Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Ellen J. Schwanebeck Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Patricia Jennings Starr Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Edward R. Thiel Interim 22 NYCRR 81240.9

153 AD3d 1673 Suspension

9/12/17

Eric L. Valby Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.

6/09/17

Alva C. West Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Roger W. Wilcox Suspended 22 NYCRR 1240.14(b)

151 AD3d 1781

5/23/17

~13—
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FOURTH DEPARTMENT
DISTRICT GRIEVANCE COMMITTEES

Grievance Committee for the 5" Judicial District

Joseph E. Lamendola, Chair Nicholas A. Macri
Christopher R. Bray Timothy M. McClusky
Victoria M. Celia* Edward Z. Menkin
Julie Grow Denton C. Andrew Pappas
Matthew R. Dunn Christina Reilly

Paula M. Engel Thomas A. Reynolds
Donald R. Gerace Ramon E. Rivera
Robert M. Germain Vincent J. Rossi

Loretta R. Kilpatrick William P. Schultz*
John J. Kirwan, Jr.* Howard J. Woronov

Michael F. Young

Grievance Committee for the 7" Judicial District

Heidi Schult Gregory, Chair Mary Walpole Lightsey
Betsy L. Album Steven V. Modica
Peter H. Baker Vincent M. Moyer
Alexandra Burkett Eugene M. O’Connor
Bradley Calkins* Stephen R. Ricci

V. Bruce Chambers Leon T. Sawyko
Thomas L. Chapple Brian C. Schu

Norman J. Chirco Dennis F. Sedor
Michael Cobbs Mark Siwiec*
Susan Kramarsky* John E. Tyo

Kevin G. Van Allen

Grievance Committee for the 8" Judicial District

Mark R. McNamara, Chair Morris L. Horwitz
Ursuline Bankhead* Carolyn Ruth Kellogg
Lauren E. Breen Ethan M. Lyle
Francis X. Carroll Joseph A. Matteliano
Louis J. Cercone, Jr.* Elizabeth M. Midgley
Tasha Dandridge-Richburg William M. Paterson*
Peter J. Degnan David M. Roach
John J. DelMonte Richard B. Scott
Lyle T. Hajdu Betsy S. Steger
Douglas M. Heath Mary Ann E. Wiater

Ruth R. Wiseman

* Lay Member
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FOURTH DEPARTMENT ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
PROFESSIONAL DISCIPLINARY STAFFES

Grievance Committee for the 5" Judicial District
224 Harrison Street, Suite 408

Syracuse, NY 13202

(315) 401-3344

Grievance Committee for the 7" Judicial District
50 East Avenue, Suite 404

Rochester, NY 14604

(585) 530-3180

Grievance Committee for the 8" Judicial District
438 Main Street, Suite 800

Buffalo, NY 14202

(716) 845-3630

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Anthony J. Gigliotti, Principal Counsel
Mary E. Gasparini, Principal Counsel
Maureen T. Kissane, Associate Counsel
Sheryl M. Crankshaw, Investigator
Deborah A. Cole, Assistant Court Analyst

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Daniel A. Drake, Principal Counsel
Andrea E. Tomaino, Principal Counsel
Kelly A. Page, Investigator

Karen C. Malbone, Secretary

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Roderick Quebral, Principal Counsel
Margaret C. Callanan, Principal Counsel
Guy C. Giancarlo, Associate Counsel
Mary E. Davis, Investigator

Carolyn M. Stachura, Investigator

Craig E. Semple, Investigator

Anna M. Hunt, Senior Court Analyst
Carol A. Cherry, Assistant Court Analyst
Cindy L. Pietz, Assistant Court Analyst
Kathleen J. Kasperek, Secretary
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SGiovance Committee ﬁ, e MARK F. DEWAN
Deputy Chief Counsel
&M M and SUSAN KORENBERG
Fhirtoonth Cﬁaﬁaa/ Dsstwiots KATHR%’E%?SN%E%?ESR—ARIE

THOMAS GRAHAM AMON
Renaissance Plaza SASHA N. HOLGUIN
335 Adams Street — Suite 2400 DAVID W. CHANDLER
ANDREA E. BONINA, ESQ. Brooklyn, New York 11201-3745 Staff Counsel
Chair (718) 923-6300

November 23, 2018

Via digital sender: Moclair@nysba.org

Kathleen R. Mulligan Baxter, Counsel
New York State Bar Association
One Elk Street
Albany, New York 12207
Re: Annual Report on Attorney Discipline
in New York State for the Year 2017

Dear Ms. Mulligan Baxter:

Attached please find the a copy of the Queens County Bar Association’s statistical report
for inclusion in the Annual Report on Attorney Discipline for 2017, which was recently received.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Very truly yours,
DMK/kf Diana Maxfield Kearse
Enclosure Chief Counsel




Organized 1876

HILARY GINGOLD

President

Marie-Eleana First
President-Elect

Clifford M. Welden
Vice President

Karina E. Alomar
Secretary

Richard H. Lazarus
Treasurer

Class of 2019

Michael D. Abneri
Frank Bruno, Jr.
Kristen Dubowski Barba
Charles A. Giudice
Paul E. Kerson

Class of 2020

Gregory J. Brown
Joshua R. Katz
Michael Kohan
Adam M. Orlow
Zenith T. Taylor

Class of 2021

Deborah M. Garibaldi
Jeffrey D. Lebowitz
Gregory J. Newman

Michael Serres
Elizabeth Yablon

Arthur N. Terranova
Executive Director

QUEENS COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

90-35 148'™ Street, Jamaica, New York 11435 - (718) 291-4500 - Fax: (718) 657-1789 - WWW.QCBA.ORG

November 16. 2018

Diana Maxfield Kearse. Chief Counsel

State of New York Grievance Committee

For the Second. Eleventh and Thirteenth Judicial Districts
Renaissance Plaza. Suite 2400

335 Adams Street

Brooklyn, NY 11201

Re: Grievance Committee
Annual Statistics — 2017

Dear Ms. Kearse:

Pursuant to the usual request of your office find the following statistics
covering the above captioned period.

Dismissals — 19

Dismissal with Letter of Advisement — 3

Dismissals with Letter of Caution — 0

Referred to the NYS Grievance Committee for appropriate action and
disposition — 2

Withdrawn — |

Matters tabled by the Committee — ()

I hope these statistics will help you in making your report. If any further
information is needed please call me.

Yours truly.
ﬁ%@ﬁ? T Ivadve—

ARTHUR N. TERRANOVA
Executive Director

OVER 141 YEARS OF DEDICATED SERVICE




JEROLD R. RUDERMAN
CHAIRPERSON

State of Netw Pork
@Grievante Committee for the
Ninth Jubicial Bistrict

CROSSWEST OFFICE CENTER
399 KNOLLWOOD ROAD - SUITE 200
’ WHITE PLAINS, N.Y. 10603

814-824-5070

May 11, 2018

Kathleen Baxter, Esq.

General Counsel

Executive Offices

New York State Bar Association
One Elk Street
Albany, New York 12207

Re: 2017 Annual Report

Dear Ms. Baxter:

Enclosed are the following relating to the

Report of the New York State Bar Association:

1) Statistics for the Grievance Committee

for the Ninth Judicial District
2) Local Bar Association Activities
3) Summary of Disciplinary Cases

4) Personnel:

Committee Members and Staff

FORRESTSTRAUSS
MATTHEWLEE-RENERT
ANTONIAP.CIPOLLONE
FREDDA FIXLER-FUCHS

ANTHONYR,WYNNE

GLENNE.SIMPSON

MATTHEWC.TOAL

STAFFCOUNSEL

2017 Annual

Very truly yours,

GLb:rdp
Enclosures
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USC-176
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
YEAR END 2017 (January 1 - December 31)
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT SECOND DEPARTMENT

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:

A. Matters Pending at Start of Period _ 926
B. New Matters During Period 11001
C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 45
D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 1972
E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 1388
F. Matters Pending at end of Period 584
II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
Cases Matters
A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 456 456
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 152 152
C. Referred to Other Agencies 40 40
D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 430 430
E. Dismissed Through Mediation 0 0
F. Letter of Advisement 135 135
G. Letter of Admonition 38 38
H. Reprimand 0 0
I. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 64 108
J.  Other 29 29
Total Disposed of During Period (samé as I. E above): 1344 1388
III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:
Cases Matters

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period 32 58

1. Disciplinary Proceedings 14 (31)

2. Other 18 (27)
B. Cases Received During Period 64 108

1. Disciplinary Proceedings 23 (41)

2. Other 41 (67)
C. Total to be Processed During Period 96 166



USC-176, Page 2
Grievance Committee, 9™ JD
Page 2

Year End 2017

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

Cases Matters
1. Disbarred 6 14
2. Disciplinary Resignation 3 18
3. Suspended 9 11
4. Censured 3 3
5. Privately Censured 0 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0 0
7. Discontinued 1 1
8. Dismissed 0 0
9. Reinstatements Granted 3 3
10. Reinstatements Denied 3 3
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignation 12 12
12. All Other Dispositions 32 51
13. Total Closed 72 116
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 24 50
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 10 (17)
2. Other 14 (33)
DATED: February 2, 2018
: White Plains, New York
Respectfully submitted,

GARY L. CAgLLA

Chief Counsel



I.

IT.

DUTCHESS COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ...........
New matters received during period ...........
Closed matters reactivated during period .....

Total matters to be processed during period
(BH+BHC = D) it ittt ettt et esaaaananassesens

Total matters disposed of during period ......

Matters pending on December 31, 2017 .........

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failiﬁg to State Complaint .......
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies .........iiiiieea..
DIisMISSEA vttt ettt e e e
Dismissed with Advisory Languade .............
Letter of Cautdon ...t ereriaeeeeeanneanns
Letter.of Admonition ...ttt i
Reprimand . u..eeetetnreentnrnencnraecssneanans

Total disposed of during period ..............
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Recelved
Brage Qovmdy Bear Dssociation, JeFes 01 201

P.O. BOX 88 Ninth Judicial District
‘ GOSHEN, NEW YORK 10924 ' Grievance Commitice
845-294-8222
- . Di ,
PO[ﬁ;ers FAX 845.294-7480 ’ "ec“’:l
resident _ . . aren A. Riley
Leonard Kessler E-MAIL: oranglaw@fronhernef.l:lef . Matthew D. Witherow
WEBSITE: www.orangecouniybarassociafion.org Ralph L. Pugielle, Jr

Ist Vice President

Darlene De Jesus-Ro
Stephen R. Hunter rlen Jesus-Rosenwasser

James W. Winslow

2nd Vice President Lawrence D. Lissauer
Mark T. Starkman ) Michael L. Fox
3rd Vice President Delegates to NYSBA
Nancy Y. Morgan Kevin F. Preston
. Michael K. Burke
Secretary
Craig S. Brown, JCC Nancy Y. Morgan - Alt.
Treasurer . Ex-Officio

Carla S. Wise January 30,2018 Michael K. Burke

Ms. Rita Passidomo
Grievance Committee
Appellate Division, Second Department
Ninth Judicial District
399 Knollwood Road; Suite 200
White Plains, New York 10603
Re: Orange County Bar Association Grievance Committee
Dear Ms. Passidomo:

As requested, enclosed with this letter please find statistics compiled for calendar year 2017 with
regard to the Orange County Bar Association Grievance Committee for submission to the New York State
Bar Association Committee on Professional Discipline.

If you require any further information please feel free to contact me at any time.

Thank you.

Very Truly Yours,

THE GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

Glen A. Plotsky, Esq.

GAP:tf
Encls.
cc: Orange County Bar Association
Attention: Lorraine Reinsma, Executive Director
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IT.

ORANGE COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
Januaryv 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

MATTERS PROCBéSED:
Matters pending on January 1,.2017 .......... .o
ﬁQQ.ﬁaftérs receivé& duriné period ... 0c.-.-.
Closed matters reactivated during period ......

Total matters to be processed during period
(B+B+C = D) ..... e et Ceeene

Total matters disposed of during period .......

Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..........

MATTERS DISPdSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ........
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
Referred to Other Agencies .«.e---cevcnieinanecns
Dishissed .“";'i"‘;‘;"‘ ........... P
Dismissed with Advisory Language .......... cees
Letter of Caution .................. e
Letter of Admonition ...eeceeieiinnaaiiaann
Reprimand ....l...cc-ccciverecanans Gt e

Total disposed of during period ...............

23

19

18
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PUTNAM COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

. Ldicial District
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE = NinthJudich B0 o
P.O. Box 1289 Grievar -
Carmel, New York 10512

Tel. No.: (845) 279-2986
Fax. No.: (845) 279-6425

John J. Hogan, Esq., Chair
Elizabeth D. Hudak, Esq.
John R. McCarron, Jr., Esq.
Stephen Santoro, Esq.
Edward Schaffer, Esq.
Joseph Tock, Esq.

January 30, 2018

State of New York

Grievance Committee for the Ninth Judicial District
Crosswest Office Center

399 Knollwood Road, Suite 200

White Plains, New York 10603

Attention:  Rita Passidomo

Re: Annual Statistics - 2017

Dear Ms. Passadomo:

Enclosed please find the annual statistic report for the Putnam County Bar
Association Grievance Committee for the year 2017.

Should you need any other information, please do not hesitate to contact my

office.

Very truly yours,

e Joun ) Nogan[§|

John J. Hogan, Chairman,
Putnam County Bar Association
Grievance Committee




PUTNAM COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:
A. Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ............
B. New matters received during period ............
C. Closed matters reactivated during period ......

D. Total matters to be processed during period
(B+B4C = D)t ettt inn ettt et

E. Total matters disposed of during period .......

F. Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..........

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
A. Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ........
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
C. Referred to Other Agencies ....................
D. DismisSsed .+.eveieeerenrteanaroansnsssannanocsns
E. Dismissed with Advisory Language .......-..cc...
F. Letter of Caution ....ieeiirreettcaevernacanccscss
G. Letter of Admonition .....c..cciencnieenceccanns
H. Reprimand ......cecesecerennoannnancenccenanaocss

I. Total disposed of during period ...............
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I‘mtrz Judicial District
Grievance Cor iMittea
ROCKLAND COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Jamuary 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:

N
[

A. Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ....cc.icuen
B. New matters received during period ............
C. Closed matters reactivated during period ......

D. Total matters to be processed during period
(A+B+C = D) a;'q;‘a.a_‘..»h»-,-.;...a-)ﬂa-¢¢~-u---.

E. Total matters disposed of during period ...... “u

NNNIN

F. Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..ceu.eo...

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF RY COMMITTEE:
A. Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ........
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....

C. Referred to Other Agencies .....:iceeeeiddoeioe,

D. DisSmMiSSeU tivsrvansssiticasccaisonooiinssionveeiss
E. Dismissed with Advisory Language ...eesesesnesss
F. Letter of Caution .cuvcenwmnsoa e e s e

G. Letter of Admonition .viciisiesrerevniccerinssren
H. Reprimand .....cciseeeenerearns N

I. Total disposed of during period ....eeeevenssaos

MISISISISENEN



I.

II.

WESTCHESTER COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017
MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ............

New matters received during period ............

. Closed matters reactivated during period ......

Total matters to be processed during period
(A+BHC = D) it ettt ittt cnan e sateannnn e

Total matters disposed of during period .......

Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..........

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ....... -
Rgferred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
Referred to Other Agencies ...t
Dismissed .......cci0uvnnnn e et
Dismissed with Advisory Language ........oeo....
Letter of Caution ......iiiiiiiviiiiinacnnnnns
Letter of Admonition ....eiiiriiiiiiiivinnenenn
=Y o i 1171 o o S

Total disposed of during period ...............



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

PUBLIC DISPOSITIONS/SANCTIONS
Disciplinary Proceedings

Louis J. Aebischer, Jr.

Robert P. Apple

Peter S. Baranowicz

Richard Craig Becker

Catherine Bienza
Suspended Attorney

John E. Campbell
Suspended Attorney

2017

Disbarment
August 2, 2017

Order of Disbarment

Recalled and Vacated due to

Death of the Respondent
October 12, 2017

Public Censure
February 15, 2017

Suspension - One Year
August 9, 2017

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
March 1, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Granted
May 23, 2017

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
February 1, 2017

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
disbarment in Virginia.

RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness as lawyer.

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
suspension in Florida.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect;

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.16(e): Failure to refund
unearned fees;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.



Steven B. Cottler

Anna Feldman
Suspended Attorney

Ian M. Fields

Suspension Pending Further
Order
February 14, 2017

Disbarment
October 11, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Denied as
Premature

March 16, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Denied
October 31, 2017

Disbarment
July 12, 2017

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)

RPC 1.5(a): Excessive Fees
RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation
and commingling;

RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
account;

RPC 1.15(e): Checks to “cash;”
RPC 8.4(c): Conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

RPC 1.3(a): Failure to act with
reasonable diligence;

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect;

RPC 1.4(a)(3) and/or (4); Failure
to communicate;

RPC 1.5(e); Failure to furnish
Statement of Client’s Rights;
RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.16(e): Failure to refund
unearned fees;

RPC 8.4(c): Conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.



Luigi Izzo

Michael Kelsey

Mark A. Kovler
Disbarred Attorney

Randall G. Lawrence

Pamela Lee
Suspended Attorney

Jonathan L. Levine
Disbarred Attorney

Public Censure Pursuant to
Discipline Upon Consent
November 8, 2017

Disbarment ((Effective, nunc
pro tunc, May 12, 2016)
February 22, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Denied
November 22, 2017

Suspension - Two Years
Pursuant to Discipline Upon
Consent

May 31, 2017

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
August 2. 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Granted
April 5,2017

RPC 1.6(a): revealing client
confidences;

RPC 1.8(e): advancing improper
financial assistance;

RPC 4.2(a): communications
with a represented party;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

Judiciary Law §90(4): Felony
Conviction - Sexual Abuse in
the First Degree [Penal Law
130.65(2)]; Attempted Sexual
Abuse in the First Degree [Penal
Law §§110.00 and 130.65(2)].

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.15(b): Failure to
designate escrow account;

RPC 1.15(e): Withdrawals to
unnamed payee;

RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
account;

RPC 1.15(c)(4): Failure to pay
funds to entitled party;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice.



Feng Li

Matthew Thomas Libous
Suspended Attorney

Maureen M. McNamara

Nicholas Nicosia

Nicole Leigh Perskie

Suspended Attorney

David Alan Pravda

Todd Michael Roberts

Alan 1. Sills

Nachman Aaron Troodler

Suspension - Three years
March 22, 2017

Motion for Leave to Reargue
Denied July 19, 2017

Suspension - One Year with
Credit for Period of Interim
Suspension

April 5, 2017

Suspension Pending Further
Order
October 19, 2017

Suspension - Six Months
June 21, 2017

Suspension Pending Further
Order
December 27, 2017

Public Censure
April 12,2017

Suspension Pending Further
Order
October 4, 2017

Disbarment ((Effective, nunc
pro tunc, March 24, 2016)
February 1, 2017

Disbarment ((Effective, nunc
pro tunc, March 7, 2017)
November 1, 2017

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
Disbarment in New Jersey.

Judiciary Law §90(4):
Conviction for Serious Crime -
Obstructing and impeding IRS
[26 USC 7212(a)]; Subscribing
to false tax returns [26 USC
7206(1)].

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(3).

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon Public
Reprimand in New Jersey.

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
Suspension Pending Further
Order in New Jersey.

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

Judiciary Law §90(2-a)(b):
Failure to Pay Child and Spousal
Support.

Judiciary Law §90(4): Felony
Conviction - Grand Larceny in
the Second Degree [Penal Law
155.40].

Judiciary Law §90(4): Felony
Conviction - Securities Fraud
[15 USC 78j(b) and 78ff].



Peter L. Vitelli
Disbarred Attorney

Abraham Chaim Weiss

Application for
Reinstatement Granted
October 4, 2017

Suspension - Two Years
December 27, 2017

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation
and commingling;

RPC 1.15(b): Failure to
designate escrow account;

RPC 1.15(d)(2): Failure to make
accurate bookkeeping entries.



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT,
SECOND DEPARTMENT
MEMBERS
RUDERMAN, Jerold R. (Chairperson)
BELDOCK, Steven H.
BELTRAN, Karen T
BERGER, Ricki H.
FINNEGAN, John E.
GLAZER, Robert *
HOLZINGER, John F. Jr.*
KESSLER, Leonard
KHATEEB, Atheeb U.
LERMAN, Barbara
MARROW, Paul B.
McMANUS, Diane R.*
MEVEC, Edward R. -
NAUGHTON, Kelly
PLOTSKY, Glen A.
SAYEGH, William G.
SHAPIRO, Mona
TRAVER, Kelly L.
VALK, Rebecca A.
WISE, David R.

WOODLIEF, Wesley*

*Lay Members



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT,
SECOND DEPARTMENT

DISCIPLINARY PERSONNEL

Gary L. Casella Virginia E. Mordiglia
Chief Counsel Court Analyst

Faith Lorenzo Maryellen Horan

Deputy Chief Counsel Assistant Court Analyst
Antonia Cipollone Ellen M. Tallevi

Staff Counsel Senior Court Analyst
Fredda Fixler-Fuchs Claire Zeppieri

Staff Counsel Secretary

Matthew Lee-Renert Denise Santamorena
Staff Counsel Secretary (Half Time)
Glenn E. Simpson Rita Passidomo

Staff Counsel Secretary

Forrest Strauss Anita Bellenchia

Staff Counsel Secretary

Matthew Toal Joanne Roncallo

Staff Counsel Senior Appellate Court Clerk

Anthony Wynne
Staff Counsel

Patrick Smith
Principal Court Analyst
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KATHLEEN BAXTER, ESQ.

GENERAL COUNSEL

EXECUTIVE OFFICES

NEW YORK STATE BAR ASSOCIATION
ONE ELK STREET

ALBANY, NEW YORK 12207 ’



Lisa A. Burgess, Esq.

Committee Chair

State of New York
Supreme Court, Appellate Division
Third Judicial Department
Attorney Grievance Committee
286 Washington Avenue Extension, Suite 200
Albany, NY 12203-6320

(518) 285-8350
fax (518) 453-4643
http://www.nycourts.gov/ad3/agc
ad3age(@ nycourts.gov

Service by Facsimile or Email is not accepted
CONFIDENTIAL

April 29,2019

Via Electronic Mail Only: moclair@nysba.org

Melissa O'Clair, Senior Assistant
New York State Bar Association

1

Albany, NY 12207

Elk Street

Re: Annual Report on Lawyer Discipline for the year 2017

Dear Ms. O'Clair:

Mortica A. Duf_bf
Chief Attorney

In response to your letter, seeking statistical information for the Attorney Grievance Committee
for the Third Judicial Department, for the year 2017, enclosed please find the following:

1.

N

The 2017 annual statistical report filed with the Office of Court Administration. Please
note that Disciplinary Resignations are reflected as a disbarment.

During 2017 County Bar Grievance Committees handled no new matters.

A digest of disciplinary cases for 2017.

The legal and investigative staft consisted of the following as noted:

Chief Attorney:
Monica A. Duffy

Deputy Chief Attorney:

Michael G. Gaynor

A list of Committee Members for the 2017-2018 year. Heidi Dennis was the Chairperson
during that period and William F. Ryan, Jr., was the Vice-Chairperson.


http://www
mailto:moclair@nysba.oru

Principal Attorneys:
Alison M. Coan
Lauren S. Cousineau
Michael K. Creaser
Anna E. Remet
Sarah A. Richards

Investigators:
Sarah L. Boncke
Joseph L. Legnard

If you need anything further, please advise.

Very truly yours,

Monica A.
Chief Atto
MAD/cma/am
Enclosures



MEMBERS OF THE THIRD DEPARTMENT - ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

THIRD DISTRICT

Kevin R. Bryant, Esq.
Joyce Q. Chupka

Yorden C. Huban, Esq.
Paul T. Kellar, Esq.
David W. Meyers, Esq.
William F. Ryan, Jr., Esq.

Thomas D. Spain, Esq.

The Committee meets 11 times
per calendar year

2017-2018

FOURTH DISTRICT

Karla Williams Buettner, Esq.

Lisa A. Burgess, Esq.
Cristine Cioffi, Esq.
Heidi Dennis, Esq.
Dianne N. Freestone, Esq.

Carol B. Merchant

Carrie McLoughlin Noll, Esq.

SIXTH DISTRICT

Sarah C. Fitzpatrick, Esq.
Hany M. Ghaleb

Mark S. Gorgos, Esq.
Diana L. Hughes, Esq.

R. James Miller, Esq.
Russell E. Ruthig, Esq.

James T. Stokes, Esq.



ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

PERIOD COVERED (ANNUAL REPORT 2017)

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

MATTERS PROCESSED: *

Matters Pending at Start of Period
New Matters During Period
Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters Disposed of During Period
Matters Pending at End of Period

nmmoow>

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies

Dismissed or Withdrawn

Dismissed through Mediation

Letter of Advisement

Admonition

Admonition-Personal Delivery

Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.)

TIOMMODOmP

1938
1094
0

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)

Total Disposed of During Period (same as |.E above.) _1097

CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

B. Cases Received During Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period
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UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed
1. Disbarred 11
2. Disciplinary Resignations 0
3. Suspended*** 13
4. Censured 8
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0
7. Discontinued 0
8. Dismissed 11
9. Reinstatements Granted 14
10. Reinstatements Denied 9
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 120
12. All Other Dispositions 56
13. Total closed 242

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 56
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 31
2. Other 25

For the purposes of this report, the term “Matter” includes the following:
1. Complaints

2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)

3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject
of multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



Decided and Entered: December 28, 2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Censure:

Matter of Lance Richard Hartwich - D-215-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Vivian Obiageli Adimkpayah AKA Vivian Obiamalu - D-213-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22 (a)

Granted:

Matter of Lisa Millicent Westervelt - D-214-17

Decided and Entered: December 21, 2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Censure:

Matter of John Richard Parrinello - D-210-17

Suspension:

Matter of Frederick John Meagher Jr. - D-211-17

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Maxwell X. Colby - D-209-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Ainagul Zhalgasbaevna Alimanova NKA Ainagul Wilkinson - D-212-17




Resignation While Investigation/Proceeding is Pending (22 NYCRR) §1240.10
Disbarment:

Matter of Jerrold William Bartman - D-208-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:
Matter of Thomas Justin Moore III - D-207-17

Matter of Daniel Michael Rosales - D-206-17
Matter of Denise Incorvaia Mroz - D-205-17

Decided and Entered: December 14, 2017

Disbarment After Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(b)
Disbarment:

Matter of Richard Croak - D-204-17

Serious Crime Conviction (22 NYCRR) §1240.12
Disbarment:

Matter of Anthony Hernandez - D-203-17

Decided and Entered: November 22, 2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Disbarment:

Matter of James John Hennessey Jr. - D-201-17

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Paul S. Bialobrzeski - D-202-17

Decided and Entered: November 16,2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Walter Patrick Tambolini - D-200-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)



Denied:

Matter of Charles Solomon Sutton - D-199-17
Matter of Frank George Seitz II1 - D-198-17
Matter of Rhonda Marlene Levey - D-197-17

Decided and Entered: November 9, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Christopher Patrick Murphy - D-196-17

Decided and Entered: November 2, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Denied:

Matter of Melissa Ann Roover - D-195-17

Decided and Entered: October 26, 2017

Resignation While Investigation/Proceeding is Pending (22NYCRR) §1240.10
Disbarment:

Matter of Peter M. Clark - D-189-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of lan Moorehead Love - D-194-17
Matter of Monica Jung Huh - D-193-17
Matter of Karen Lynn Ditzler - D-192-17
Matter of Sham Jayant Bhat - D-190-17
Matter of Hong-Anh Thi Tran - D-188-17
Matter of Katie Joy Duke - D-187-17

Denied:

Matter of Ayanna M. Lee-Davis - D-191-17

Decided and Entered: October 19, 2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8

Admission Revoked:

Matter of Daniel DeMaria - D-186-17




Decided and Entered: October 12,2017

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Brian P. Farley - D-185-17
Matter of Richard T. DiStefano - D-184-17

Decided and Entered: October 5, 2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Censure:

Matter of Jeffrey Sanford Kaufman Jr. - D-183-17

Decided and Entered: September 28, 2017

Motion for Re-argument of Disbarment
Denied:

Matter of Vito Torchia. Jr.- -D-181-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Andrew Joseph Welz - D-182-17
Matter of Henry Paul Butehorn - D-180-17

Decided and Entered: September 21, 2017

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)

Granted:

Matter of Mara Rita Timourian - D-179-17
Matter of Thomas Clark Squires - D-178-17

Decided and Entered: September 14, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22 (a)

Granted:

Matter of Christopher Peter Montville - D-177-17
Matter of Christopher Sean Mahoney - D-176-17
Matter of Roman David Bretschger - D-175-17
Matter of Alan Michael Taboada - D-174-17
Matter of Travis Hugh Mallen - D-172-17




Matter of Thomas William Cusimano Jr. - D-171-17
Matter of David Wayne Beehler - D-170-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Joseph Owen Sullivan - D-173-17

Decided and Entered: August 31, 2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Jeffrey William Butcher - D-169-17

Decided and Entered: August 24, 2017

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Nehru R. Nelson - D-168-17

Decided and Entered: August 17, 2017

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Danielle Renee Grootenboer - D-167-17

Decided and Entered: August 10, 2017

Felony Conviction (22 NYCRR) §1240.12

Disbarment:

Matter of Robert William Tecler - D-160-17

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Censure:

Matter of Larry Scott Loigman - D-166-17




Suspension:

Matter of Antonio Aquia - D-157-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Timothy Sullivan Wachter - D-165-17
Matter of William Patrick Silk - D-164-17
Matter of Mary Elizabeth O'Neill - D-163-17
Matter of Jefferson Songjun Yi - D-162-17
Matter of John Paul Wappett - D-161-17

Matter of Alan E. Steiner - D-159-17

Denied:

Matter of Sarah Downing Howard D-158-17

Decided and Entered: August 3, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Vicki Vallen Hood - D-156-17
Matter of Richard Albert Wilson - D-155-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Mark Adam Goldstein - D-154-17

Decided and Entered: July 27,2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of James Robert Carroll, Jr. - D-152-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22 (b)
Granted:
Matter of Stephen I. Lipman - D-153-17

Matter of Scott Anthony Ruplinger - D-151-17
Matter of Lakeytria Windray Felder - D-150-17




Decided and Entered: July 20,2017

Disbarment After Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(b)
Disbarment:

Matter of John Harvey Nichols III - D-146-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Asimina-Manto Papaioannou - D-149-17

Denied:

Matter of Lunah Lloyd D'Mello - D-148-17
Matter of Alan Michael Taboada - D-145-17
Matter of Carmen Elyse Daugherty - D-144-17

Decided and Entered: July 13,2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Censure:

Matter of Clemente J. Parente - D-141-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Alexandre Georges Verheyden - D-143-17
Matter of Brennan Peter Smith - D-142-17

Matter of Florida Kabasinga - D-135-17

Matter of Cynthia Loraine Hughes-Hardaway - D-134-17
Matter of Miguel Enriquez - D-132-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:

Matter of Sonia Graciela Martinez - D-140-17
Matter of Jerome Michael Maiatico - D-139-17
Matter of Ronni Ellen Leibowitz - D-138-17
Matter of Diana Jacobs Lee - D-137-17

Matter of David Joseph Lanphier - D-136-17
Matter of Allison Fulton - D-133-17

Matter of Sara Coury Eagan - D-131-17
Matter of James Joseph Becker - D-130-17




Decided and Entered: June 29, 2017

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Scott Lee Reynolds - D-129-17
Matter of Christopher Craig Humphrey - D-127-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:

Matter of Sean Edward Quigley - D-128-17
Matter of Mary Margaret Cobb - D-126-17
Matter of William L. Brown - D-125-17

Decided and Entered: June 15, 2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Vito Torchia Jr. - D-110-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Andrew John Waghorn - D-124-17
Matter of Chao An Tsai - D-123-17

Matter of Suzanne Billy Sutton - D-122-17
Matter of Tremain Lee Stanley - D-121-17
Matter of Nicole G. Price - D-120-17

Matter of Juan Carlos Palau - D-119-17
Matter of Holly A. Nelson - D-117-17

Matter of Lynsey E. M. Hotchkies - D-116-17
Matter of Deborah Ann Hochhauser - D-115-17
Matter of David J. Craven - D-113-17

Matter of Jeffrey Thomas Carney - D-112-17
Matter of Peter Alley - D-111-17

Denied:

Matter of Rochelle F. Ostroskey - D-118-17
Matter of Mark Andrew Harris - D-114-17

Decided and Entered: June 8, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:



Matter of Ivy L. Kushner- D-109-17

Matter of Jane Marie Hanson - D-108-17
Matter of Erza Saul Greenberg - D-107-17
Matter of Jeffrey Jay Friedland - D-106-17
Matter of Jennifer Nicole Burke - D-104-17

Denied:

Matter of Christopher David Dize - D-105-17

Decided and Entered: June 1, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:

Matter of Harold R. Weisbaum - D-103-17
Matter of Arjen Jan Tillema - D-102-17
Matter Rebecca Liane Taibleson - D-101-17
Matter of Cort Alan Neimark - D-100-17
Matter of John C. Mott - D-99-17

Matter of Gregory Kurt Lawrence - D-98-17
Matter of Zachary Neil Eddington - D-97-17
Matter of Carol Ann DiBattiste -D-96-17
Matter of Darin Matthew Dalmat - D-95-17
Matter of Steven Aaron Berliner - D-94-17
Matter of Brian Joseph Beatus -D-93-17
Matter of Marcus Pierce Almond - D-92-17

Decided and Entered: May 25, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:

Matter of Kathleen Lynch Powell - D-90-17
Matter of Glenn Alan Jarrett - D-88-17

Matter of Sarah Elizabeth Hudleston - D-87-17
Matter of Dustin Thomas Clark - D-84-17

Denied:

Matter of Edward J. Wilson - D-91-17
Matter of Dana Lynn Kaplan - D-89-17
Matter of Allison Fulton - D-86-17

Matter of Kathleen Marie Creamer - D-85-17
Matter of William L. Brown - D-83-17




Decided and Entered: May 18, 2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Censure:

Matter of Stephen L. Rockmacher - D-68-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Goldie C. Sommer - D-69-17

Denied:

Matter of Mark Edelstein - D-70-17

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of George B. Waldron - D-82-17
Matter of John Joseph Scura - D-81-17
Matter of Joseph S. Preziosi - D-80-17
Matter of John Kent Northrop - D-79-17
Matter of Michael James Neary - D-78-17
Matter of Andrew J. Murray - D-77-17
Matter of Kathleen J. Masterton - D-76-17
Matter of Michael Craig Martin II - D-75-17
Matter of David S. Finkler - D-74-17
Matter of Jeremy Daniel Knee - D-73-17
Matter of Peter W. Kenny - D-72-17
Matter of Joseph M. Brunner - D-71-17

Decided and Entered: May 11,2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Nuno Michel Schmid - D-67-17
Matter of Rebecca Scout Richters - D-66-17
Matter of Denise Michele O'Connell - D-65-17
Matter of Samir Kaushal - D-64-17

Matter of David Lawrence Ganje - D-63-17
Matter of Claudia Beatriz Flores - D-62-17
Matter of Stacey Leigh Caulk - D-61-17
Matter of Daniel Richard Brown - D-60-17
Matter of Elijah Packard Bresley - D-59-17
Matter of Renan Bayati - D-58-17




Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Fincourt B. Shelton - D-57-17

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Denied:

Matter of Leonard W. Krouner - D-56-17

Decided and Entered: April 13, 2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13

Suspension:

Matter of Jing Tan - D-55-17

Motion to Set Aside Suspension Order
Denied:

Matter of Leon R. Koziol - D-54-17

Decided and Entered: April 6, 2017

Disciplinary Proceeding (22 NYCRR) §1240.8
Censure:

Matter of Robert J. Krzys - D-53-17

Suspension:

Matter of Regina L. Blasdell - D-52-17

Decided and Entered: March 30,2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:

Matter of Kathleen Courtenay Stone - D-51-17
Matter of Jane W. Freeman - D-50-17

Matter of Robert J. Coan - D-49-17

Matter of Elayne Carol Bryn - D-48-17

Matter of David Joel Berg - D-47-17




Decided and Entered: March 23, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of John Wharton Rain - D-44-17

Matter of Gractia Sharpenberg Manning - D-43-17
Matter of Avi Joshua Lipman - D-42-17

Matter of Amanda L. Douvres - D-40-17

Matter of Jonathan David Bennett - D-36-17

Denied:

Matter of Evan Nathaniel Turgeon - D-46-17
Matter of Thomas Joseph Tierney - D-45-17
Matter of Diana Jacobs Lee - D-41-17

Matter of Roman David Bretschger - D-38-17
Matter of Kiersten Lee Boyce - D-37-17

Interim Suspension (22 NYCRR) §1240.9(a)

Suspension:

Matter of Richard Croak - D-39-17

Decided and Entered: March 16, 2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Censure:

Matter of Phyllis R. McCoy-Jacien - D-34-17

Motion for Termination of Stayed Suspension
Granted:

Matter of Matthew J. Sgambettera - D-35-17

Decided and Entered: March 9, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Richard E. Timbie - D-33-17
Matter of Stylianus Sinnis - D-32-17

Matter of Alina Dawson Eldred - D-30-17
Matter of Albert Hamilton Dib - D-29-17
Matter of Brian David Cochran - D-28-17
Matter of Dorothy Heisner Bjorck - D-26-17




Denied:

Matter of Hubert Tae Lee - D-31-17
Matter of Amanda Lynn Cluff - D-27-17

Decided and Entered: March 2, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)
Granted:

Matter of Whitney Renee Travis - D-25-17
Matter of Mark William Shiner - D-24-17
Matter of Amy Sarah Gwiazda - D-23-17
Matter of Adam Garrett Gutbezahl - D-22-17
Matter of Jared Morgan Galanis - D-21-17
Matter of Xiaofeng Da - D-20-17

Decided and Entered: Februarv 17,2017

Foreign Discipline (22 NYCRR) §1240.13
Disbarment:

Matter of Jose W. Vega - D-19-17

Decided and Entered: February 16,2017

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16
Denied:

Matter of Matthew S. Hogan - D-18-17

Decided and Entered: February 2,2017

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16
Granted:

Matter of Ji Sun Shin - D-17-17

Decided and Entered: January 26,2017

Motion for Modification of Suspension Order
Denied:

Matter of Gaspar M. Castillo - D-16-17




Decided and Entered: January 19, 2017

Resignation for Nondisciplinary Reasons (22 NYCRR) §1240.22(a)

Granted:

Matter of Katherine A. Suplee - D-14-17
Matter of Bruce A. Seidman - D-13-17

Matter of Thomas Michael Phelan - D-12-17
Matter of Barrett Reyhan McVary - D-11-17
Matter of Kevin Mason McGowen - D-10-17
Matter of Francis D. Mackin - D-9-17

Matter of Donald Neal Lamson - D-8-17
Matter of Mandy Huay-Yi Hu - D-7-17

Matter of William Franklin Howard - D-6-17
Matter of Christophe de Kalbermatten - D-3-17

Denied:

Matter of James P. Winston - D-15-17
Matter of Jane Marie Hanson - D-5-17
Matter of Gloria Heidi Frank - D-4-17
Matter of Margaret Alice Bomba - D-2-17

Decided and Entered: January 12,2017

Reinstatement (22 NYCRR) §1240.16(a)
Granted:

Matter of Ali Ebrahimzadeh - D-1-17
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UCS-176 ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (Annual)
JANUARY - DECEMBER 2017

TENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Re-activated During Period
Total Matters to be Processed During Period
Total Matters Disposed of During Period
Matters Pending at End of Period

Tmoowr

. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE

Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies

Dismissed or Withdrawn

Dismissed through Mediation

Letter of Caution

Letter of Advisement

Letter of Admonition

Reprimand

Referred to Appellate Division (DPs)

. Other

Total Disposed of During Period

SETTZemmUuowr

~

lll. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

B. Cases Received During Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period

SECOND DEPARTMENT

747
2,050
31

Cases

710
194
107
199

50

134
26

32
60
1612

2,828
1777
1,051

Matters

710
194
107
199
90
0
139
34
0
75
269
1777



NYS Grievance Committee
Tenth Judicial District
2017 Annual Report

D. Cases Closed

Dated:

Page 2
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
1. Disbarred 17
2. Disciplinary Resignations 2
3. Suspended 21
4, Censured 8
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 8
7. Discontinued 5
8. Dismissed 1
8. Reinstatements Granted 3
10. Reinstatements Denied 5
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignation 21
12. All Other Dispositions 42
13. Total Closed 133
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 59
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 27
2. Other 32
January 11, 2018
Hauppauge, New York Respectfully Submitted,
& ) i,

CATHERINE A. SHERIDAN

Acting Chief Counsel



LOCAL BAR ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES
JANUARY - DECEMBER 2017

NASSAU COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

A, Cases Referred to Grievance Committee
B. Cases Referred to Mediation

Total Cases Referred:

SUFFOLK COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

A. Cases Referred to Grievance Committee
B. Cases Referred to Mediation

Total Cases Referred:

TOTAL CASES REFERRED TO LOCAL BAR ASSOCIATIONS:

“ Numbers do not include matters referred to Fee Dispute

39

64

15

44

108



Ruth M. Pollack,
a disbarred attorney

Benjamin M. Katz, admitted
as Benjamin Zev Katz,
a suspended attorney

Wally Duval,
148 AD3d 74

Lawrence Nkongho Etah,
148 AD3d 91

David Scott Klarman

Philip George Kong,
148 AD3d 182

Barbara Lynn Maleno

Sheldon M. Krupnick
admitted as Sheldon
Martin Krupnick, a

suspended attorney

Verbelle Bernadette Williams
148 AD3d 270

Cari-Ann Robyn Levine,
a suspended attorney

NYS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
TENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
PUBLIC DISPOSITIONS/SANCTIONS

2017

Reinstatement denied
1/12/2017

Reinstatement granted
1/18/2017

Disbarment 1/25/2017
effective 9/26/2014

Three Year Suspension
2/1/2017 commencing
3/3/2017

Interim Suspension
2/14/2017
Disbarment 2/8/2017,
effective 2/25/2016
Interim Suspension

21472017

Reargument & Reinstatement
denied 2/10/2017

Disbarment 2/22/2017,
effective 4/11/2011

Reinstatement granted
3/9/2017

Conspiracy to commit bank
fraud, in violation of 18 USC
§1349, essentially an E felony

Conduct prejudicial to
administration of justice &
asserted frivolous claims in an
appeal

Mail Fraud, in violation of 18
USC §1341, felony conviction

Reciprocal Discipline,
Washington felony conviction
Theft, First Degree

Failure to cooperate

2 counts of bank fraud, in
viclation of 18 USC §1344 & 1
commit bank fraud, in violation
conspiracy to commit bank
fraud, in violation of §1344 &
§1349, federal felonies



Kyle E. Norton, admitted
as Kyle Eric Norton

Darrell J. Conway, admitted
as Darrell John Conway, a
suspended attorney

149 AD3d 63

John F. Burke, admitted as
John Francis Burke
149 AD3d 72

Interim Suspension
3/9/2017

Disbarment 3/15/2017

Public Censure 3/15/2017

Aggravated unlicensed
operation of a motor vehicle,
3rd degree (2 counts), U misd.,
operation while registration or
privilege is suspended or
revoked U misd., operation of a
motor vehicle under the
influence of alcohol or drugs (2
counts) U misd., leaving the
scene of an accident, personal
injury (2 counts) misd., criminal
mischief, 4th degree, A misd. &
criminal possession of a
controlled substance, 7th
degree, A misd.

Failure to cooperate,
misappropriate funds entrusted
to him as a fiduciary & failed to
maintain required bookkeeping
records for his escrow
accounts

Engaged in conduct adversely
reflecting on his fitness as a
lawyer (Vermont misd.
conviction)



Howard M. Adelsberg,
admitted as Howard Michael
Adelsberg

149 AD3d 214

Peter L. Rand
149 AD3d 195

Andrew James Schatkin
150 AD3d 51

Mitchell 8. Drucker,
a suspended attorney

Sam Z. Shore

1 Year Suspension 3/22/2017,
commencing 4/21/2017

Fublic Censure 3/22/2017

1 Year Suspension 3/28/2017,
commencing 4/28/2017

Reinstatement granted
4/5/2017

Interim Suspension 4/20/2017

Failed to maintain appropriate
ledger books or similar required
bookkeeping records for his
attorney I0LA trust account,
failed to make accurate entries
of all financial fransactions in a
ledger or similar records in the
regular course of his practice,
at or near the time of the act,
condition, or event recorded,
failed to make available to the
petitioner in its disciplinary
investigation the financial
records required to be made &
maintained for the |IOLA account
misappropriated funds as a
fiduciary incident to his practice
of law & conduct adversely
reflecting on his fitness to
practice

Engaged in conduct adversely
reflecting on fithess as a
lawyer, failure to cooperate,
neglected a legal matter
enfrusted to him, intentionally
failed to carry ouf a contract of
employment entered into with
a client for professional
services & failed to promptly
comply with a client's
reasonable requests for
information.

Engaged in conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice
& failed to provide competent
representation for his client.

11 counts of criminal facilitation,
4th degree (A misd.) & 6
counts of petit larceny (A misd.)



Mario A. Campos
150 AD3d 144

Paul Arthur Johnson
150 AD3d 71

Gregory X. Hesterberg,
admitted as Gregory Xavier
Hesterberg

150 AD3d 98

Philip M. Falco 1}
150 AD3d 187

Diane B. Groom, admitted
as Diane Barbara Groom
150 AD3d 133

William Anthony DiConza
150 AD3d 177

Mitchell S. Ross
151 AD3d 7

Disbarment 4/19/2017,
effective 11/26/2012

Disbarment 4/19/2017

Disbarment 4/19/2017

3 Year Suspension 4/26/2017
commencing 5/26/2017

3 Year Suspension 4/26/2017

3 Year Suspension 5/3/2017,
commencing 6/2/2017

Public Censure 5/10/2017

Conspiracy to commit wire
fraud, 18 USC Sec. 1349 (Fed.
felony)

Reciprocal discipline -
California disbarment

Misappropriation & failure to
account

Reciprocal Discipline -
Colorado 9 Month Suspension

Tampering with public records,
2nd degree, Amisd. &
engaging in illegal conduct
adversely reflecting on her
honesty, trustworthiness &
fitness, engaged in conduct
prejudicial to the administration
of justice, engaged in conduct
adversely reflecting on her
fitness, engaged in conduct
involving dishonesty, fraud,
deceit or misrepresentation,
engaged in conduct giving rise
to a conflict of interest

Commingling &
misappropriation of client funds
entrusted to him, engaged in
conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation & failed to
maintain required bookkeeping
records for a trust account

Conduct prejudicial to the
administration of justice &
conduct adversely reflecting on
fitness as a lawyer



Mark F. Dickson
151 AD3d 92

Picard Losier
151 AD3d 120

Eliot F. Bloom
a suspended attorney

Pamela Bruce Stuart
152 AD3d 69

John J. McGrath
152 AD3d 93

Mona R. Conway
152 AD3d 193

Susan N. Persaud
153 AD3d 7

David Franklin Spitalnic
1563 AD3d 85

Disbarment 6/7/2017
effective 9/1/2016

Disbarment 6/7/2017

Refnstatement denied 6/22/2017

Public Censure 6/28/2017

6 Month Suspension 7/5/2017
commencing 8/4/2017

Disbarment 7/12/2017

Public Censure 7/26/2017

Disbarment 8/2/2017
effective 3/28/2017

4 counts of grand theft, st
degree, 6 counts of grand

theft , 2nd degree (essentially a
D felony) & 3 counts of grand
theft, 3rd degree (Florida
conviction)

Reciprocal discipline -
Pennsylvania disharment

Reciprocal discipline - Florida
1 year suspension

Neglected a legal matter
entrusted to him, failed to keep
his clients reasonably informed
about the status of the matter &
ehgaged in conduct adversely
reflecting on his fitness to
practice

Neglected a client's legal
matter, failed to seek lawful
objectives of her client through
reasonably available means
permitted by law, failed to
cooperate & engaged in
conduct adversely reflecting
on her fithess as a lawyer

Engaged in illegal conduct that
adversely reflects on her
honesty, trustworthiness or
fitness as a lawyer & engaged
in conduct that adversely
reflects on her fitness as a

lawyer

3 counts of grand larceny, 2nd
degree, C felony



Arnab Bhukta
153 AD3d 293

Mark Carmel
154 AD3d 73

Helene Susan Stetch
154 AD3d 107

Mark A. Bonilla
a suspended aftorney
154 AD3d 118

3 Year Suspension 8/2/2017

Public Censure
8/16/2017

Disbarment 8/23/2017
effective 1/9/2017

2 Year Suspension 8/30/2017
credited from 8/12/2016

Misappropriated funds
entrusted to him as fiduciary,
engaged in conduct prejudicial
o administration of justice,
engaged in conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation, failed to
properly notify clients that he
was in receipt of settlement
funds, failed to promptly
deliver the settlement funds in
his possession as requested
& to which client was entitled,
engaged in conduct adversely
reflecting on fithess as a
lawyer, neglected a legal matter
entrusted to him & failed to
communicate with his clients,
to the extent reasonably
necessary to permit the clients
to make an informed decision
regarding the representation

Reciprocal discipline - Florida
Public Reprimand

1 count of criminal possession
of stole property, 1st degree
B Felony, 6 counts of grand
larceny, 2nd degree, C Felony

Engaged in illegal conduct that
adversely reflects on his
honesty, trustworthiness or
fitness as a lawyer & engaged
in conduct that adversely
reflects on his fitness as a
fawyers, 1 count of coercion,
2nd degree, a viclation & 1
count of attempted petit larceny
a violation



William D. Goodman
admitted as William David
Goodman

154 AD3d 130

Joseph A. Morrone, admitted
as Joseph A. Morrone Jr.

Alan R. Bianco, admitted as
A. Richard Bianco
154 AD3d 168

David Scott Klarman
a suspended attorney
155 AD3d 20

Louis M. Pugliese
a suspended attorney

John L. Meunkle, admitied as
John Lawrence Meunkle
a disbarred attorney

1 Year Suspension 9/13/2017,
commencing 10/13/2017

Interim Suspension 9/26/2017

Indefinite Suspension 9/27/2017

Disbarment 10/25/2017

Reinstatement denied 10/31/2017

Reinstatement denied 10/31/2017

Engaged in conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation, conduct
prejudicial to the administration
of justice, conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness as a
lawyers, giving false &
misleading testimony at an
examination under oath at
Grievance Committee &
improperly accepted &
continued employment on
behalf of his clients in
transactions in which he had
conflicts of interest in that his
exercise of professional
judgment on behalf of his
clients was affected by his
own financial, business,
property or personal interests

Failure to cooperate, willful
failure or refusal to pay money
owed to a client, guilty of
professional conduct
immediately threatening the
public interest

Failure to pay child support
arrears

1 count of mail fraud, in viclation
of 18 USC §1341 & 1 count of
money laundering in violation

of 18 USC §1956 (a)(1)(B)



Keirsten Klatch
156 AD3d 19

Jonathan Matthew Stein

155 AD3d 90

Alfison J. Boyd, admitted as

Allison B. Crain
156 AD3d 83

John E. Petiton
155 AD3d 119

Precious L. Williams

admitted as Precious Latonia

Williams
157 AD3d 42

David Lubin
157 AD3d 125

Robert David Goner
157 AD3d 125

Peter M. Napolitano
admitted as Peter
Napolitano

158 AD3d 5

James H. Fischer
157 AD3d 128

3 Year Suspension 11/1/2017
commencing 6/16/2016

Disbarment 11/8/2017, based
on Resignation

Public Censure 11/15/2017

Disbarment 11/15/2017
effective 10/23/2015

Disbarment 12/6/2017

Disbarment 12/20/2017, based
on Resignation

Public Censure 12/29/2017

1 Year Suspension
12/29/2017

2 Year Suspension
12/29/2017

Reciprocal Discipline - Florida
suspension

Breach of fiduciary duties &
misappropriation of funds
entrusted to him as a fiduciary

Criminal facilitation, 4th degree
class A misd.

Conspiracy to commit bank
fraud, federai felony

Misappropriated client funds,
commingled client funds with
personal funds, failed to
maintain required bank &
bookkeeping records, failed to
cooperate with Grievance
Committee & engaged in
conduct adversely reflecting
on her fithess as a lawyer

Conspiracy to sell unregistered
securities

Engaged in illegal conduct that
adversely reflects on his
honesty, trustworthiness or
fitness as a lawyer by virtue of
his conviction of endangering
the welfare of a child, A misd.

Reciprocal Discipline -
Tennessee suspension

Breached his fiduciary duty
by misappropriating funds
entrusted to him



Joseph A. Morrone, admitted
as Joseph A. Morrone Jr.
157 AD3d 59

Frank G. D'Angelo Jr.
1568 AD3d 108

Disbarment 12/27/2017

Disbarment 12/29/2017

Breached his fiduciary duty by
misappropriating client funds,
engaged in conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation by issuing
checks from an account that he
knew or should have known
was closed, engaged in
conduct prejudicial to the
administration of justice by
failing fo cooperate with the
grievance commitiee's
investigation of 3 complaints &
engaged in conduct that
adversely reflects on his fitness
fo practice law

Engaged in conduct adversely
reflecting on his fitness as a
lawyer, engaged in conduct
involving dishonesty, fraud
deceit or misrepresentation &
engaged in a conflict of interest
in which his professional
judgment was, or was at risk of
being adversely affected by his
own financial, business,
property or other interests



PERSONNEL OF THE GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE - 10" JUDICIAL DISTRICT

(At the End of December 2017)

CATHERINE A. SHERIDAN, Acting Chief Counsel
NANCY B. GABRIEL, Staff Counsel

ELIZABETH A. GRABOWSKI, Staff Counsel

STACEY J. SHARPELLETTI, Staff Counsel

MICHAEL J. KEARSE, Staff Counsel

MICHAEL FUCHS, Staff Counsel

MICHELE FILOSA, Staff Counsel

ROBERT C. CABBLE, Staff Counsel

DANIEL M. MITOLA, Staff Counsel

IAN P. BARRY, Staff Counsel

CHRISTOPHER KERN, Principal Court Analyst
DOUGLAS K. KRONENBERG, Senior Court Analyst
KERRY E. SMITH, Court Analyst

PHYLLIS CARUSILLO, Assistant Court Analyst

MERA MAHARAJ-PANAN, Law Stenographer

PATRICIA LUMLEY, Law Stenographer

ELIZABETH SECONDINO, Senior Appellate Office Assistant
JOANN MC LAUGHLIN, Senior Appellate Office Assistant

GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
(At the End of December 2017)

BARRY M. SMOLOWITZ, ESQ., Chair
M. DAVID TELL, ESQ., Vice Chair
JOYCE M. BISSO, Ed.D.

ANNE M. BRACKEN, ESQ.
JEANMARIE P. COSTELLO, ESQ.
LOUIS C. ENGLAND, ESQ.
MARK C. GANN, ESQ.

JOHN H. GIONIS, ESQ.

DORIAN R. GLOVER, ESQ.
MARK S. GOTTLIEB, CPA
ELENA L. GREENBERG, ESQ
ERIC H. HOLTZMAN, ESQ.
ALONZO G. JACOBS, ESQ.
LORRAINE M. KORTH, ESQ.
ANTHONY M. LA PINTA, ESQ.
STEVEN G. LEVENTHAL, ESQ.
GREGORY M. LISI, ESQ.
WILLIAM J. MC DONALD, ESQ.
MICHAEL T. PILEVSKY

ARTHUR E. SHULMAN, ESQ.
MARILYN SOCHALSKI



JEROLD R. RUDERMAN
CHAIRPERSON

State of Netw Pork
@Grievante Committee for the
Ninth Jubicial Bistrict

CROSSWEST OFFICE CENTER
399 KNOLLWOOD ROAD - SUITE 200
’ WHITE PLAINS, N.Y. 10603

814-824-5070

May 11, 2018

Kathleen Baxter, Esq.

General Counsel

Executive Offices

New York State Bar Association
One Elk Street
Albany, New York 12207

Re: 2017 Annual Report

Dear Ms. Baxter:

Enclosed are the following relating to the

Report of the New York State Bar Association:

1) Statistics for the Grievance Committee

for the Ninth Judicial District
2) Local Bar Association Activities
3) Summary of Disciplinary Cases

4) Personnel:

Committee Members and Staff

FORRESTSTRAUSS
MATTHEWLEE-RENERT
ANTONIAP.CIPOLLONE
FREDDA FIXLER-FUCHS

ANTHONYR,WYNNE

GLENNE.SIMPSON

MATTHEWC.TOAL

STAFFCOUNSEL

2017 Annual

Very truly yours,

GLb:rdp
Enclosures
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USC-176
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES
YEAR END 2017 (January 1 - December 31)
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT SECOND DEPARTMENT

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:

A. Matters Pending at Start of Period _ 926
B. New Matters During Period 11001
C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 45
D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 1972
E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 1388
F. Matters Pending at end of Period 584
II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
Cases Matters
A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 456 456
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 152 152
C. Referred to Other Agencies 40 40
D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 430 430
E. Dismissed Through Mediation 0 0
F. Letter of Advisement 135 135
G. Letter of Admonition 38 38
H. Reprimand 0 0
I. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 64 108
J.  Other 29 29
Total Disposed of During Period (samé as I. E above): 1344 1388
III. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:
Cases Matters

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period 32 58

1. Disciplinary Proceedings 14 (31)

2. Other 18 (27)
B. Cases Received During Period 64 108

1. Disciplinary Proceedings 23 (41)

2. Other 41 (67)
C. Total to be Processed During Period 96 166



USC-176, Page 2
Grievance Committee, 9™ JD
Page 2

Year End 2017

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

Cases Matters
1. Disbarred 6 14
2. Disciplinary Resignation 3 18
3. Suspended 9 11
4. Censured 3 3
5. Privately Censured 0 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0 0
7. Discontinued 1 1
8. Dismissed 0 0
9. Reinstatements Granted 3 3
10. Reinstatements Denied 3 3
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignation 12 12
12. All Other Dispositions 32 51
13. Total Closed 72 116
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 24 50
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 10 (17)
2. Other 14 (33)
DATED: February 2, 2018
: White Plains, New York
Respectfully submitted,

GARY L. CAgLLA

Chief Counsel



I.

IT.

DUTCHESS COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ...........
New matters received during period ...........
Closed matters reactivated during period .....

Total matters to be processed during period
(BH+BHC = D) it ittt ettt et esaaaananassesens

Total matters disposed of during period ......

Matters pending on December 31, 2017 .........

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failiﬁg to State Complaint .......
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
Referred to Other Agencies .........iiiiieea..
DIisMISSEA vttt ettt e e e
Dismissed with Advisory Languade .............
Letter of Cautdon ...t ereriaeeeeeanneanns
Letter.of Admonition ...ttt i
Reprimand . u..eeetetnreentnrnencnraecssneanans

Total disposed of during period ..............
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Recelved
Brage Qovmdy Bear Dssociation, JeFes 01 201

P.O. BOX 88 Ninth Judicial District
‘ GOSHEN, NEW YORK 10924 ' Grievance Commitice
845-294-8222
- . Di ,
PO[ﬁ;ers FAX 845.294-7480 ’ "ec“’:l
resident _ . . aren A. Riley
Leonard Kessler E-MAIL: oranglaw@fronhernef.l:lef . Matthew D. Witherow
WEBSITE: www.orangecouniybarassociafion.org Ralph L. Pugielle, Jr

Ist Vice President

Darlene De Jesus-Ro
Stephen R. Hunter rlen Jesus-Rosenwasser

James W. Winslow

2nd Vice President Lawrence D. Lissauer
Mark T. Starkman ) Michael L. Fox
3rd Vice President Delegates to NYSBA
Nancy Y. Morgan Kevin F. Preston
. Michael K. Burke
Secretary
Craig S. Brown, JCC Nancy Y. Morgan - Alt.
Treasurer . Ex-Officio

Carla S. Wise January 30,2018 Michael K. Burke

Ms. Rita Passidomo
Grievance Committee
Appellate Division, Second Department
Ninth Judicial District
399 Knollwood Road; Suite 200
White Plains, New York 10603
Re: Orange County Bar Association Grievance Committee
Dear Ms. Passidomo:

As requested, enclosed with this letter please find statistics compiled for calendar year 2017 with
regard to the Orange County Bar Association Grievance Committee for submission to the New York State
Bar Association Committee on Professional Discipline.

If you require any further information please feel free to contact me at any time.

Thank you.

Very Truly Yours,

THE GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

Glen A. Plotsky, Esq.

GAP:tf
Encls.
cc: Orange County Bar Association
Attention: Lorraine Reinsma, Executive Director



I.

IT.

ORANGE COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
Januaryv 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

MATTERS PROCBéSED:
Matters pending on January 1,.2017 .......... .o
ﬁQQ.ﬁaftérs receivé& duriné period ... 0c.-.-.
Closed matters reactivated during period ......

Total matters to be processed during period
(B+B+C = D) ..... e et Ceeene

Total matters disposed of during period .......

Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..........

MATTERS DISPdSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ........
Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
Referred to Other Agencies .«.e---cevcnieinanecns
Dishissed .“";'i"‘;‘;"‘ ........... P
Dismissed with Advisory Language .......... cees
Letter of Caution .................. e
Letter of Admonition ...eeceeieiinnaaiiaann
Reprimand ....l...cc-ccciverecanans Gt e

Total disposed of during period ...............

23

19

18
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PUTNAM COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION

. Ldicial District
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE = NinthJudich B0 o
P.O. Box 1289 Grievar -
Carmel, New York 10512

Tel. No.: (845) 279-2986
Fax. No.: (845) 279-6425

John J. Hogan, Esq., Chair
Elizabeth D. Hudak, Esq.
John R. McCarron, Jr., Esq.
Stephen Santoro, Esq.
Edward Schaffer, Esq.
Joseph Tock, Esq.

January 30, 2018

State of New York

Grievance Committee for the Ninth Judicial District
Crosswest Office Center

399 Knollwood Road, Suite 200

White Plains, New York 10603

Attention:  Rita Passidomo

Re: Annual Statistics - 2017

Dear Ms. Passadomo:

Enclosed please find the annual statistic report for the Putnam County Bar
Association Grievance Committee for the year 2017.

Should you need any other information, please do not hesitate to contact my

office.

Very truly yours,

e Joun ) Nogan[§|

John J. Hogan, Chairman,
Putnam County Bar Association
Grievance Committee




PUTNAM COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:
A. Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ............
B. New matters received during period ............
C. Closed matters reactivated during period ......

D. Total matters to be processed during period
(B+B4C = D)t ettt inn ettt et

E. Total matters disposed of during period .......

F. Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..........

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
A. Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ........
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
C. Referred to Other Agencies ....................
D. DismisSsed .+.eveieeerenrteanaroansnsssannanocsns
E. Dismissed with Advisory Language .......-..cc...
F. Letter of Caution ....ieeiirreettcaevernacanccscss
G. Letter of Admonition .....c..cciencnieenceccanns
H. Reprimand ......cecesecerennoannnancenccenanaocss

I. Total disposed of during period ...............
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I‘mtrz Judicial District
Grievance Cor iMittea
ROCKLAND COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Jamuary 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

I. MATTERS PROCESSED:

N
[

A. Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ....cc.icuen
B. New matters received during period ............
C. Closed matters reactivated during period ......

D. Total matters to be processed during period
(A+B+C = D) a;'q;‘a.a_‘..»h»-,-.;...a-)ﬂa-¢¢~-u---.

E. Total matters disposed of during period ...... “u

NNNIN

F. Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..ceu.eo...

II. MATTERS DISPOSED OF RY COMMITTEE:
A. Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ........
B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....

C. Referred to Other Agencies .....:iceeeeiddoeioe,

D. DisSmMiSSeU tivsrvansssiticasccaisonooiinssionveeiss
E. Dismissed with Advisory Language ...eesesesnesss
F. Letter of Caution .cuvcenwmnsoa e e s e

G. Letter of Admonition .viciisiesrerevniccerinssren
H. Reprimand .....cciseeeenerearns N

I. Total disposed of during period ....eeeevenssaos

MISISISISENEN



I.

II.

WESTCHESTER COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
APPELLATE DIVISION, SECOND DEPARTMENT
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017
MATTERS PROCESSED:
Matters pending on January 1, 2017 ............

New matters received during period ............

. Closed matters reactivated during period ......

Total matters to be processed during period
(A+BHC = D) it ettt ittt cnan e sateannnn e

Total matters disposed of during period .......

Matters pending on December 31, 2017 ..........

MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:

Rejected as Failing to State Complaint ....... -
Rgferred to Other Disciplinary Committees .....
Referred to Other Agencies ...t
Dismissed .......cci0uvnnnn e et
Dismissed with Advisory Language ........oeo....
Letter of Caution ......iiiiiiiviiiiinacnnnnns
Letter of Admonition ....eiiiriiiiiiiivinnenenn
=Y o i 1171 o o S

Total disposed of during period ...............



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

PUBLIC DISPOSITIONS/SANCTIONS
Disciplinary Proceedings

Louis J. Aebischer, Jr.

Robert P. Apple

Peter S. Baranowicz

Richard Craig Becker

Catherine Bienza
Suspended Attorney

John E. Campbell
Suspended Attorney

2017

Disbarment
August 2, 2017

Order of Disbarment

Recalled and Vacated due to

Death of the Respondent
October 12, 2017

Public Censure
February 15, 2017

Suspension - One Year
August 9, 2017

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
March 1, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Granted
May 23, 2017

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
February 1, 2017

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
disbarment in Virginia.

RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness as lawyer.

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
suspension in Florida.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect;

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.16(e): Failure to refund
unearned fees;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.



Steven B. Cottler

Anna Feldman
Suspended Attorney

Ian M. Fields

Suspension Pending Further
Order
February 14, 2017

Disbarment
October 11, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Denied as
Premature

March 16, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Denied
October 31, 2017

Disbarment
July 12, 2017

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)

RPC 1.5(a): Excessive Fees
RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation
and commingling;

RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
account;

RPC 1.15(e): Checks to “cash;”
RPC 8.4(c): Conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

RPC 1.3(a): Failure to act with
reasonable diligence;

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect;

RPC 1.4(a)(3) and/or (4); Failure
to communicate;

RPC 1.5(e); Failure to furnish
Statement of Client’s Rights;
RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.16(e): Failure to refund
unearned fees;

RPC 8.4(c): Conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.



Luigi Izzo

Michael Kelsey

Mark A. Kovler
Disbarred Attorney

Randall G. Lawrence

Pamela Lee
Suspended Attorney

Jonathan L. Levine
Disbarred Attorney

Public Censure Pursuant to
Discipline Upon Consent
November 8, 2017

Disbarment ((Effective, nunc
pro tunc, May 12, 2016)
February 22, 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Denied
November 22, 2017

Suspension - Two Years
Pursuant to Discipline Upon
Consent

May 31, 2017

Disbarment Pursuant to
Resignation
August 2. 2017

Application for
Reinstatement Granted
April 5,2017

RPC 1.6(a): revealing client
confidences;

RPC 1.8(e): advancing improper
financial assistance;

RPC 4.2(a): communications
with a represented party;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

Judiciary Law §90(4): Felony
Conviction - Sexual Abuse in
the First Degree [Penal Law
130.65(2)]; Attempted Sexual
Abuse in the First Degree [Penal
Law §§110.00 and 130.65(2)].

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.15(b): Failure to
designate escrow account;

RPC 1.15(e): Withdrawals to
unnamed payee;

RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation;
RPC 1.15(c)(3): Failure to
account;

RPC 1.15(c)(4): Failure to pay
funds to entitled party;

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice.



Feng Li

Matthew Thomas Libous
Suspended Attorney

Maureen M. McNamara

Nicholas Nicosia

Nicole Leigh Perskie

Suspended Attorney

David Alan Pravda

Todd Michael Roberts

Alan 1. Sills

Nachman Aaron Troodler

Suspension - Three years
March 22, 2017

Motion for Leave to Reargue
Denied July 19, 2017

Suspension - One Year with
Credit for Period of Interim
Suspension

April 5, 2017

Suspension Pending Further
Order
October 19, 2017

Suspension - Six Months
June 21, 2017

Suspension Pending Further
Order
December 27, 2017

Public Censure
April 12,2017

Suspension Pending Further
Order
October 4, 2017

Disbarment ((Effective, nunc
pro tunc, March 24, 2016)
February 1, 2017

Disbarment ((Effective, nunc
pro tunc, March 7, 2017)
November 1, 2017

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
Disbarment in New Jersey.

Judiciary Law §90(4):
Conviction for Serious Crime -
Obstructing and impeding IRS
[26 USC 7212(a)]; Subscribing
to false tax returns [26 USC
7206(1)].

22 NYCRR 1240.9(a)(3).

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon Public
Reprimand in New Jersey.

22 NYCRR 1240.13: Reciprocal
Discipline based upon
Suspension Pending Further
Order in New Jersey.

RPC 1.3(b): Neglect

RPC 8.4(d): Conduct prejudicial
to the administration of justice;
RPC 8.4(h): Conduct adversely
reflecting on fitness to practice.

Judiciary Law §90(2-a)(b):
Failure to Pay Child and Spousal
Support.

Judiciary Law §90(4): Felony
Conviction - Grand Larceny in
the Second Degree [Penal Law
155.40].

Judiciary Law §90(4): Felony
Conviction - Securities Fraud
[15 USC 78j(b) and 78ff].



Peter L. Vitelli
Disbarred Attorney

Abraham Chaim Weiss

Application for
Reinstatement Granted
October 4, 2017

Suspension - Two Years
December 27, 2017

RPC 1.15(a): Misappropriation
and commingling;

RPC 1.15(b): Failure to
designate escrow account;

RPC 1.15(d)(2): Failure to make
accurate bookkeeping entries.



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT,
SECOND DEPARTMENT
MEMBERS
RUDERMAN, Jerold R. (Chairperson)
BELDOCK, Steven H.
BELTRAN, Karen T
BERGER, Ricki H.
FINNEGAN, John E.
GLAZER, Robert *
HOLZINGER, John F. Jr.*
KESSLER, Leonard
KHATEEB, Atheeb U.
LERMAN, Barbara
MARROW, Paul B.
McMANUS, Diane R.*
MEVEC, Edward R. -
NAUGHTON, Kelly
PLOTSKY, Glen A.
SAYEGH, William G.
SHAPIRO, Mona
TRAVER, Kelly L.
VALK, Rebecca A.
WISE, David R.

WOODLIEF, Wesley*

*Lay Members



GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT,
SECOND DEPARTMENT

DISCIPLINARY PERSONNEL

Gary L. Casella Virginia E. Mordiglia
Chief Counsel Court Analyst

Faith Lorenzo Maryellen Horan

Deputy Chief Counsel Assistant Court Analyst
Antonia Cipollone Ellen M. Tallevi

Staff Counsel Senior Court Analyst
Fredda Fixler-Fuchs Claire Zeppieri

Staff Counsel Secretary

Matthew Lee-Renert Denise Santamorena
Staff Counsel Secretary (Half Time)
Glenn E. Simpson Rita Passidomo

Staff Counsel Secretary

Forrest Strauss Anita Bellenchia

Staff Counsel Secretary

Matthew Toal Joanne Roncallo

Staff Counsel Senior Appellate Court Clerk

Anthony Wynne
Staff Counsel

Patrick Smith
Principal Court Analyst
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UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2017 to 12-31-2017)

5TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A Matters Pending at Start of Period 142

B. New Matters During Period 481

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 5

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 628

E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 513

F. Matters Pending at End of Period 115
1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases**  Matters

A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 231 256

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 34 36

C. Referred to Other Agencies 1 1

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 98 122

E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0

F. Letter of Advisement 44 59

G. Letter of Admonition 7 14

H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

l. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 17 25

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above) 432 513

1.  CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 21
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 5
2. Other 16

B. Cases Received During Period 17
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period 38



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 1
2. Disciplinary Resignations 1
3. Suspended*** 11
4. Censured 1
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 1
7. Discontinued 2
8. Dismissed 2
9. Reinstatements Granted 1
10. Reinstatements Denied 1
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 1
12.  All Other Dispositions 2
13.  Total closed 24
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 14
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 10
2. Other 4

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple
complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2017 to 12-31-2017)

7TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A Matters Pending at Start of Period 95

B. New Matters During Period 632

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 3

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 730

E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 627

F. Matters Pending at End of Period 103
1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases**  Matters

A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 274 383

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 47 47

C. Referred to Other Agencies 1 1

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 114 138

E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0

F. Letter of Advisement 25 28

G. Letter of Admonition 8 10

H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

l. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 17 20

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above) 486 627

1.  CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 30
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 7
2. Other 23

B. Cases Received During Period 17
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 3
2. Other 14

C. Total to be Processed During Period 47



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 0
2. Disciplinary Resignations 1
3. Suspended*** 13
4. Censured 0
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 2
7. Discontinued 7
8. Dismissed 1
9. Reinstatements Granted 2
10. Reinstatements Denied 0
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 5
12.  All Other Dispositions 2
13.  Total closed 33
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 14
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 8
2. Other 6

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple
complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

PERIOD COVERED (01-01-2017 to 12-31-2017)

8TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOURTH DEPARTMENT

. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

A Matters Pending at Start of Period 138

B. New Matters During Period 612

C. Closed Matters Reactivated During Period 10

D. Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C) 760

E. Total Matters Disposed of During Period 575

F. Matters Pending at End of Period 185
1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE: Cases**  Matters

A Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint 270 300

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees 25 25

C. Referred to Other Agencies 0 0

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn 137 151

E. Dismissed through Mediation 0 0

F. Letter of Advisement 40 50

G. Letter of Admonition 6 10

H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

l. Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.) 16 39

Total Disposed of During Period (same as I.E above) 494 575

1.  CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A Cases Pending at Start of Period 61
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 4
2. Other 57

B. Cases Received During Period 16
1. Disciplinary Proceedings 4
2. Other 12

C. Total to be Processed During Period 77



UCS-176 Rev. 01/03

ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

D. Cases Closed

1. Disbarred 0
2. Disciplinary Resignations 0
3. Suspended*** 53
4. Censured 1
5. Privately Censured 0
6. Remanded to Grievance Committee 0
7. Discontinued 9
8. Dismissed 1
9. Reinstatements Granted 0
10. Reinstatements Denied 0
11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations 4
12.  All Other Dispositions 0
13.  Total closed 68
E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 9
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other 5

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of multiple
complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

FOURTH JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
PERIOD COVERED: 1/01/17 - 12/31/17

FIFTH, SEVENTH, AND EIGHTH DISTRICTS

l. MATTERS PROCESSED:*

Matters Pending at Start of Period

New Matters During Period

Closed Matters Reactivated During Period

Total Matters to be Processed During Period (A+B+C)

Cow>»

Total Matters Disposed of During Period
Matters Pending at End of Period

nm

I1. MATTERS DISPOSED OF BY COMMITTEE:
Matters

A. Rejected as Failing to State a Complaint

B. Referred to Other Disciplinary Committees
C. Referred to Other Agencies

D. Dismissed or Withdrawn
E. Dismissed through Mediation
F. Letter of Advisement

G. Letter of Admonition
H. Admonition (or Reprimand)

I Referred to Appellate Division (Disc. Proc.)

Total Disposed of During Period (same as |.E above)

1. CASES PROCESSED IN ALL COURTS:**

A. Cases Pending at Start of Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

375
1725
18
2118
1715
403
Cases**
775
939
106 108
2
349 411
0 0
109
137
21 34
50 84
1412
1715
112
16

96




B. Cases Received During Period

1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

C. Total to be Processed During Period
ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY ACTIVITIES

FOURTH JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT
PERIOD COVERED: 1/01/17 - 12/31/17

D. Cases Closed

Disbarred
Disciplinary Resignations

Censured

Privately Censured

Remanded to Grievance Committee
Discontinued

Dismissed

9. Reinstatements Granted

10. Reinstatements Denied

11. Non-Disciplinary Resignations

12.  All Other Dispositions

13. Total closed

N~ wWNE

E. Total Cases Pending at End of Period 37
1. Disciplinary Proceedings
2. Other

For the purposes of this report, the term "Matter" includes the following:
1. Complaints
2. Inquiries (Excluding telephone inquiries)
3. Sua Sponte investigations

* Matters represents individual complaints and inquiries.

Suspended*** 77

50

16

34

162

1

_ 10

2P| |w|n(®lw|lon

125

22

15

** Cases refers to the number of respondent/attorneys. As some attorneys are the subject of



multiple complaints, the number of matters may exceed the number of cases.

*** Includes definite, interim and indefinite suspensions.



FOURTH DEPARTMENT
(Fifth Judicial District)

Attorney Disposition
Stefan D. Berg Disbarred
150 AD3d 9
representing
3/31/17

neglecting a legal

Summary of Charges

Rule 1.3(a) - failing to act with reasonable
diligence and promptness in

a client; Rule 1.3(b) -

matter entrusted to him; Rule 1.4(a)(4) -
failing to comply in a prompt manner with a
client’s reasonable requests for information;
Rule 8.4(c)- engaging in conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation; Rule 8.4(d) - engaging in
conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) -
engaging in conduct that adversely reflects
on his fitness as a lawyer.

Aaron C. Bertram Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR

152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Diana G. Cunningham Suspended SixRule 1.3(b) - neglecting a legal matter

149 AD3d 199 Months Effective entrusted to her; Rule 1.4(a)(3) - failing to

3/24/17 9/7/16 keep a client reasonably informed about the
status of a matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to
comply in a prompt manner with a client’s
reasonable request for information; Rule
8.4(d) - engaging in conduct that is
prejudicial to the administration of justice;
and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in conduct that
adversely reflects on her fitness as a lawyer.

Diana G. Cunningham Reinstated

149 AD3d 1624

4/11/17

John J. Daly Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR

152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17



Frederick C. Gallagher
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Jacqueline B. Jones
155 AD3d 1609
10/25/17

Jose Mari Causing Lozada
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Ashley B. Purdy
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

William B. Rosbrook
153 AD3d 1135
8/16/17

Bertel HX Schmidt
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Frank B. Scibilia
153 AD3d 265
the status of a
7/31/17

Brian F. Shaw
152 AD3d 32
6/09/17

Suspended

Interim

Suspension

Suspended

Suspended

Disbarred

(Resigned)

Suspended

Censured

Suspended
Two Years

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 890(4)(f)

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

§1240.10(c)

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Rule 1.4(a)(3) - failing to keep a client
reasonably informed about

matter; Rule 1.16(d) - withdrawing from
employment without obtaining from a
tribunal the permission required under the
rules of the tribunal; and Rule 8.4(d) -
engaging in conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice.

Rule 1.3(a) - failing to act with reasonable
diligence and promptness in representing a
client; Rule 1.3(b) - neglecting a legal matter
entrusted to him; Rule 1.4(a) (3) - failing to
keep a client reasonably informed about the
status of a matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to
comply in a prompt manner with a client’s
reasonable requests for information; Rule
8.4(d) - engaging in conduct that is



Kevin E. Smith
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Scott M. Smith
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Aaron M. Streit
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

prejudicial to the administration of justice;
and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in conduct that
adversely reflects on his fitness as a lawyer.

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a; and 22 NYCRR
118.1



(Seventh Judicial District)

Attorney Disposition Summary of Charges
Jeanne Lucille Asseng Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Terrence Brown-Steiner Disbarred 22 NYCRR §1240.10
155 AD3d 1608 (Resigned)
10/24/17
Hynn T. Choi Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Chyrel N. Hall Interim 22 NYCRR §1240.9
156 AD3d 1492 Suspension
12/05/17
Thomas A. Healy Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Mark Robert McGrath Reinstated
153 AD3d 1673
9/12/17
Clara Michiko Ooyama Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22
NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17
Antoun James Sakr Suspended Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
153 AD3d 23 118.1
6/09/17



Martin J. Schank
152 AD3d 39
6/09/17

Suspended
Three Years

Stefanie Bishop Traub Suspended

152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

John C. Wallen
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

David Paul Weinstein Suspended

152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Leslie Anne Weise
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Richard T. Welch
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Keith D. Williams
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Dereck Allyn Wischmeyer
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

22 NYCRR 1200.1: Rule 5.5(a) - practicing
law 1n a jurisdiction in violation of the

regulation of the legal profession in that

jurisdiction; Rule 8.4(c) - engaging in conduct
mvolving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
misrepresentation; Rule 8.4(d) - engaging in
conduct that 1s prejudicial to the administration
of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging in
conduct that adversely reflects on his fitness as
a lawyer.

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



Shaqurah G. Zachery
149 AD3d 1624
4/11/17

Reinstated



(Eighth Judicial District)

Attorney Disposition
Richard Alan Ascher

152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Mary Casey Battis
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Cheryl Sybil Rene Boykin
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

James David Brenner
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Gwennor L. Carr
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Edward L. Chassin
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suzanne E. Cieslica
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Antoinette Sarah Clay Suspended
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Daniel Jay Cohen
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Randi E. Cohen Brown
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Summary of Charges

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



Donald F. Cole Suspended
152 AD3d 23

6/09/17

LaTasha D. Crutcher Supended
153 AD3d 268 Three Years
7/31/17

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

22 NYCRR 1200.0: Rule 1.3(a) - failing to

act with reasonable diligence and prompt-

ness in representing a client; Rule 1.3(b) -
neglecting a legal matter entrusted to her;
Rule 1.4(a) (3) - failing to keep a client
reasonably informed about the status of a
matter; Rule 1.4(a)(4) - failing to comply
promptly with a client’s reasonable requests
for information; Rule 1.5(d)(2) - entering
into an arrangement for, charging or
collecting a fee prohibited by law or rule of
court; Rule 1.5(d)(5(ii) - entering into an
arrangement for, charging or collecting a fee
in a domestic relations matter without a
written retainer agreement signed by the
respondent and the client setting forth in
plain language the nature of the relationship
and the details of the fee arrangement; Rule
1.5(e) - failing to provide a prospective
client in a domestic relations matter with a
statement of client’s rights and
responsibilities; Rule 1.15(a) - commingling
client funds with personal funds; Rule
1.15(b)(2) - failing to identify her trust
account as an “attorney special account,”
“attorney trust account,” or “attorney escrow
account”; Rule 1.15(d)(1) - failing to
maintain for seven years required
bookkeeping records, including records of
all deposits and withdrawals from any bank
account concerning or affecting her practice
of law and records showing the source and
amounts of all funds deposited into, or
disbursed from, any such account; Rule
1.15(e) - making withdrawals from a special
account by a method other than either a
check payable to a named payee or a bank
transfer to a named payee upon the prior
written approval of the party entitled to the



Deborah Dubois Davis
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Kimberly Duffin Ehlers
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Thomas J. Fendick
155 AD3d 1609
10/25/17

Brian P. Fitzgerald
149 AD3d 267
3/27/17

Suspended

Suspended

Interim

Suspension

Censured

proceeds; Rule 1.15(1) - failing to make
available to the Grievance Committee
financial records required to be maintained;
Rule 1.16(e) - failing to refund promptly any
part of a fee paid in advance that has not
been earned; Rule 8.4(b) - engaging in
illegal conduct that adversely reflects on her
fitness as a lawyer; Rule 8.4(c) - engaging in
conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit,
or misrepresentation; rule 8.4(d) - engaging
in conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) -
engaging in conduct that adversely reflects
on her fitness as a lawyer; 22 NYCRR
1215.1 - failing to provide to a client, within
a reasonable period of time, a letter of
engagement setting forth an explanation of
the scope of the legal services to be
provided, as well as an explanation of the
attorney’s fees to be charged, expenses, and
billing practices; 22 NYCRR 1400.2 -
failing to provide to a client in a domestic
relations matter itemized billing statements
at 60-day intervals.

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 890(4)(f)

DR1-102(a)(7) and Rule 8.4(h) - engaging

In conduct that adversely reflects on his

fitness as a lawyer; and DR5-103(B) and
Rule 1.8(e) - advancing or guaranteeing
financial assistance to a client while
representing the client in connection with



contemplated or pending litigation when the
client is not indigent and the financial
assistance does not constitute the expenses
or litigation for which the client remains
ultimately liable.

John Theodore Flattery Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Avram A. Glazer Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Robert M. Goldstein Interim 22 NYCRR 8§1240.13

156 AD3d 1492 Suspension

12/05/17

Michael A. Gould Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Frederick William Gray Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

William G. Hamilton Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Brendan Crull Hand Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

J. Scott Hargis Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Scott F. Harley Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

~10—



James Grant Hayden
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Kathleen A. Homer
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Eric Nord Hoover
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Adam Phillip Jason
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Christopher A. Johnson

149 AD3d 124
3/24/17

Kevin Ralph Kelly
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Sarah Elizabeth Knieser
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Mary Anne Kolb
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Jeanie Konstantinou
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Three Years

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

Suspended

11—

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

22 NYCRR 1200.: Rule 8.4(d) -
engaging in

conduct that is prejudicial to the
administration of justice; and Rule 8.4(h) -
engaging in conduct that adversely reflects
on his fitness as a lawyer; Judiciary Law
8468-a and 22 NYCRR 118.1 - failing to
comply with attorney registration
requirements.

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



Ryan Maclean
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Marcie Jan Mason
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Allan Michael McCombs
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Mark Robert McGrathSuspended
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Rachelle Suzanne Mercier
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Deborah A. Moon
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Joan Ann Oko
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Elizabeth Iverson Pacher
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Michelle Anne Petrotta
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Scott D. Rodman
152 AD3d 23
6/09/17

Suspended

Nicholas Rowntree
152 AD3d 23

Suspended

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR

118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
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118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1

Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
118.1



6/09/17

Stanley Robert Rudin Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Anthony S. Santaro, Jr. Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Sarah Falk Schofield Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Ellen J. Schwanebeck Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Patricia Jennings Starr Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Edward R. Thiel Interim 22 NYCRR 81240.9

153 AD3d 1673 Suspension

9/12/17

Eric L. Valby Suspended Judiciary Law 8468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.

6/09/17

Alva C. West Suspended Judiciary Law §468-a and 22 NYCRR
152 AD3d 23 118.1

6/09/17

Roger W. Wilcox Suspended 22 NYCRR 1240.14(b)

151 AD3d 1781

5/23/17
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FOURTH DEPARTMENT
DISTRICT GRIEVANCE COMMITTEES

Grievance Committee for the 5" Judicial District

Joseph E. Lamendola, Chair Nicholas A. Macri
Christopher R. Bray Timothy M. McClusky
Victoria M. Celia* Edward Z. Menkin
Julie Grow Denton C. Andrew Pappas
Matthew R. Dunn Christina Reilly

Paula M. Engel Thomas A. Reynolds
Donald R. Gerace Ramon E. Rivera
Robert M. Germain Vincent J. Rossi

Loretta R. Kilpatrick William P. Schultz*
John J. Kirwan, Jr.* Howard J. Woronov

Michael F. Young

Grievance Committee for the 7" Judicial District

Heidi Schult Gregory, Chair Mary Walpole Lightsey
Betsy L. Album Steven V. Modica
Peter H. Baker Vincent M. Moyer
Alexandra Burkett Eugene M. O’Connor
Bradley Calkins* Stephen R. Ricci

V. Bruce Chambers Leon T. Sawyko
Thomas L. Chapple Brian C. Schu

Norman J. Chirco Dennis F. Sedor
Michael Cobbs Mark Siwiec*
Susan Kramarsky* John E. Tyo

Kevin G. Van Allen

Grievance Committee for the 8" Judicial District

Mark R. McNamara, Chair Morris L. Horwitz
Ursuline Bankhead* Carolyn Ruth Kellogg
Lauren E. Breen Ethan M. Lyle
Francis X. Carroll Joseph A. Matteliano
Louis J. Cercone, Jr.* Elizabeth M. Midgley
Tasha Dandridge-Richburg William M. Paterson*
Peter J. Degnan David M. Roach
John J. DelMonte Richard B. Scott
Lyle T. Hajdu Betsy S. Steger
Douglas M. Heath Mary Ann E. Wiater

Ruth R. Wiseman

* Lay Member



2017

FOURTH DEPARTMENT ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
PROFESSIONAL DISCIPLINARY STAFFES

Grievance Committee for the 5" Judicial District
224 Harrison Street, Suite 408

Syracuse, NY 13202

(315) 401-3344

Grievance Committee for the 7" Judicial District
50 East Avenue, Suite 404

Rochester, NY 14604

(585) 530-3180

Grievance Committee for the 8" Judicial District
438 Main Street, Suite 800

Buffalo, NY 14202

(716) 845-3630

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Anthony J. Gigliotti, Principal Counsel
Mary E. Gasparini, Principal Counsel
Maureen T. Kissane, Associate Counsel
Sheryl M. Crankshaw, Investigator
Deborah A. Cole, Assistant Court Analyst

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Daniel A. Drake, Principal Counsel
Andrea E. Tomaino, Principal Counsel
Kelly A. Page, Investigator

Karen C. Malbone, Secretary

Gregory J. Huether, Chief Counsel
Roderick Quebral, Principal Counsel
Margaret C. Callanan, Principal Counsel
Guy C. Giancarlo, Associate Counsel
Mary E. Davis, Investigator

Carolyn M. Stachura, Investigator

Craig E. Semple, Investigator

Anna M. Hunt, Senior Court Analyst
Carol A. Cherry, Assistant Court Analyst
Cindy L. Pietz, Assistant Court Analyst
Kathleen J. Kasperek, Secretary



Attorney Discipline - 1st Dept

Total

$4,588,612

Title Comp Rate Category
Chief Atty Grievence Comm 1st $159,057 ATT
Deputy Chlef Attorney $1586,605 ATT
Deputy Chlef Attorney $156,605 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $156,605 ATT
Principal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $149,671 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Princlpal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Special Projects Counsel $142,428 ATT
Principal Attorney $123,917 ATT
Principal Attorney $119,268 ATT
Principal Attorney $119,268 ATT
Principal Attorney $119,268 ATT
Principal Attorney $114,619 ATT
Associate LAN Administrator $113,545 ADM
Principal Attorney $109,970 ATT
Principal Court Analyst $95,813 ADM
Senlor Court Analyst $92,997 ADM
Senfor Court Analyst $89,816 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $86,634 ADM
Court Analyst $80,083 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $78,971 ADM
Court Analyst 574,498_ ADM
Court Analyst $74,498 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $71,964 ADM
Administrative Secretary $70,588 ADM
Court Analyst $68,240 ADM
Secretary $62,480 ADM
Court Analyst $60,533 ADM
Law Stenographer $60,158 ADM
Secretary $60,052| ADM
Assistant Court Analyst 554,205 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $49,131 ADM
Total FTE- 39
Personal Service $4,325,922
Non-Personal Service $262,690




Attorney Discipline - 2nd Dept

Title Comp Rate Category
Deputy Chief Attorney $159,260 ATT
Deputy Chief Attorney $159,260 ATT
Chief Attorney $157,774 ATT
Chief Attorney $154,615 ATT
Chief Attorney $154,615 ATT
Principal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Principal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Princlpal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Principal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Princlpal Attorney $151,812| ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $142,513 ATT
Principal Attorney $139,641 ATT
Principal Attorney $137,864 ATT
Principal Attorney $119,268 ATT
Principal Attorney $109,970 ATT
Senior LAN Administrator 5102'737. ADM
Principal Court Analyst $102,737 ADM
Principal Court Analyst $102,737 ADM
Senior Court Analyst 589,816 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $86,634 ADM
Senlor Court Analyst $86,634 ADM
Senior Attorney $84,122 ADM
Senior Attorney $84,122 ADM
Court Analyst $80,083 ADM
Court Analyst $77,290 ADM
Attorney $75,047| ATT
Asslstant Court Analyst $69,427 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $69,427 ADM
Asslstant Court Analyst $69,427 ADM
Court Analyst $55,153_ ADM
Secretary $64,800 ADM
Secretary $62,480 ADM
Secretary $60,158 ADM
Secretary $60,158 ADM
Secretary 550.158_ ADM
Secretary $60,158 | ADM
Secretary $60,158 | ADM
Court Analyst $57,740 ADM
Asslstant Court Analyst $56,742 ADM
snr Appellate Office Assistant $46,030 ADM
Snr Appellate Office Assistant 546,030 ADM
Secretary 543,904 ADM
Total FTE- 51
Personal Service 46,040,747
Non-Personal Service $831,249

Total

56,871,996




Attorney Discipline - 3rd Dept

Title Comp Rate Category
Chf Atty Grievence Commission $155,422 ATT
Deputy Chlef Attorney $151,956 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $127,691 ATT
Associate Attorncy $110,481 ATT
Assoclate Attorney $104,496 ATT
Principal Court Analyst $102,737 ADM
Senior Attorney $88,028 ATT
Asslstant Court Analyst $66,890 ADM
Court Analyst $60,533 ADM
Secretary $60,158 ADM
Secretary $60,158 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $51,668 ADM
Secretary $50,870 ADM
Secretary _ $46,226 ADM
TOTAL FTE- 15
Personal Service $1,344,205
Non-Personal Service $223,420

Total

$1,567,625




Attorney Discipline - 4th Dept

Title Comp Rate Category
Chf Atty Grievence Commission $159,667 ATT
Principal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Princip:al Attorney $151,812 ATT
Principal Attorney $151,812 ATT
Principal Attorney $147,162 ATT
Principal Attorney $135,937 ATT
Assoclate Attorney $127,228 ATT
Assoclate Attorney $123,042 ATT
Senior Court Analyst $92,997 ADM
Senlor Court Analyst $89,816 ADM
Senior Court Analyst $89,816| ADM
Court Analyst $74,498 ADM
Court Analyst $71,705 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst 566,890 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $66,890 ADM
Secretary $62,480 ADM
Secretary $62,480 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst $58,699 ADM
Assistant Court Analyst _ $56,531 ADM
Total FTE- 19|
Personal Service $2,164,455
Non-Personal Service $321,937

Total

$2,486,392




	First Judicial Department Attorney Grievance Committee 2017
	Second, Eleventh & Thirteenth Judicial Departments Attorney Grievance 2017
	Ninth Judicial District Attorney Grievance Committee 2017
	Tenth Judicial Department Attorney Grievance Committee 2017
	Third Judicial Department Attorney Grievance Committee 2017
	Fifth, Seventh, & Eighth Judicial Department Attorney Grievance Committee 2017



